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1998 10 15
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
000895
1994 29
100

Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd. 2019

1997 25

100

Smithfield Foods, Inc.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
2013 25 BVI

Sure Pass Holdings Limited
us the United States of America

us$

30 18

76 76028 -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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12 31 12 31
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
25,589 24,103 22,605 22,379 21,534

6.2 6.6 1.0 3.9 1.5
1,729 2,031 1,650 1,583 1,788
6.8 8.4 7.3 7.1 8.3
1,315 2,052 1,411 1,501 1,703
(223) (357) (258) (182) (465)
1,092 1,695 1,153 1,319 1,238
828 1,465 943 1,133 1,036
264 230 210 186 202
1,092 1,695 1,153 1,319 1,238
973 1,378 1,046 1,126 1,014
5.62 9.96 6.43 7.79 7.58
18,715 17,282 15,298 15,258 13,611
(7,730)  (7.830)  (6,880)  (7.036)  (6,573)
10,985 9,452 8,418 8,222 7,038
10,005 8,684 7,746 7,445 6,316
980 768 672 777 722
10,985 9,452 8,418 8,222 7,038
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47.5

86.7

19.7
2019

2020 2019
( )
12,167 12,331
12,296 11,015
1,126 757
25,589 24,103
1,499 1,574
341 570
(111) (113)
1,729 2,031
2019  77.5
2019  51.2
2019  28.1
45.7
2020
2019  36.3 47.1 2020
48.3 24.0
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1.3

2020 2019

( )

4,037 3,615

7,157 7,814

973 902

12,167 12,331

836 673

571 847

92 54

1,499 1,574

2.1 3,276

COVID-19
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2020 2019 4.8 1,499 2020
24.2 ASF
COVID-19
32.6
2019 70.4
2020 2019 ()
( )
6,073 4,727 +28.5
5,169 5,344 -3.3
1,054 944 +11.7
12,296 11,015 +11.6
211 249 +8.8
(33) 233
103 88 +17.0
341 570 -40.2
2020 46,630 2019 13.3
3,946 6.6
46.3 7,092 2019
ASF
6.9 COVID-19

11.2 10.7
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2020 2019
6.2 6.6 -0.4
EBITDA
8.9 11.1 -2.2
6.8 8.4 -1.6
— 12.3 12.8 -0.5
— 2.1 3.9 -1.8
— 457.6 470.6 -13.0
— 86.4 134.9 -48.5
4.8 6.7 -1.9
1.9 1.7 +0.2
44.8 43.8 +1.0
24.4 32.7 -8.3
EBITDA
1.2 1.2
6.1 10.4 -4.3
8.9 17.8 -8.9
COVID-19
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2020
2020
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RMB

963

Us$
RON

2020 12 31

2020 12 31

2,357

2019 796

479

915 2019
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HK$
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2020 12 31 1.9
5,032 2019

2019 1,463
2020

2019 593
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IDR BBB
BBB-
Bal
2020 10 12
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
145,379,023
7,000
73.41 70.33
2020 15 3.0
500 2030
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
( ) ( )

2,098 1,787
535 1,177

46
3 3
125
2,682 3,092
2,098 2,227
538 680
46 185

2,682 3,092
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2020 12 31 2,706 2019 3,110
2021 3
2022 12
2023 1
2027 22
2029 15
2030 19
100
2020 12 31 78.3 2019
73.5
2020 12 31 99.5 2019 98.7
2020 12 31
24.4 9.9 2019 32.7 26.9 2020 12 31 EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA
1.2
0.5 2019 1.2 1.0
2019 144 2020 135

2020 12 31 3.5 2019 3.7

32/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn
2020 572 2019 703
2020 2019
( )
172 99
318 478
82 126
572 703
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 13,342 0.9 12,383
1,080 13,463 2019 12 31
5,485 72.1 8,804 635 9,439
2019 12 31 1,244 2020

12 31 1,182
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85
2020 145
2020 10 30 Edelmann Provision Company Inc. Edelmann
Provision Edelmann Provision
2021 22 Carnibona Holdings Limited
MECOM GROUP s.r.o. Schneider Food, s.r.o. Kaiser Food Kft. Mecom
100 Mecom
Mecom Csabahus Kaiser Schneider
Mecom
Mecom
Dominion Energy RNG Holdings, Inc.
Align RNG, LLC Align Roeslein Alternative Energy, LLC Monarch Bio Energy, LCC
Monarch Align Monarch
Align

Monarch
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2.6 GCM

2021
2020 12 31
WH
2020 CovID-19 ASF
2021 COVID-19
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50,000,000,000 14,745,214,342 35,254,785,658
2020 12 31
14,745,214,342 0.0001
0.0001
14,745,214,342
2020 12 31
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2016 10 2,388,000 | 14,650,809,111 238.8 1,465,080.9111

2016 12 260,000 | 14,651,069,111 26 1,465,106.9111

2017 11,500 | 14,651,080,611 1.15 1,465,108.0611

2017 1,734,500 | 14,652,815,111 173.45 1,465,281.5111

2017 52,500 | 14,652,867,611 5.25 1,465,286.7611

2017 2,003,000 | 14,654,870,611 200.3 1,465,487.0611

2017 3,101,000 | 14,657,971,611 310.1 1,465,797.1611

2017 10 872,500 | 14,658,844,111 87.25 1,465,884.4111

2017 11 800,000 | 14,659,644,111 80 1,465,964.4111

2017 12 4,585,000 | 14,664,229,111 458.5 1,466,422.9111

2018 11,255,000 | 14,675,484,111 1,125.5 1,467,548.4111

2019 557,500 | 14,676,041,611 55.75 1,467,604.1611

2019 9,697,500 | 14,685,739,111 969.75 1,468,573.9111

2019 23,562,000 | 14,709,301,111 2,356.2 1,470,930.1111 | PO

2019 359,500 | 14,709,660,611 35.95 1,470,966.0611

2019 886,000 | 14,710,546,611 88.6 1,471,054.6611

2019 74,000 | 14,710,620,611 7.4 1,471,062.0611

2019 145,291 | 14,710,765,902 14.5291 | 1,471,076.5902

2019 10 6,024,754 | 14,716,790,656 602.4754 | 1,471,679.0656

2019 11 2,459,102 | 14,719,249,758 245.9102 | 1,471,924.9758

2019 12 1,500,000 | 14,720,749,758 150 1,472,074.9758

2020 6,749,706 | 14,727,499,464 674.9706 | 1,472,749.9464

2020 25,000 | 14,727,524,464 2.5 1,472,752.4464

2020 1,000,000 | 14,728,524,464 100 1,472,852.4464

2020 51,500 | 14,728,575,964 5.15 1,472,857.5964

2020 1,000,000 | 14,729,575,964 100 1,472,957.5964

2020 3,310,445 | 14,732,886,409 331.0445 | 1,473,288.6409

2020 5,139,969 | 14,738,026,378 513.9969 | 1,473,802.6378

2020 3,377,964 | 14,741,404,342 337.7964 | 1,474,140.4342

2020 11 2,660,000 | 14,744,064,342 266 1,474,406.4342

2020 12 1,150,000 | 14,745,214,342 115 1,474,521.4342

1PO 38

2020 12 31
3,473,820,000 23.56
3,473,820,000 23.56
2021 30 2020 12 31
0.125 2019 0.265 2020 10 15
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5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A

5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 N/A 1/1 N/A

5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A

2021 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A
2021 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/2 172 1/1 0/1 N/A

5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A

5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A

5/5 3/3 1/1 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A

5/5 3/3 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A N/A 0/1 N/A

N/A
CPD

CPD
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3,500,001 4,000,000 2
5,000,001 5,500,000 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 1
31,500,001 32,000,000 1
2014 17
)
(i) (iii)
@iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
3.13
3.13
2020 16
2021
2021
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(D
ESG

(i) ESG

(i) ESG
(iv)

2020 16

2021
2021

)]

2021
2021
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15

2020 12 31
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www . hkexnews . hk www .wh-group.com

12.3 10
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www .wh-group.com
Wan Long
Wan Long 80 2007 10 16 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2013 10 2012
20 000895
1968 Henan Luohe Meat Products
Processing United Factory 1984
50 1998 2003 2008 2013
12 China’ s National People’ s Congress 2001
China Meat Association 2006 12 2011 12
China Meat Association 1991
Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy The Henan Business
College 1999
Henan Province Advanced Professional Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines )
Wan Hongjian
Wan Hongjian 52 2018 26 2018
2018 14 2016
1990 10
1991 12 Henan Luche Meat Products Processing United Factory
1992 1993 10
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1993 11 2010
1990
Radio and Television University
Guo Lijun
Guo Lijun 50 2013 12 31
2013 10 2014
1993 1996

Meat Products Processing United Factory
1996 2001
Industry Co., Ltd.
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2012 2013 10
2015 11 2016
Henan
2016
2014 2016
20

Henan Luohe

Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Packaging

Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing

Co., Ltd. 2001 2012
2012
2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10

PRC Ministry of Personnel
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47 2021
2020 11 27
2010 2010
2011 2015 12 2018 12 2018 12
2020 11 26
G R
G&R Felpausch Co.
Nash Finch Company NAFC
Spartan Stores Inc. SPTN
Sherwood Food Distributors
LLC.
2011
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 49 2018 26 2018
000895 2018 22 2017 12 26
2012 25 2017 12 25
25 2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients Factory 2003
Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning Food Co., Ltd.
2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals Co., Ltd.
2012 10 26 Luohe Shuanghui Food Sales Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui Meat Processing Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui
Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11 19 Shaanxi Shuanghui
Food Co., Ltd.

1996 Henan Agricultural University
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University
2010 Northwest A&F University
2003 2019

2020

Jiao Shuge
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Jiao Shuge 55 2006 28 2010 11 26
2018 14
2013 12 31 2012 20
000895
CDH
2015 China Southern Airlines Company Limited
01055 2015
Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd 300630 2016
Ningbo Akin Electronic Technology Co., Ltd.
National Equities Exchange and Quotations 830806
2018 Mabpharm Limited 02181
1989 1995 710 China Aerospace Service and
Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12 2012 12
2005 13
2012 22 China Yurun Food Group Limited
01068 2005 11 30 2014 16
China Shanshui Cement Group Co., Ltd. 00691
2007 12 2020 27 38 Joyoung Company Limited
002242
1986 Shandong University 1989 10

No. 2 Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics of

China
Huang Ming
Huang Ming 57 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2010
2019 China Europe International Business School

2006 2009 Shanghai University of Finance and
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Economics 2005
2014 JD.com, Inc.
JD 2018 360
360 Security Technology Inc. 601360
SJEC Corporation 601313
2011 2014 Tebon
Securities Co., Ltd. 2011 2016 360
Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. QIHU 2016
18 2011 2017 12 Guosen
Securities Co. Ltd. 2013 10 2017 12
00867 2009 10 2019
01777 2018 2019 i
China Shenhua Energy Company Limited H
1088 A 601088
2008 2020
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited 2018
17 YGE
1985 1991
1996
Lee Conway Kong Wai
Lee Conway Kong Wai 66 2014 16
Limited 00051 -Chaowel Powiar- Holdings 2010
02233 West China Cement Limited 2010
01117 2010 12
) o Gome Electrical Appliances 2011
Holding Limited 00493 o )
it 02222 NVC-L-lghtlng Hofdlng 2012 11
oldings Ltd. 012YSa(;shlIl Internatlc-)nal 2013 11
Limited 0d51 GCL New Energy Holdings 2014
Guotai Junan Securities 2017
Co., Ltd. GTJA 02611
2017 GTJA 601211
2014 2015 Merry Garden Holdings
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Limited 01237 2009 10 2013
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
00966 2009 10 2011 12
SVX 2011 11 2016 CITIC
Securities Company Limited 06030 2011 2020 5100
Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd. 01115 2014 2020 12
China Rundong Auto Group Limited 01365
1980 2009
2008 2017 1980
1988
Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 64 2014 16
2013 2017 Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust 01426
Spring Asset Management Limited
2013 Yuexiu
Property Company Limited 00123
2005 2010 Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust
00405 Yuexiu

REIT Asset Management Limited
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Qiao Haili
Qiao Haili 56 2019
000895
2014 11 2019
2016 11 2012 2014 10
2009 2012
1986 1995
1995 1998
1998 2004 10 Luohe
Shuanghui Canned Foods Company Limited 2001 11 2004 10
2004 11 2009 Shuanghui Development Meat
Processing Division Factory
1986 Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
Veterinary Medicine 2005 3 Graduate
School of Renmin University 1998 12
Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 53 2012
000895 1998 22
29 1987 10 1991
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1991
1992 Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory
Meat Product Branch 1992 1993 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1993 1998
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Food
Institute 1998 2001 11
1997 Zhengzhou University of Light Industry
2002 2005

Graduate School of Renmin University

Liu Songtao
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Liu Songtao 44 2017 12 26
000895
2012 25 2017 12 25 2003
2012 2003
Shuanghui Development Luohe Slaughter Factory 2002 2003
Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd. 2000
Henan University
47 2015
19
1995 1996
Chau Ho
Chau Ho 55 2014

2011 2014
China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited
01101 2010 2011
00845
20 1994 10 2010

1991 11 1992 11
2003 1994
2006 2008
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( )
2020 12 31 ( )
( 38 59 ) 131
108.05 UFJ 2021 22
( ( 23 103 )
) (

23 25 ) 193
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12 31
2020 2019
25,589 25,589 24,103 24,103
(21,096) 533 (20,563) (19,209) 338 (18,871)
4,493 533 5,026 4,894 338 5,232
(1,914) - (1,914) (2,059) - (2,059)
(874) - (874) (811) - (811)
(511) (511) (208) (208)
(209) (209) 22 22)
74 74 59 59
@n “n 53 53
111) @11) (63) (63)
(135) (135) (144) (144)
4 4 4 4
10 2 12 13 [©) 11
1,500 (185) 1,315 1,946 106 2,052
(263) 40 (223) (336) (21) (357)
1,237 (145) 1,002 1,610 85 1,695
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12 31
2020 2019
2,764,891 - 2,764,891 2,604,329 - 2,604,329
(2,279,423) 57,501  (2,221,832)  (2,075,532) 36,521 (2,039,011)
485,468 57,501 543,059 528,797 36,521 565,318
(206,808) - (206,808) (222,475) - (222,475)
(94,436) - (94,436) (87,629) - (87,629)
- (55,214) (55,214) - (22,474) (22,474)
- (22,582) (22,582) - 2,377) 2,377)
7,996 - 7,996 6,375 - 6,375
(5,078) - (5,078) 5,727 - 5,727
(11,994) - (11,994) (6,807) - (6,807)
(14,587) - (14,587) (15,560) - (15,560)
432 - 432 432 - 432
1,081 216 1,297 1,405 (216) 1,189
162,074 (19,989) 142,085 210,265 11,454 221,719
(28,417) 4,323 (24,094) (36,305) (2,269) (38,574)
133,657 (15,666) 117,991 173,960 9,185 183,145
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12 31
2020 2019

(90) (143)
(90) (143)
312 (51)
31 15
343 (36)
253 (179)
1,345 1,516
828 1,465
264 230
1,092 1,695
1,016 1,305
329 211
1,345 1,516
5.62 9.96
5.60 9.90
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45

13
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12 31
2020 2019

(9,725) (15,451)
(9,725) (15,451)
33,711 (5,511)

3,350 1,621
37,061 (3,890)
27,336 (19,341)
145,327 163,804
89,466 158,293
28,525 24,852
117,991 183,145
109,779 141,006
35,548 22,798
145,327 163,804

6.07 10.76

6.05 10.70

65/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oooooog
@
12 31
2020 2019
14 5,531 597,625 5,406 584,118
16(a) 684 73,906 646 69,800
17 135 14,587 137 14,803
18 2,008 216,964 1,955 211,238
19 1,762 190,384 1,712 184,982
20 47 5,078 42 4,538
21 307 33,171 305 32,955
24 57 6,159 54 5,835
25 10 1,081 10 1,081
27 1 1,189 4 432
31 61 6,591 66 7,131
268 28,957 238 25,716
10,881 1,175,692 10,575 1,142,629
15 130 14,047 102 11,021
17 1,047 113,128 1,107 119,611
22 2,641 285,359 2,903 313,670
23 915 98,866 1,047 113,128
24 512 55,322 508 54,889
57 6,159
25 882 95,300 447 48,298
/ 27 51 5,511 41 4,430
27 1,599 172,772 552 59,644
7,834 846,464 6,707 724,691
28 913 98,650 1,074 116,046
29 2,136 230,795 1,686 182,172
16(b) 103 11,129 108 11,669
73 7,888 9 10,373
30 796 86,008 905 97,785
30 46 4,970
4,067 439,440 3,869 418,045
3,767 407,024 2,838 306,646
14,648 1,582,716 13,413 1,449,275
29 201 31,443 189 20,421
16(b) 373 40,303 357 38,574
30 1,840 198,811 2,187 236,305
31 553 59,752 660 71,313
32 44 4,754 10 1,081
33 562 60,724 558 60,292
3,663 395,787 3,961 427,986
10,985 1,186,929 9,452 1,021,289
36 1 108 1 108
10,004 1,080,933 8,683 938,199
10,005 1,081,041 8,684 938,307
980 105,888 768 82,982
10,985 1,186,929 9,452 1,021,289
63 182 2021 30

Mr. Wang Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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€))
C @ (45 ()

2019 1 2,934 ') (190) 924 268 3,873 7,736 672 8,408
1,465 1,465 230 1,695
32) 32) 19) (51)
(143) (143) (143)
15 15 15
« ) 32) (128) 1,465 1,305 211 1,516
(20) (20) (30) (50)
3 3
(89) (89)
12 375) (375) (375)
7 7 1 8

38 973) 973
+ 48 @n 31 31
+ 48 (20) (983) 598 (357) (115) 472)
2019 12 31 1 2,982 94) 22) 187) 268 5,936 8,684 768 9,452
2020 1 2,982 (94) 22) 187) 268 5,936 8,684 768 9,452
828 828 264 1,092
247 247 65 312
(90) (90) (90)
31 31 31
« ) 247 (59) 828 1,016 329 1,345
@ @ @ A
886 886 123 1,009
(238) (238)
12 (599) (599) (599)
+ 29 (10) 19 19

(G *

7 1 )
+ 29 885 ®) 1 (607) 305 i) 188
2020 12 31 1 3,011 791 25 (249) 269 6,157 10,005 980 10,985
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2019 12 31
2020

2020 12 31

12
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ooooodd
C @) (4 o
108 317,019 (7,996)  (20,530) 99,838 28,957 418,478 835,874 72,610 908,484
158,293 158,293 24,852 183,145
(3,457) (3,457) (2,054)  (5,511)
(15,451) (15,451) (15,451)
1,621 1,621 1,621
(3,457)  (13,830) 158,293 141,006 22,798 163,804
(2,161) (2,161) (3,242)  (5,403)
324 324
(9,616)  (9,616)
(40,519)  (40,519) (40,519)
757 757 108 865
+ (105,133) 105,133
5,186 (1,836) 3,350 3,350
* 5,186 (2,161) (106,212) - 64,614 (38,573) (12,426)  (50,999)
108 322,205  (10,157) (23,987)  (20,204) 28,957 641,385 938,307 82,982 1,021,289
108 322,205  (10,157) (23,987)  (20,204) 28,957 641,385 938,307 82,982 1,021,289
89,466 89,466 28,525 117,991
26,688 26,688 7,023 33,711
(9,725) (9,725) (9,725)
3,350 3,350 3,350
26,688 (6,375) 89,466 109,779 35,548 145,327
(108) (108) (216) (324)
95,732 95,732 13,290 109,022
(25,716)  (25,716)
(64,722)  (64,722) (64,722)
* 3,133 (1,081) 2,053 2,053
(G *
756 108 (864)
* 3,133 95,624 (325) 108  (65,586) 32,955 (12,642) 20,313
108 325,338 85,467 2,701  (26,904) 29,065 665,265 1,081,041 105,888 1,186,929
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®
12 31
2020 2019
1,315 142,085 2,052 221,719
an (1,837) 14) (1,513)
135 14,587 144 15,560
(O] (432) (O] (432)
12) (1,297) 1) (1,189)
495 53,485 442 47,758
139 15,019 130 14,047
7 756 @ (108)
8 864 9 972
2 216
(29) (3,133) 24) (2,593)
240 25,932 53 5,727
209 22,583 22 2,377
25 2,701 18 1,945
2 216 8 864
2 216 5 540
13 1,405 @ (108)
8 864
42) (4,538)
(15) (1,621)
@ (756) (10) (1,081)
2,523 272,610 2,769 299,190
(106) (11,454) am (19,124)
99 10,697 (941) (101,675)
136 14,695 ®) (324)
19) (2,053) 72) (7.,780)
272 29,390 263 28,417
2,905 313,885 1,839 198,704
(418) (45,165) (233) (25,176)
(130) (14,046) (143) (15,451)
2,357 254,674 1,463 158,077
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12 31
2020 2019
(551) (59,536) (680) (73,474)
Q1) (2,269) (23) (2.485)
1,695 183,145 810 87,521
(2,049) (221,394) (920) (99,405)
) (7,672) (38) (4,106)
58 6,267 49 5,294
12 1,297 113 12,210
10 1,081 6 648
2 216 * *
) (7.672) (115) (12,426)
(18) (1,945)
(€)) (108)
(25) (2,701)
38 4,106
13 1,405
18 1,945
@ (216)
8 864 7 756
®) (324) (33) (3.566)
8 864 47 5,078
[©) (216) (30) (3,242)
(963) (104,052) (796) (86,008)
3,279 354,296 2,457 265,479
(3,793) (409,834) (2,454) (265,155)
(246) (26,580) (89) (9,616)
(599) (64,722) (375) (40,519)
®) (324) (50) (5.403)
19 2,053 31 3,350
996 107,618
3 324
(132) (14,263) (116) (12,534)
(479) (51,756) (593) (64,074)
915 98,866 74 7,995
86 9,292 ) (648)
552 59,644 484 52,297
1,553 167,802 552 59,644
1,599 172,772 552 59,644
(46) (4,970)
1,553 167,802 552 59,644

71/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

WH ( )
2014

2020 12 31

46

2.1

1ASB IFRS

2.2

2020
12 31

(a
(b
(c

(a
(b
(c
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)

IFRS

2.3

2018 29
IFRS

IFRS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS

IFRS 16 Covid-19
1AS 1AS

2018 29 IFRS

2018 29
2018 29
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IFRS
IFRS

IFRS IAS 39
IFRS IAS 39
RFR

IFRS 16 CovID-19
IFRS 16

I1AS 1AS
1AS I1AS

2.4

2020

RFR

(i

)
2020
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2021 30

IFRS



IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 10

IFRS 17
IFRS 17
1AS
1AS
1AS
IAS 16
IAS 37
IFRS

2021
2022
2023

a A W N

2020

IFRS
IFRS

IFRIC 21

IFRS
IFRS

RFR

IFRS

IAS 39 IFRS
IFRS 16
IAS 28
2018-2020
IFRS 17 IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
2018
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS IFRS
RFR

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn
2
— 1
3
3,5
3
3
3
2
2
IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
2023
IFRS
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
IAS 37
2022
IFRS 16 -
IFRS 16
IFRS
RFR 24
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IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10
IFRS 17
1ASB 2017
2005
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 2023

IFRS 17
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2020 12 31
RFR
IAS 28
IFRS 17
IFRS IFRS 17
IFRS 17
IFRS
IFRS 17
IFRS 17
IFRS IFRS 15
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1ASB IFRS 17

IFRS

1AS
1AS

IAS 16
IAS 16

IAS 37
IAS 37

2022

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 16

IASB IFRS
IAS 39

IAS 37

2018-2020
2018-2020

IFRS 16
IFRS 16
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2020 IFRS 17
IFRS 17 2023
2023
2023
IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
2022
13
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IAS 41 IAS 41
IAS 41 22
3.
IAS 12
IAS 19
IFRS
IFRS
CGU CGU
CGU CGU

CGU CGU

CGU
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IAS 36
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(a

G

(c

49
23

14
14

12
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CGU
CGU
CGU

CGU CGU

CGU
CGU

FVPL

FVPL

FVOCI
FVPL

IFRS 15
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2020 12 31 1,028 2019 1,101
17
CGU
CGU
2020 12 31 2,008 2019 1,955
18
CGU
CGU

cGU

2020 12 31 1,762 2019 1,712 19
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2020 12 31
2,641 2019 2,903 22

2020 12 31 90
2019 143 2020 12 31
575 2019 566 33
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2020 2019

12,167 12,331

12,296 11,015

1,126 757

25,589 24,103

99 2019 99
2020 2019
305 148
2020 12 31

2019 12 31 1
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2020 12 31

)
( 2019 12 31
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2020 12 31
4,037 7,075 1,024 12,136
(1,002) (306)  (1,308)
4,037 6,073 718 10,828
836 271 33 1,140
7,160 8,581 37 15,778
®) (3.412) (3,415)
7,157 5,169 37 12,363
571 (33) (123) 415
1,019 1,534 452 3,005
(46) (480) (81) (607)
973 1,054 371 2,308
92 103 [0 174
12,216 17,190 1,513 30,919
(49) (4,894) 387)  (5,330)
12,167 12,296 1,126 25,589
1,499 341 (111) 1,729
(108)
(185)
(135)
4
10

1,315
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2019 12 31

3,615 5,673 756 10,044
(946) (342) (1,288)

3,615 4,727 414 8,756

673 249 35 957

7,817 8,375 1 16,193
®3) (3.,031) (3.,034)

7,814 5,344 1 13,159

847 233 (148) 932

943 1,387 415 2,745
(41) (443) 73) (557)

902 944 342 2,188

54 88 + 142

12,375 15,435 1,172 28,982
(44) (4,420) (415) (4,879)

12,331 11,015 757 24,103

1,574 570 (113) 2,031

42

106
(144)

4

13

2,052

2020 2019

2,560 2,347

6,102 6,110

1,929 1,843

10,591 10,300
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2020 2019
26 28
17 14
10 10
21 7
74 59
2020 2019
17 14
29 24
) 1
42
15
(25) 18)
€3] ®
€)) ®
5 €))
7 10
(69) (13)
@“@n 53
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2020 2019
® ®
(76) (76)
@n (48)
(20) (18)
3 3
(135) (144)
2020 2019
4 4
1 1
495 442
139 130
8 9
2
240 53
13 [¢))
114 87
148 134
3,983 3,628
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10.
2020
) ()
A)
Wan Long 1 1
Wan Hongjian 1 * 1
Guo Lijun 1 *
Sullivan Kenneth Marc * 2 *
Ma Xiangjie 1 * *
4 * 2 * 7
B)
Jiao Shuge
)
Huang Ming + *
Lee Conway Kong Wai + *
Lau Jin Tin Don + +
+ +
2020 12 31 7
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2019
) )
A)
Wan Long 2 * 2 * 4
Wan Hongjian * * *
Guo Lijun 1 * 1 * 2
Sullivan Kenneth Marc 1 13 * * 14
Ma Xiangjie 1 * * * 1
5 14 3 * 22
B)
Jiao Shuge
0
Huang Ming * *
Lee Conway Kong Wai * *
Lau Jin Tin Don * *
2019 12 31 22
)
) Sullivan Kenneth Marc
2020 12 31
) Sullivan Kenneth Marc 2020 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 Wan Long
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2020 12 31 2019
2019

2020 2019
3
15

+ +

4 18

2020 2019
28,500,001 29,000,000 1

31,500,001 32,000,000 1

49,500,001 50,000,000 1
63,500,001 64,000,000 1

2019
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11
2020 2019
(229) (176)
34) (56)
(28) (35)
(35) 13)
103 an
(223) (357)
EIT EIT
25
( ) EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT 86
EIT
( EIT
EIT
(
2012 58
15
( EIT
2009 203 15
15
EIT 27 91
10  EIT
2020 12 31 2019
12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 21%
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

16-19%
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2020 2019
1,315 2,052
(311) 3.7 (494) (24.1)
3 0.2 3 0.1
8 0.6 23 1.1
(26) (2.0) (21) (1.0)
@ 0.2) ) 0.2)
60 4.6 82 4.0
25 1.9 39 1.9
32) Q.4 (35) @.n
3 0.2 0.4
25 1.9 0.3
24 1.8 35 1.7
(223) (17.0) (357) 17.4)
31



12
2019
2018 0.15
2020
2019 0.05
2020 12 31
13

0.265

0.05
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2020 2019
504 282
95 93
599 375

0.125
2020 2019

828 1,465
14,733.55 14,702.71
55.22 88.51
14,788.77 14,791.22
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14
2019 540 2,494 139 3,761 562 7,496
(€) 24) (€)) (D) (3%) %)
4 4 25 636 669
34 3 49 + 52 4 108
17 281 6 517 (821)
(15) (83) (©)) (55) * (162)
2019 12 31 2020 542 2,721 139 4,269 346 8,017
5 87 4 129 5 230
1 11 9 20 479 520
34 3 3
4 180 20 392 (596)
Q) (31) (67) (1) (106)
2020 12 31 552 2,992 141 4,746 233 8,664
2019 620 78 1,523 2,221
® * 14) (20)
113 11 318 442
6 * 12 18
(&) (®) (38) (50)
2019 12 31 2020 729 81 1,801 2,611
26 2 61 89
123 10 362 495
7 1 17 25
(6) (25) (56) (87)
2020 12 31 879 69 2,185 3,133
2020 12 31 552 2,113 72 2,561 233 5,531
2019 12 31 542 1,992 58 2,468 346 5,406
2020 12 31 896 2019 856
2020 12 31 188 2019 187
2020 12 31 25 2019 18
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2020 2019
130 102

2020 2019
48 19
82 83
130 102
170 198 16 52 132 568
() () () () (G "
81 23 21 23 65 213
(36) (10) ® (23) (52) (130)
(5) (5)
210 211 28 52 145 646
+ 20 1 + + 21
36 43 14 32 25 150
(38) ® (13) (33) “n (139)
(13) @ @ (G Q) (22)
3 1 ) 1 26 30
@ @
196 266 28 52 142 684
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(b)
2020 2019
11
465 386
129 180
20 18
34 3
(152) (116)
(22)
30
6 (6)
12 31 476 465
103 108
373 357
476 465
37
2.3 IFRS 16
©
2020 2019
20 18
139 130
2019 12 31 o -
23 12
() "
2 5
275 240
(d)
33
e)

2020

)
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2019

2020

27
2019

15

2019

10
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47

35
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114

19

2020 2019
2 2
2 2
8 8
12 12
1 1
13 13
9 5
9 5
23 132
21
38 42

2.1
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(
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
1,101 942 135 145 6 5 2 2 1,244 1,094
6 6) 4 (O 2 * 1 (G 13 ®
7,616 7,662 186 179 191 144 12 9 8,005 7,99
(132) 40 (3) G 1 [€)) ®) @  (209) 22)
(7,283) (7,346) (84) (93) (@57) (119) ®) (4) (7,530) (7,562)
(280)  (191) (36) € (2% (23) () Q) G4 (252
12 31 1,028 1,101 132 135 19 6 3 2 1,182 1,244

2020 2019
1,047 1,107
135 137
1,182 1,244

2020 2019
- 1,028 1,101
- 132 135
- 19 6
- 3 2
1,182 1,244
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JLL
979

2020 2019
O] 4,444 1,901
@ 886 139
® 2,929 3,332
Q) 119 85
) 25 25
® 16 19
@ 20 18

2020 2019
O 118 125
O] 43 46
&) 33 32
® 143 153
) 3.2 5.7
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CcGu
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2020
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2020 2019
1,955 1,847
31 111
22 )
2,008 1,955
2,008 1,955
CGU
2020 2019
51 48
147 137
40 31
1,536 1,510
234 229
2,008 1,955
oell
2019 12 31 CoU
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CGU

2020 2019 2020 2019
(6.9)-15.1 (23.8)-46.6 2.0 2.0-12.6
2 2 2 2
10 11 6 7

2020 2019 2020 2019
1.3-17.4 7.2-14.1 2.1 2.1-4.7
2 2 2 2
10 11 6 7

2020 2019
3.5 3.0-7.4
4 3
7 8

CGU
CGU CGU
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2019

2019

2020

2019

2019

2020

2020
2019

12

12

12

12

12
12

31

31

31

31

31
31
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1,667 55 40 1,774
©) " ®)
2020
1,662 55 40 1,769
28 * 28
34 32 32
1,690 87 40 1,829
28 10 40
6 2
2020
9 34 12 57
2 4 2 8
2 2
13 38 14 67
1,677 49 26 1,762
1,653 21 28 1,712
25
CGU
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CGU

2020 2019
51 47
302 282
234 234
981 983
114 112
1,682 1,658

CGU CGU
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 CGU

2020 2019 2020 2019
(6.9)-15.1 (23.8)-46.6 2.0 2.0-12.6
2 2 2 2
13 14 6 7

2020 2019 2020 2019
1.3-17.4 7.2-14.1 2.1 2.1-4.7
2 2 2 2
13 14 6 7

2020 2019
3.5 3.0-7.4
4 3
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2020 12 31
2019
20
2020 2019
47 42
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019
4 4
2 +
21
2020 2019
307 305
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019

12 11

120/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

OooooOodd
22
2020 2019
1,018 904
103 97
1,520 1,902
2,641 2,903
23
2020 2019
931 1,049
2%) 11)
907 1,038
8 9
915 1,047
30
2020 2019
30 802 879
31 90 112 167
91 180 1 1
180
915 1,047
2020 12 31 567 2019 12 31 651
40
2020 2019
(11) 12)
(13) 1
12 31

24

an
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2020 12 31

90 91 180 180
0.51% 99.52% 91.48% 2.53%
911 11 9 931
5 11 8 24

2019 12 31

90 91 180 180
1.00% 0.25% 5.30% 1.06%
1,049 * * 1,049
11 * * 11

24
2020 2019
61 84
38

60 86
130 59
53
46 14
26 80 74
101 118
53 74
569 562
512 508
57 54

569 562
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2020 12 31

FVPL

2019 12

31
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2020 2019
882 447
10 10
892 457
882 447
10 10
892 457
2020 2019

6 1

2 2
* 4 1 2
95 * * 22
5 5 78 6
100 17 82 30
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2020 12 31
(€1))
- 5,000 2,995,000 2022
- 77,000 2021
- 225,000 6,030,000 2022
44,640,000 121,360,000 2021 10 22
2019 12 31
+
- 10,000 525,000 2020 11
- 1,465,000 5,820,000 2021
63,000,000 128,920,000 2020 12 7
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
.
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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2020 12 31
131,280,000 2,328,040,000 2021 12 515
29
- 64,144,044 110,857,129 2021 12
- 520,900 969,000 2021 12
4,000,000 62,537,541 2021 12 [6))
2019 12 31
133,040,000 1,987,320,000 2021 469
(32)
- 110,857,129 178,230,000 2021 12
- 665,600 1,170,600 2021
63,000 61,022,670 2020 12 +
/
2020 12 31
489 594 26 @5) 515
(19) (155) ®) 111 @4
2019 12 31
466 445 3 32 469
(31) (25) (€D) @n (32)

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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2020 2019
3 14 9
+ + 1
3 10 2 11
+ + + +
6 24 8 21
2020 12 31
395,000 3,110,000 2022
95,100 2021 10
10,680,000 486,950,909 2021 10
758,809 21,455,000 2022 12
5,000 2,765,000 2021 11
4,800,000 2021
6,930,000 14,050,000 BTU 2021 12
18,060,000 32,130,000 2021 12
3,300,615 3,300,615 2032
4,495,667 62,475,302 2021
2019 12 31
165,000 1,950,000 2020
1,400 49,900 2020
10,920,000 82,160,000 2020 12
2,702,871 21,047,468 2021 12
30,000 3,915,000 2021
160,000 2020
10,760,000 17,000,000 BTU 2021 12
3,300,615 2032
17,136,000 21,168,000 2021 12
2,510,541 289,679,130 2020
2019
79 2019 73 2019

2019 27

27
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2020

2020

2020

28

30
31
91
181

12

12

12

12
49

90
180
365

31

31

31

31

0.01

2019

2019

2019 29
2019

2019

4.13
0.01

30
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0.01 4.50
4.13 2019 0.01 3.91
13
2020 2019

891 1,045
19 26

1 2

2 1
913 1,074

42(b)
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29
2020 2019
732 491
90 91
261 191
77 89
155 135
27 24
11 10
45 43
33 23 18
(Note 42(b)) 15
26 16 35
24 23
32 28
14 18
520 305
302 233
98 126
2,427 1,875
2,136 1,686
291 189
2,427 1,875
2020 2019
2019 161
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2021 10
2022
2027
2029
2030 10

( ) 2018

12 31

(

(

)

2.650
3.350
4.250
5.200
3.000

)

(

)

)

(

)
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2020 2019
310 399
307 398
596 595
395 395
490
2,008 1,787
125
11 38
524 1,139
1 1
2 2
2,636 3,092
46
796 905
326 421
31 773
1,483 993
2,636 3,002
(796) (905)
1,840 2,187
2,599 2,385
37 707
2,636 3,002
2020 2019
2,099 2,273
489 582
3 144
42 41
50
2 2
1
2,636 3,002
397
1,750 2020
2019 125
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() 2020 12 31 1.80 5.80 2019  2.25 5.80
WIBOR 0.58 ROBOR 2019 WIBOR 0.5
0.375
() 2020 12 31 0.9 2019 0.9
() 2020 12 31 2.8
)
2020 12 31
2019 12 31
40
31
2020 2019
61 66
(553) (660)

(492) (594)
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34

2019 12 31 2020

2020 12 31
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15 * 71 126 33 69 319

+ + + + +
* 1 1

10 3 ©) 12) @ 6 23)
49 * 49

25 3 62 163 12 76 346
+ + 1 ( +) 1
(15) 4 ® @0 52 40 78 126
31 * (€)] 30

10 7 60 164 52 52 153 503
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2019 (423) (10) (421) (©)) ®) (860)
2 + ¥ 2 4
34 (16) (16)
(26) (22) ®) (G 2 GH
(@) (G * (14 (14)
2019 12 31 2020 (463) (32 (429) [©)) 13) (940)
®) @ (10 @ @D
34 + +
@7 3 ®) * 7 (23)
(G * (11) (11)
2020 12 31 (498) [€1)) (445) (6) (18) (995)
2020 12 31 263 2019
263 200 2019 207
63 2019 56
2020 12 31
2040 2019
'
2040
2020 2019
2020 7
2021 1 3
2022 15 12
2023 3
2024 44 34
63 56
3,468 2019 3,201
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

33

)

65
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2020 2019

44 10

45
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12 31
2020 2019
2.80 3.50
4 4
2020 12 31 2,123 2019 1,812
2020 2019
85 69
17 18
102 87
2020 2019
154 141
(275) (333)
(121) (192)
31 49
(90) (143)
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2020 2019
2,698 2,378
(2,123) (1,812)
575 566
10 10
585 576
23 18
562 558
585 576
2020 2019
2,378 2,071
85 69
80 90
(120) (185)
275 333
2,698 2,378
2020 2019
1,812 1,625
63 72
214 159
(120) (185)
154 141
2,123 1,812




835

2019

50

183

999

2020 12 31
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12 31

2020

117
1,062
645
10
211

142
616
877

78
179

2,045
78

1,892
(80)

2,123

1,812

211 2019 757 956

8.07 2019 5.55

221
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
195 - 62 -
1,062 30-50 616 30-50
645 35-55 877 35-55
221 -20 257 -20
2,123 1,812

97
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2020 12 31

34

2020 12 31
Edelmann Provision Company Inc.

2020 10 30
Provision

Edelmann Provision
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MPF MPF
MPF
401(k)
76 2019 96
Edelmann Provision Company Inc. Edelmann
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2020 12 31

Edelmann Provision

2019 12 31

Pini Polonia sp. z o.o.

2019

Polonia
2019

28

28
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ooooooo

74)

3

D

(@)

Edelmann Provision 15
2020 12 31
Pini Polonia sp. z 0.0. ( Pini Polonia ) 66.5

2017 7 28 33.5 Pini

Pini Polonia

Pini Polonia
Pini Polonia
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Pini Polonia

84
(84)

Pini Polonia

102

72

44
(65)

@
a4
13

®
49

82
114
196

112
84
196

2019 12 31
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2019 12 31
167

Pini Polonia
24,307

2020 12 31

35
(a

2019 12 30

42

2,048

2019

Pini Polonia

6
Pini Polonia
2019 12 31
139
190
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112)

(111)
@
(113)

129
180

Align RNG, LLC ( Align )
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2019

34

2019 12 31 2020
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10 386 3,078
(464) (116) 3
180
18 :
3 13
472
() (6) (©))
18 465 3,092
(845) (132) (514)
129
20 +
(20)
(22)
30
837
SURURRR A ) 6 e, %8 .
14 476 2,636

142/308



(c

36

2019

2019

2019

2020

37

26.9

0.0001

2019 12 31

12 31 2020

12 31

2020

1PO

2020 12 31

2020 12 31

30
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2020 2019
134 87
13 4)
132 116
279 179
50,000.00 5
14,675.48 1
45.27 +
14,720.75 1
24.46 *
14,745.21 1
D/E 9.9 2019
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2020 12 31
10 10
882 882
80 80
161 161
20 1,001 1,111
/ 62 62
1,599 1,599
1,153 2,752 3,905
2019 12 31
10 10
447 447
74 74
145 145
15 1,202 1,217
/ 45 45
552 552
691 1,799 2,490

* FVPL
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2020 2019

1,099 1,327

476 465

2,636 3,092

46
4,257 4,884
16 35
FVPL
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2020

2019

15 36
2 19
1 3

11 32
8 101
8 60

18 39
1 1

20 26
2 2

50
15
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27

25

25

2019
2019

FVPL
30

30
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2019

2020 2019

FVPL

25

2020 2019
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23 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 /
12 31
2020 12 31
12
8 907 915
176 176
62 62
1,599 1,599
1,845 907 2,752
2019 12 31

12
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9 1,038 1,047
155 155
45 45
552 552
761 1,038 1,799
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2020 12 31 5,032 2019 2,874

2020 12 31
913 913
121 65 186
120 147 95 224 586
46 46
876 401 205 1,649 3,131
2,076 613 300 1,873 4,862
7 9 16

2019 12 31

1,074 1,074
194 59 253
124 145 80 210 559
967 507 855 1,188 3,517
2,359 711 935 1,398 5,403

27 8 35
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2020 12 31 2019
12 31

2020
10 882 892
96 8 2 106
47 84 30 161
20 20
143 122 914 1,179
29 2 10 41
2019
10 447 457
71 17 2 90
31 88 26 145
15 15
102 130 475 707

18 26 7 51
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@
(b)
1.5 4.1 2019 12 31 3.7 4.1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
LIBOR
2019 1 1 317 ®) 22
« ) 24 0} 4
(G
920
(810) +
O
2019 12 31 2020 447 ) 26
29 8 4
2,049
(1,695) (11)
52

2020 12 31 882 ®) 30
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2020 12 31

9% 19 86 (45) 41

26 (10) 16 (16)
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2019 12 31
71 (16) 55 53 108
16 (16)
38
(a) 2010
2010 2010 11 26
2013 12 26
2010
631,580,000
2010
Tricor Services Limited 2010
Teeroy Limited
2010 2010
2010
2010
2010
2010 2012
2012 2014 2010
2019 12 31 2010

2019 12 23
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2010
631,580,000
2012 12 26
2012 2014
128
(b) 2013
2013 10
2013
2013
2013 2013
2013
2013
2013
2013 10 23 2013 0.0001
2013
Long 2017 28 350,877,333
2017
278 2017 12 31 2013
2019 12 31 Mr. Wan Long 2013

2019 6 28
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3.0
2013

350,877,333

Mr. Wan
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(c) IPO
2014 21 1PO 2014
2014 1PO 584,795,555
1 6.20
1PO
1PO 1,883
243
6.66
6.20
10
42
2.06
1PO
2019 2019 12 31 2020 12
31
- 2014
10 518,676,886 45,265,647 4,867,646 5,638,324 462,905,269 24,464,584 708,138 437,732,547
462,905,269 437,732,547
7.06 2019 7.60
2020 12 31 1PO
2019
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2020 2019

165 165
305 66
14
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2020 12 31

2021 11

12 31

41

2017 12

2020 11

2019 12 31
SPV
SPV
2020 12 31
107
2019 12 31
2013
2014
25
26 511
26
26
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2020 2019
9 16
SPV
SPV
SPV 567 2019 651
2019 83 2020
SPV
10
515
14 75
2018
2018 2019

2021
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(a
(b
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
LIBOR
(c

2019 12 31
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2020 2019
16 6
13 15
223 40
28 20
2020 2019
1 +
4 18
9 +
15
12 31
2020 2019
+ +
7 9
5 26
2
+ +
4
14 39
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43
2020 2019
5,139 5,145
84 127
1 +
* 2
85 129
319 337
2 2
321 339
(236) (210)
4,903 4,935
4,903 4,935
36 1 1
3,011 2,982
61 61
221 231
1,609 1,660
4,903 4,935
2019 1 2,934 61 1,213 689 4,898
373 373
12 (375) (375)
8 8
(973) 973
* 48 17 31
* 48 (982) 971 37
2019 12 31 2020 1 2,982 61 231 1,660 4,935
548 548
12 (599) (599)
+ 29 (10) 19
* 29 (10) (G)) (32)

2020 12 31 1 3,011 61 221 1,609 4,903

+
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2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
29.67 26.59 245 220 964 755
19 10 16 13
264 230 980 768
12 31
2020 2019
1,950 1,774
3,406 2,342
(1,536) (1,619)
a7 (46)
(3,650) (2,365)
53 86
911 669
964 755
12 31
2020 2019
10,652 8,693
(9,729) (7,879)
923 814
923 814
677 594
2 5
244 215
923 814
17 18
1,289 631
(533) (198)
(€1)) (337)
722 96
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2020 2019
(121) (192)
31 49
(90) (143)
312 (51)
42 29
(€5D) (1%)
343 (36)
253 (179)
46
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019
—33,883,520,411 100 100
Rotary Vortex Limited (2019
33,883,520,411 )
— 70.33 73.41
3,464,661,213 (2019
3,319,282,190 )
100 100
Smithfield
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Resulis
befare
biological  Biokgical
Falr value fair value
adjustments  adjustments Toaad
UsSmillion US%'million  UEE'million
Revanus . 25,580 — 25,589 241 |
et of Sak (21,06848) 533 {20,563) (19,205 338 BAT
Sross prold 4,403 533 5,028 1B 2 s
stian and saill S 5es f1.8014) = {1.814) 05
(874} - B74) 211 o
— {81131 =11 - o} q
== (2080 2049y
i 4 — T4 59 - 50
3 A7) = T a3 |
Pitr e 1y — {(an
f =] (135} — {135} [144)
N P { Ssantia ] _ 4 4
e of profits of joind vendure 1o 2 12 13
ACFIT E RE TR 1,500 {185) 1315 ¢ X 05
aocalio 11 (283} 40 {223) [EL
FF F HE YE& 1,237 (1453 1,002 11 L |
{9a) 14
[=11]]
a2
a1
343 G
'WH GROUP LMTED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {continued)

Resuls

bedoae
binkogical Bialogical
Tair walue fair valoe

Adjustments  djustments Total
USS' million US¥wmillien UES'million

1.395 1516

B2 1 462

1,092 15

1,018 1,305

1,345

thed (LIS cenis) 5.60 .90

WHGROUP LBITED -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION e

Decamber 31, 202

2020

UsS'million LESS il b

NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Propeerly, plant and equipment 14 5,531 5406
Right-of-use assets 16(a) 684 L1
Biological assels 17 135 137
Gonadwilll 18 2,008 1,955
Inangible assets 19 1,762 1,712
Inddrests in assoeciales 20 47 q2
Inlerests in joint ventures 21 o7 21
Cther receivables 2 57 Bl
Finamncial assets al lain walee theough profit or loss 25 10 10
Pledoed bank deposits 27 11 4
Defamed tax assels 51| 61 (1
(Alver non-current assets. e &34

Total non-current assets 10,881 10,575

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development 15 130 102
Biological assels 17 1.047 1,107
Imvenlories 22 26841 2502
Trade and bills receivables 23 815 1,047
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 24 512 508
Taxalion recoverabis 57

Financial assets at fain value through profit o loss 25 Baz2 447

Pledpedinestricted bank deposits 27 51 41

S CSTRTR ORMIGES 2 R FUS S

Total current assels 7.834 &, M0

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables 2R 813 1,074
Accrued expenses and oller payables bt 2136 1,686
Lease [abilities 1) 103 1068
Taaton payabie 13 G9i
Baodrowings 20 T8E 205
Bank overdrafs 3. 8 ] =
Tolal current liabilities 4,087 3869
MET CURRENT ASSETS 3,767 2838
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LMBILITIES L 1hee 13413

WHGROUPLMMTED  BS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position {continued)

2020 2015

UES million LIE% million

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables 29 2, 18%
Lease labilites 16{b) 373 357
Bormowings i} 1,840 2,187
Dreferred tax liabifities Al 553 G0
Chaferred revens 32 LT 10
Pension liabdlity. and other retirement bonedits a3 S62 ]
Tolal nom-cinrent Rabilities 3,663 3961
NET ASSETS 10,885 9452

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Shaie capital 3 1 1
Reserwes 10,004 B.683
Equity atfribalable lo owners of the Company 10,005 5,684
Hon-controlling interests 260 168
TOTAL EQUITY 10,985 9452

The consolidated linancial stalements on pages 63 lo 182 were approved and authorsed Tor Bsue by the Board of
Directors on March 20, 2021 and are signed on its behall by

Mr. Wan Long Mr. Guo Lijun
Dhirecior Lhrecion

B8 WHGROUP LMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY v

LA LLL

tapnl  loedew

imare f S -

i ey | X0 i T i) e o o | 11 & L
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Farnpameed o4 Sdred lewd fpeEe
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il O Ebtal el & altine o oo 4] &
A ot B A B S8 AR e - -~ - - - - - ~ ! 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020 019

USS million LS4 million

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prodit bedore tax 1,315 2052

Adjustments for
Inberest income (mn (14}
Finance costs 135 144
Share of profits of associales [y {4}
Share of pralits ol joint veniures {12y (11}
Depreciation of property, plant and edquigiment 495 42
Lreprccision of right-ol-use assels 138 130
Less (gaind on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 {1}
Amorisation of intangible assels 8 9
Amartisation of olfer non-current assels 2 —
Fair value gain on flinancial assets al fain walee thiough polil o loss {29y {243
Wiite-down of invenbores 240 53

Loss arsing trom chagges in tair walue bess cosls to sell of
biclogical assels 208 v

Impairment kst on propety, plant and edquipment ] 18

Impaimment kss on intangible assels 2

Impairment kss on right-ofl-use assels 2

Impairment ksses (reversal of impairment losses) on brade

5

receivablis 13 (1)
Share-based payments - ]
Gain on contribution of assets lo a joind venture = {42
Gain on desposal of an associate == (15)
Gain on INSUrance recovery (7 {10}

2,923 2,160

Increase in biological assels {106} (177
Docrease (incréase) in invenionies g8 (241}
Decrease (increase) in rade, bills and other receivables 136 {3)
Increase in properties under developmeant (19} (4]
_Increase in trade and other payables ir i 263
CGASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2,905 1,835
Taxation pasd {418} (233}
JUISIERE prace _ ( (143)
Met cash fhows from oparating activilbes 2,357 1.463

B8 WHGROUP LMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (confinued)

2020 SR

USS million LISE million

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of propety, plant and equipment (551} {00
Acdditions of sighl-of-use assels {21 {23}
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at faln value thiough
profit or boss 1,685 810
Puichase of financial assets at fabr value theough prolit o loss (2,048) {960
Placement ol pledgedfrestricted bank deposits {71} {38)
Withdrawal of pledgedirestnicled bank deposits 58 49
Proceeds rom dispesal o property, plnl and equipment 12 113
Inerest recaived 10 G
Dividends received fnom associales 2 e
Met cash outikny on - acquisition of subsidiares {7 {115
Sefilement of oulstanding considaation for acquisition o subsidiaries (18} —
Acquisition of associates {1 -
Acquisibon of equity inberests in joinl venturaes -—_ {25)
Proceeds om dispossl of an associabe — A8
Procesds rom dispesal of equity infterests in subsidares 13
Receipt of repayment of koans o a joint venfure 18 o
Seftlerment of contingent conskderation m respecl of acquesition
ol a subsidiary = {23
Insurance claimes on property, plant and equipament B !
Purchase of ofber non-cumrent assels {3 (5.5
Proceeds from sales and leaseback of assels & 47
Construction of assets lo be sold | @ {30}
Met cash fows used in vesting activities (963) {F5)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings, net of transaction costs 3,279 2457
Repayment ol barrowings {3,783) (2,454
Dividend paid 10 non-controllng interests (246) {89}
Dividend  paid [589) {3r5)
Nel cash outikaw on acquisition of addiional interests in subsidianies {3) {5403
Proceeds fiom e of shares 19 31
Proceeds from issue of shares of a subsidiarny @06 =
Capalal confribeted by non-confrolkng interests — 3
Lease payments {132) (116}
Met cash flows used in financing achivities (478 {593
= Less than LSS millica

WHGROUPLMMTED B9
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

2020 2019

US%'million LIS G million

el increase in cash and cash equivalents 915 4
Ellect of forelgn exchange rate changes a8 {6}
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year 932 484
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,553 R

ANALYSIS OF THE BALAMCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 1,584 ah2
Bank owardrafts {46}
1,553 hh2

0 WHGRDUP LMITED

171/308



2.1

2.2

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

WH Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman lslands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Mai Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limated (e “Stock Exchange") on August 5,
2014,

The addiess of the repsteded office of the Company and the addiess of its piincipal place of business are
disclosed in the section headed “Corposate Information” i the annual report

The Company acts as an investment holding comgany. The consolidated financial statements. of the Company
for the yean ended December 31, 2020 comgaise the Company and its emlilies (including streclured entifies,
conlrodlied by the Group) (Collechivaly refered to as the “Group") and the Group's inlerests in associates smd
interests in joint ventures, The Group is primarily Involved i the production and sales of packaged meals
and pork. The principal  activiies of ils principal subsidiaries are sel oul in nole 46 to the fmancial
slatemants.

Thi fumctional currency of the Company & the United States Dollar ("LISS7),

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared o acoordance with International Fmancial
Reporting Standads (“IFRSs™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “1ASE") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Hong Comganles Ordinance.

The consolidated Tinancial slalemenls have been prepared under the histofical cost convention, excepd for
biological assets, linancisl assets at falr value fiwough profit or less, certain pon-curent assets and dervative
financial assets and liabilities which have been messuned at fair value These fnancial statements  are
presented o LSS ond all wlues are rounded to the nearest million (LSS milion”) excepd when otherwise
indicated

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated fnancial statements comprise the financial statements of fhe Company and its entities
{inclsding stiuctursd emliies, controlied by the Group) during the year ended December 31, 2020, Conltrol i
achieved when the Group s exposed, or has rghts, o vanable returns from its involvement with the investes
and has the abilily to afiect those relums through i#Bs power over the investee, Specifically, the Group conliols
an investes i, and only i, the Group has:

{a) power over the investee (e, existing rights that give | the currend abdity to direct the relevant activities
al the investae),

{b} exposure, o1 rights, fo vanable relums from its involvement with the investes; and

{e)  Ihe ability lo wse its power over the investee to altect ils rebums,

PO WH GROUP LMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

sl ssdpd Docembar 5], 20

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)
Generally, there is & presumplon thal 8 majonty of voling nghts results in control,. To support this
presumplion and when the Group has less than a majority of the voling or similar righls of an investes, the
Group considers all relovant lacts and circumstances in assessing whether L has power over an investee,
including:

fa)  the contraclial anangement(s) with the other vole hobders of he invesbes;
by rghts ansing lrom other contractual amangements, and
{c} the Group's voling rights and polential voling rights.

The Group re-assesses whelher or not it controls an investea il facts and cicwmstances indicale that there
are changes to one o mose of the thiee elements of contiol, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group oldains control over the subsidiary and ceazes when the Group loses confrol of the subsidiany. Assets,
Ratsilies, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired of diposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated linancial statements from e date that the Group: gains: control until the date Ihe Group ceases
to contiol the subsidiary,

Profit or boss and each component of sther comprehensive income (*0C1"} are attributed to the owness of the
Company and Io the non-contralling interests, even il this resulls in the non-controlling interests having a
defict balance. When necessary, adjustments are made lo the fmancal slatements of subsidiaries 1o brng
their accounting policses into line with the Growp's accounting policies. Al intra-group assets and liatlities,
equily, imcome, cxponses and cash flows relaling to transsclions - between members of the Gioup are
ehrninated In full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests i existing subsklianes thal do not result in the Group losing
control over lhe subsikdianes are accounded lor &5 equity lransactions. The carmying amounls of the Group's
relevant components of equity mcluding reserves and the non-controlling inlerests are adjusted o reflect the
changes in their relalive interests in the subsidianies. Any difference between the amoun by which the non-
controllng interests are adjusted after re-attribulion of the relevand equily component, and the fair valee of
the consederation paid of recened is recognised directly o equity and attnibuted to owners of the Comgany.

When the Group kses control of a subsidiary, a gain or kss 5 recognised in profit or bss and is caleulated
as e ditterence between (1) the agpregate of the tair value of e consideration received and the fair value
ol any retained interest and (i) the camying amounts of the assels {including goodwill} and liakdlities of the
subsidiary aftributabde 1o the owners of the Company. Al amounts previously recognised in olher
comprehensive income In relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as i the Group had directly disposed
of the relafed adsels o liabdlities of the subsidiary (e, reclassilied o prolil or bss o ransfermed direclly to
retained earmings). The fair valee of any investment retained in the fomwer subsidary al the date when
control ks lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition lor subsequent accounting under IFRS 9
Financial nstruments o, when applicable, the cost on instal recognition of an investment in an associabe o
a joind venture.

T2 WHGRDUP LMITED A0 iaL HEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

Yaar ended Decsnber 31

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Growp has: adopled the Conceptual Framawork for Fanancial Repoting ssved on Merch 29, 2018 and
the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial slatements,

Amendments o IFRS 3 Defintion of 8 Business
Amendments o IFRS 9, 1AS 39 Intevest Rale Benchmark Relorm
and IFRS 7
Amendment to IFRS 16 Cowd-18-Related Rerd Concessions {early adopted)

Amendments 1o 1AS 1 and 185 8 Definition of Matasial

The nature-and the impact of the Conceptual Frarmework for Fmancial Reporting ssved on March 29, 2018
and the revised IFRSs are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on March 29, 2018

Concepiual Framework for Financis! Reporting ksved on March 29 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework™) sels
oul @ comprehensive set of concepts Tor inancial reporting and standand sefling. and provides guidance Tor
preparers of financial statements in developing consistent accounting policies and assistance o all parties fo
understand and mbtarpred the standards, The Conceplual Framework mcludes new chapbers on measuremeant
and reporting inancial peiformance, now guidance on the derecopnilion of assets and labsies, and updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assels and Kabiisties, It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncerlainty in linancal reporting. The Conceptual Framework B nod a standard, and none
ol the concepts contained therein overide the concepts or requirements in any standard, The Conceptual
Framewaork did nod have any significant impact on the fnancial position and perfformance of the Group.

Amendments o IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments o IFRS 3 clanfy and provide additional guidance on the definition of 8 business. The
amemdments clarly that for an integrated sel of activities and assets to be conskdered a business, o must
include, al 8 minimum, an inpul and a substantive process thal logether significantly contribuie 1o the ability
1o create oulpul. A business can exist wilhoul including all of the nputs and processes necded o creae
outputs. The amendments remove: the assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquining
e busimess and continue 1o produce outpuls. Instead, the locus s on whether acquired inpuls and acquined
sibstantive processes togethed significantly contribute to the ability to create cntpuls. The amendments have
also marrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods of services provided 1o customers, investment
income of odher mcome from ordinery aclivities. Furthermore, the amendmenls provide guidance 1o assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and Introduce an optional falr value concentration test bo permi
a simplified sssessment of whether an acouired sel of activities and assels s nol a8 basiness. The Group has
apphed the amendments prospectively o ransactons of other events that cccumed on of after Janary 1,
2020, The amendments did nol have amy impact on the financial position and perlormance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, 185 39 and IFRS T Inferest Rale Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues affecting linancial reporting in the period bedore
the replacement of an cxstng leresl abe benchmork with an alternative sisk-free e ("RFR™). The
amendments provide temporary rellefs which enabe hedge accounting to continue dunng the pemnod o
uncertainty before the introduction of the altemative RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies 1o
provide additional information to investors aboul thedr hedging relationships which are ditectly affected Ly
these uncertainties. The amendments did not. have any significant impact on the financial position: and
pertormance of e Groug

CHT U WHEROUFLMIMED T2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

sl ssdpd Docembar 5], 20

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES [continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Relafed Rent Concessions

Amendment 1o IFRS 16 provdes a praclical expedient for lessees lo ablect not to apply lease modiication
accounking for renl concessions anising a5 a-direct consequence of the COMID-19 pandemic, The practical
cxpedient applies only to renl concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandeméc and only if (i}
the change in lease payments resulls i revised consideration for the kease that is substantially the same as,
of less than, the consideration for the lesse immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments aflects only payments oniginadly due on or beloere June 30, 2021; and (i) there is no substantive
change 1o other terms and condilions of the lease. The amendment (s effective for annual pereods Begnning
on of alter June 1, X020 with earfier apphcation permitted and zhall be applied retrospectively, The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the financksl position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to 1AS 1 and I1AS 8 provide a new delinition of material The new definfion states that
mlormation s material il omitling, mésstating of obsouring it could reasonably be expecled fo influence
decsions that the primasy users ol general purpose linancial statements make on the basis of those linancial
staterments. The amendments clardy that materality will depend on the naluwe o magnilude of information, o
baoth. The amendments ded nol have amy significant impact on the: financeal position and performance of e
Group.

24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
Thie Group has nol applicd the following new and revised IFRSs; that hene been issued but are nol yel
effective, in these financial stalements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference fo the Conceptual Framework’

Amendmends to IFRS 9, |AS 359 frferest Rale Benchmark Reform — Phase 2*
and IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

Armendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribubion of Assels between an Invesior and s Associste
145 28 o Jodnl Venture®

IFRS 17 lrigurance Confracts?

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance: Contracts’*

Amendments to 1AS | Classification of Liabiifies as Current or Noan-current?

Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure of Accotmting Palicies?

Amendments to 1A 8 Disclosure of Accouriing Extimates’

Amendments to IAS 16 Froperly, Plant and Equipment: - Procesds befpre Inlended Use?

Amendments to 1AS 37 Onerous Contracls — Cost of Fulfiting 8 Contract®

Annival improveiments fo IFRS Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9. llustrative Examples accompanying
Standards 2018-2020 IFRS 16, and IAS 41°

Efective fof annual pariods tbeginning on or e Janeary 1, 2021

E¥ective for annual perods beginning on o afier January §, 2022

Efection for mamual percds Beginning on of st Jamaey | 2003

Mo fnandsion’ efachios date yal dedsd maned. bul svalabla for sarly adophics

AE 3 comsequence of b amerdments 1o IFRS 17 sesed in June 3020, IFRS 4 was senenced & ol B WMpOmTy snemplon
il perrmits Funeds 1o aply A5 39 mnther than IFRS 9 f anncnl peisds beginning bedole Janaary |, 2023

R

Further information aboul those [FRSS that are expected to have an impact on the Group upon adoplion is
described below, Whilst management has pedomed an assessment of the estimated impacts of these
standards, thel assessment is based on the mloomation: currently available to the Group. The actual mpacts
upon adeption could be different to those below, depending on addilional reasonable and supponable
information being made available to the Group at the time of applying the standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

Yaar seded Decenbar 31

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{comtinued}
Amendments lo IFRS 3 Reference lo the Conceptual Framework
Amendments o IFRS 3 are mitended o seplace a releience Lo the previous Sramework Or the Propecation
ard Fresentation of Fingncal Stafements with a. reference lo the Concepfus! Framewok for Financisl
Reporting issued on March 29 2018 without significantly changing #s requirements. The amendments also
add to IFRS 3 an execplion 1o ils recognilicn principh: Tor an entlly to reder fo the Conceplual Framework o
determine whal constitutes an assel of a liability, The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were mcuned sepanalely mther than
assumed noa business comblnation, an enlily appling IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments claily that contingent assels
do nol qually for recogmiion at the aogquisition date, The Gioup edpects 1o adopt the amendments
prospectively from January 1, 2022 Since the amendmenls apply prospectively 1o business combdnations for
which the scquisition dale & on or allel e dale of tast application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of fransition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 [nferest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phaze 2

Amendments o IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 1FRS 16 address mssues nod deall with in the provious
amendments which affect financial repoating when an existing interest rate benchmark s replaced with an
altermative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to aliow the effective interest rate fo
be updated without adjesting the canying amount when accounting lor changes in the basis for determining
the contraciual cash llows of linancial assels and Habiliies, il lhe change [s & direct consequence o the
interest rate banchmark refoem and the new basis lor determining the contractual cash llows ks economically
equivalent to the previous basis mmedislely preceding. the change. o addition, the amendments permi
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform 1o be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation withoul the hedging relaticnahip being discontinued. Ay gains of losses thal could anse on
transition are dealt with through the nommal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ingflectiveness, The amendments also provide a temporary reliel to enlities from having 1o meet the
separately identifiabde requirerment when an RFR is designabed as a risk component. The reliel allows an
enlity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately identiiable requirement is mel, provided
the enlity reasonably cxpects the RFR sk component o become separately identifiable within the next 24
memths. Furthenmore, the amendments require an enlily lo dischose additional information to enable users of
fimnancial stalaments o understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity's fmancial
nstrements and risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for annueal penods begannmg on o
after Jlanuary 1, 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, bul enlities are not required to restate the
comparalive information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings denominated i USYE and  foreign
cuinencies based on vanoels wterbank offered mtes a5 al December 31, 20200 I the inerest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future petied, the Group will apply this practical expedient upen the
madification of these bofrowings when the “economically equivabnl”™ oriterion is mel and expects that no
signicant maodilication gain or boss will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 Sale or Condrilintion of Assels belween an lnvesior and fis
Associate or Joimt Vemiure
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsisiency between the requisements in IFRS 10 and in
IAS 28 in deasling with the sale o conlribution of assels between an mvestor and &5 associale o joant
venlure. The amendments requing a full wecognition of a gain or less when the sale or contribution of assels
betwesn an investor and is associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assels that do not constilute a business, a gain o loss resulling from the ransaction s recognised in the
ivestor's profit or oss only to the exent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joinl venture.
The amendments are o be apphed prospedively.

IFRS 17 lnsorance Conlfracts

In May 2017, the IASE issued IFRS 17 inswance Confracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for
isurance contracts covermg recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, Once ellechive, IFRS
17 will replace IFR5 4 Mnswance Contracts thal was kmswed i 2005, IFRS 17 applies to all types of
nsurance contiacts (e, [le, non-lle, duecl insurance and re-mmasance), regardless of the type of entithes
that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments. with discretionary  panticipation
features, A lew scope exceplichs will apply. The overall ebjective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting
model for msurance confracts that B more uselul and consistent for Bswers. In contrast 1o the requirements
im 1FRS 4, which are largely based on grandfiathering previous kecal accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive moedel for insurance contracts, covering. all relevant accounting aspects, The core of IFRS 17
I the general model, supplemented by

. a specilic adaptation for contiacts with direct participation festures (the variable fee approach)
. a simpliied approach (the premium allocation approach) mainky Tod shor-duralion contracls

IFRS 17 & aHective for feporting periods beginning on o alter January 1, 2023 with comparative lgures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on of before the
dale it fiwst applies [FRS 17, This standard is nol expecled to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements,

Amendments to IFRS 17 fnsorance Confracls

In June 2020, the IASE issued amendments 1o IFRS 17 to address concermns and implementation challenges
that were kentified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendmeents defer the dabe of initial application of
IFRS 17 {ncorpoating the amendments) o annual reporting penods: beginning on o afles January 1, 2025,
At the sarme time, the [ASE amended IFRS 4 1o exdend the temporary exemplion that permils insusers o
apply 1AS 39 mther than [FRS 9 for annual periods beginning before lansary 1, 2003
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2.4 ISS5UED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{eontinued
Amendments lo IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-current
Amendments 1o IAS 1 danly the equaremcents loi clissitying  habilibes a5 currenl o non-cument. The
amendments specily that if an entity's right lo defer settlement of a Rabilty is subject 1o the entity complying
with specified conditions, ihe entity has a rght 1o deler selilement of the Rability at the ond of the reporting
perad @ i comples with those conditions al thal date. Classification of a habilily is unaffected by the
likedingod that the entity will exescie its fght o dafer seftlement of the Kability, The amendments also clarify
the situations that are considered a settlerment of a Babilty, The amendments are allective for annueal paniods
beginning on or alter January 1, 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. Earller applcation | permitied
The amendments are nol expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial siatements.

Amendments lo IAS 16 Properly, Plant and Equipmreni: Proceeds hefore Intended Use

Amendments 1o IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cosl of an ilem of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from sefing tems produced whilte banging that asset o the lecation and condition
necessany for it o be capable of opemiing in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
iccopnises he procecds fiom selling any such lems and the cost of those ilenm, 0 poolil or loss. The
amendments are effective for annusl periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and must be applied
telrospectively Lo lems of poperty, plant and equipment made available lor use on o after the baginning of
the earliest period presented In the financial statements in which the entity fist applies the amendmenis
Earlier application is permitied. The amendments are nol expected 1o have any significant impact on the
Group's Tinancial statements.

Amendments to IAS 3T Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfillimg a Contract

Amendments to 1AS 37 clanty that lor the purpose of assessing whether a confracl s onerous under 1AS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the confrack comprises the cosls that relale directly o the confract. Costs that relate
directly 1 a contract include beth the ncrémental costs of fullilling that conteact {eg., direct labour and
malerkak) and an allocation of other costs that relale directly to Tullilling that contract (e, an allocation of
the deprociation charge fof an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contiac! management and supeivision costsl General and adminkstiative costs do noll relate directly to a
contract and are exchuded unbess they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract The
smerdments ame offective for annual periods beginning on o alter Janwery 1, 2022 and shall be applied 1o
confracts for which an entity has nol yel fullilled &l its obligations at the beginning of he annual reporting
periad in which it first applies the amendments: Earlier application & permitted, Any cumulalive effect of
initially applyng the amendments shall be recopnised a5 an adjustment Lo the opening equity at the date o
iniial application withoul restating the conwparative information. The amendments are nol expected 1o have
any significant impact on the Group’s linancial stalements.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
Annual Improvements fo IFRS Standards 2018-2020
Annual Improversents to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets oul amendments o IFRS 1, IFRS 9, [Nustative
Examples acoompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amandments that are expected to be applicabie
to the Group are as ollews:

. IFRS 9 Financesl nstrevments: claifies the fees that an entity indudes when assessing whether the tenms
of a new or modified financial Bability ace substantially different from the tems of the omginel financil
Eability. These fees Include cnly these paid o recelved between the borrower and the lender, including
fecs pasd o received by either the bowmower of kender on the other’s behall. An enlity applies the
amendment to linancial labidites that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of ihe
annual reporting pericd in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendiment is affective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2062 Earlier application is permilted. The amendment
B nob expeched to Iave a smnilicant impact on the Group's financel statements.

. IFRS 16 [egses removes e diusteation of payments from the lesson elating to leasehold impiovements
o lustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16, This removes polential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16,

- 145 41 Agricwffure: removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 that entibes exclude cash flows
for taxation when messuring the 1 value of assels within the scope of 1AS 41, An entily applies the
amendment prospectively bo falr value measurements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill
Aoquasitions of busingsses are accounted for using the acquisibon melhod. The conssderation transferred in
bassiness combination |s messured at fair valee, which s calculated as the sum of the acquisktion date fakl
walues of the assels transfened by the Group, [@bilities incured by the Group 1o the lormer owners o the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exclange for conliod of the acquires,  Acquasition-
related costs are recognised in profil or bss as mouned,

The Group determanes. that i has aoquired & business when the acquired set of aclivilies and assels noludes
an inpi and a substantive process that together significantly contribute 1o the abality o create outputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquited and the Habilities assumed are recognised at their tair
value, excepl thal:

L] deferred tax assels of labilities, and assels o liabdities related o employee benalil amangements are
recognised and ineasured in accoidance with 1AS 12 fneamie Tades and 1AS 19 Empioves Benefits
respaciively;

. lizbalities of equity instruments related to share-based payment anangements of the scquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group enlered info to replace share-based payment arangements
of the acquires are measured n sccordance with IFRS 2 Share-tased Payrment at the acquisition date
{see the accounting policy below); and

» assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sabe in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Astels Hald for Sale and Dsconfinued Operations aré measured in accordance with thal standard.

Goodwill s measured as the excess of the sum ol the consideration transfered, the amount of any non-
contiodling nberests m the scquires, and the Eir value of the acquirer’s previously beld equity intesest in the
acquires (f any) over the nel amount of the identifiable assels acquired and the liabilities assumed as al
aoquistion date. I, aflles re-assessment, the net amount of the idenlifable assels acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration bansferred, the amount of any non-condrelling Interests in the
acquites and the fair value of the acquirer's previoesly held inferest in the acquiges (i any), the excess is
recognised immediately i profit or loss as a bargam puichase gain.

Mon-controlling mlerests that are present ownership interests and enfitle their holders o a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiany's net assets. in the event of liquidalion are imbally measured eillver at fair walue o
al the mon-controlfing interests” proportionate share of the recogniced amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
nel astels. The choice of measuement basis is made on a3 ramssclion- by-trnsaclion: basis,

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carmied al cost as established al the date of acquisition of
the business {see the accounling policy above) less any accumuliled impairment besses, o any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating unlis
{"CELL"Y {or group of CGLIs), thal it expected to benell from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level al which the goodwill s menitored lor internal. management purposes and o
larger than an operating segmaenl,

A CGU {or- group of CGLUS) o which: goodwill has been allecated & tested for impasment annwally, or mome
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill artsing on an acquisition i a
reporting period, the CGU (o group of CGLIE)Y 1o which goodwill has been allecated & lested for impairment
before the end of that reporting penod. I the recoverable amount is kess than s camying amouant, the
impainment kss s allecated first o reduce the camang amount of any goodwill and then to the olher assels
on a pro-rala basis based on the canying amount of each asset in tha unit {or group of CGLIs)

On disposal of the releant CGLEL (ke aliributable amount of goodwill B mcluded n the determination of the
amaunt of profil o1 loss on disposal
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an assel or paid to transfer a8 labilily in an orderly
transaction between markel participants al the measurement date. The fEr valie meastrement B besed on
the presumgdion thal the hansaction lo sell the assel or Uansier the labdity takes place either in the
principal markel for the assel o lability, or in the absence of a princapal market, in the most advantageous
markel for the assel or liability, The principal o The mosl advantageoos market must e accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a Hability & measured using the assumptions that market participants
would wse when micing the asset or [ability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
inherest

A faar value measurement of a nen-linancial assel fakes into account a market pamcipants ability o generate
eoonomic benefils by using the assef in s highest and best use or by selling il o another market paricipant
that would use the asset in its highest and best usa.

The Group uses ahation techniques that are appropriale in the dricumslances and for which sufficient data
are available 1o measure far value maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and menimising the use
ol unobservable inputs.

Al assets and Rabilities for which fair walue B measured of disclosed in the financial stalemenls are
categorised within the fair wlue hierarchy, descnibed as lollows, based on the lowest level input that is
skmificant 1o the fabr value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in adive markets for identical assels or Eabilities;

Level 2 — based on valmtion lechniques lor which the fowest level inpul thal & signilicant to the fak
walua measurement is obsesvable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 = based on owluation bechnicuees for which the lowest level inpat that s signiticant o the Tai

wvalue measurement s uncbsenable,

For assels and labiities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basks, the Group
defermines whether transfers have occumed bebween levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level mput hat is significant to the fair value messurement a5 a wholel at the end of
each repodting penod

B0 WHGRDUP LMITED A0l iaL HEF

181/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

bei 31

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Related parties

A party i considered to be related to the Group if;

{a} the parly & a person of 8 close member of that person's family and that person
{i¥  has controd o1 joint control over e Group:

{ily  has significant inlluence over the Grougs; o

{il)  is a member of the key managemant personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Groug;

(b} the party & an entity where any of the following conditions apphes:
{i}  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

{ii})  one enlity 35 an associate of joent ventore of the other entity {or of a parenl, sulbsidiary o lellow
subsidiary of the other entityl;

{ii}  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
(i) one enlily = A pand ventore of a thind entity and the othes entily is an sssociste of the thind entsty.

(v} the enlity is a post-employment benclil plan for the benefit of emplyees of either the Gioup of
an entity related to the Group;

il)  the entity i contiolled o jeintly controlled by a person identilied n (a);

{vil] 8 person ddentilled In (aXi} has signilicant inluence over the entity of is a member of the key
inanagenent personnel of the entily (of of & parent of the entity); and

{villy the entity, o any member of a gioup of which it 5 a part, provides key management personnel
sanvices to the Group o to the parand of the Group.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An mssociate is an enlily over which the Group has signilicant influence. Signilicant influence is the power lo
participate in the financial and operating policy decssions of the investes bt 15 not control or joint control
over those policies

A joint venture s a8 point arrangement whereby the parties that have foint control of the armangement have
rights to the net assets of the jpin amangemeant. Joint control s the contractually agreed sharing of control of
ai aranpement, which exists only whien decisions aboul the réevant activitles require the unanimous consent
of the parties shawing control.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures {confinued)

The results and assets and Eabilities of associates and joinl ventures. are incorporated i the consobdated
linancisl statements using the equity mmethod of accounting. Adpestments ae made o bring Mo Rne any
dissimilar accounting: policies that may exist, The finencial statements of assoctles of joint venures used for
equily method accounting purposes ame prepated using unilofm accounting policies as thase of the Group o
like bansactions and evenls in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an imvestment in an
associate o 3 joint vendure i initially recognised in the consolidated statement of linancial position a1 cost
and adjusted therealter o pecognise the Group's share of the profit or boss and other comprehensive ncome
of the associale of jolnt venture. When the Group's share of ksses ol an assoclale of joinl venlure exceeds
the Group's inferest in thal associate or joinl venture (which inchedes any long-term interests that, in
substance, foom part of ihe Group's nel mvestment in the associate o joint ventured, e Group discontinees
recognising its share of further bosses. Additional losses are recognised enly 1o the exdent that the Group has
ncuried legal of constroctive oblggations of made payinents on behall of [hat associabe of foind veinture,

An investment in an associate of a point veniure is accounted for using the equity method from the dale on
which the mvestes becoimes an assodate of a joinl venlure, OR acquistion of the investment in an sssociale
of a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identiliable assels and liabdities of the investee s recognised as goodwill, which s included within the
carying amount of the investment,

Any oxcess of the Group®s share of the net faic valee of he idenfifable assels and liatdlities @nd conlingent
liabil&ies over the cost of acquisition, afler reassessment, @5 recosmised immediately In prodfit o loss in the
peviod in which the investment is acouired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evdence thal the interest in an associale o a joint venture
may b imgedired. When any  objective evidence exists, the enlite camning amount of the investment
(including poodwilll is tested for impaiment in accordance wilh 1AS 36 impairment of Assefs a5 a single
assel by comparing its recovarable amount (higher of valee in use and lair valee less costs of disposal) with
s carying amount. Any impairment kes recognised forms parl of the carrving amount of the investmenl.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accodance with 1AS 36 1o the exdent that the
recoverable amount of the mvestimen! subsequently Incredases,

When the Group ceases lo have significant influence over an assecisle or point condrol over a joint venlure, i
s accounted for as a dsposal ol the entite nterest i the Investee wilth a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit of loss. If an investment In an associate becomes an investment in & joinl venture o vice
versa, the retained inderes! s nod remeasured, In ofher cases, the Group messures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value, The difference between the canmying amount of the asseciate o jent
verdure and the lai value of any relained nberest and any proceeds from dispesing the relvant mterest in
the #ssociate of joint venlure is included in the determination of the gain or loss on dsposal of Uhe associgle
of pant venlure. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts  peviously recognised in ofher
comprelensive income in ralation to thal associate o joinl venture on the same basis as would be required
i that associate of joinl venture had diectly dicposed of the related assels o labdliies. Theretore, it a gain
or loss previasly recognised in other comgeehensive moome by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profil or kss on the disposal of the related assets or labilties, the Group reclassilies the gain
of loss from equity to profit o loss (a5 a reclassilication sdjustment) when the equity method s
discontinuesd,
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates and joint ventures (continuaed)
When a group enlity fransacts with an associale or joint venture of the Group, prolits and losses resulting
fiom the lansaclions with the associate of joinl venlure are iecognised in the consolidaled fnancial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are nol related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from comtracls with customers

Revenue from contracts with customens is recognised when conbrol of goods or seraces is emstared 1o the
customers al an amount that reflects: the considesation to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods of services.

Control of the goods o services |s ransferred over time if the Group's performance:
» provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultanecusly by the customer;
L4 cresles of enhances an assel that the customer controls as the Group pfoimes; of

. does nol creats an assel with an allemalive use 1o the Group and s Group has an enforceabse right
to payment for performance completed to date,

I control of the assel translers over me, revenue is recopnised over e period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
al a point in lme when the customes obtains controd of the assel

The progress towards complete satistaction of the perfformance obdigation is measured based on the Group's
clforts o inpuls o the sabisfaction of the pesfoomance obligation relative to the lotal expecled elfods o
inpants,

Depending on the terms of the contract and the lws thal apply 1o the contract, the conbrol of the goods o
serices may be transfemed over ima or ab a poinl in time.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of consideralion i estimated 1o
which the Group will be entitled In exchange for ransferring the goods of services 1o the customes. The
variable consideration 5 estimated at contract mception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
sighificant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue  recognised will nod ocour when the
associated uncetainly wilh the vamble considemtion is subsequently resolved,

When the contract contains a linancing component which prowdes the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the tansfer of goods of serices b the customer fof more than one year, fevenisg is measured a
the present value of the amound receivable, discounted using the discount ate that would be reflected in a
separate linancing transaction between the Growp and the customen #t conbract inception. Whan the. contract
conlains a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
o year, revenoe recognied under the contract includes the nlerest expense accreted on the confrect
labslity wnder the effective interest method, For a contract where the pencd between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods of services i one year o Jess, the transaction price is ol
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinued)
Revenue recognition (conlinued)
Revenue from contracts wilh costomars (confinued)
Revenue from the sale of meal and rebted produects 5 recognised al the point i e when control of e
assel & transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the meal and related products.

Reveniie from e sale of propesbes is recopnised al e poinl In e when the puichasers obdained e
physical possession of the legal title of the completed property and the Gioup has the present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration & probable.

Payment is genemally due within 30 o 90 days from delivery, excepl for new customers, whese payment in
advance is normally required, Some contracts for the sales of meat and related products provide  customers
with & right of retum and rebates which give rise to varable consideration subject to conslaint.

Service income B recognised over time when services are rendered becawse the customer sinultanecusly
recaives and consumes the benell provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Intenest income s récognised on an accrual basis wsing lhe eflectie interest method by applying the mbe
that exactly discounts the estimated fulure cash receipts over the expected life of the financial mstrument or
a shotter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financia] assab

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right o receive payment has been established, it s
probable thal the economic benelits associaled with the dividend will flow 1o the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contracl assels

A contract assel is the nght to conssderalion in exchange lor goods or senvices transferred 1o the customes. 1R
the Group pedois by ranslaming goods of services 1o a customer before the customer pays considerstion
or before payment is due, a contract asset s recognised for the earmed consideralion that s condatiomal,
Confract assebs are subject o impainment assessment, details of which are incloded in the acoounting
podicke for impament of inancial assets.

Contracl liabilities
A contract liabdity is recopnised when a payment is recelved o 8 payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
A customer belore the Group Wransiers the related goods o services, Conlract Eabiliees are recognised as

revenue when the Group pedormes under the confiact (e, transfers control of the related goods of sersces
b the customear),
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Conftract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventorses, propedies under development, properly, plant amnd
equipment aind ntangible assets, cosls incuired Lo Wllil & conlacl with a costomer e capitalised as an
asset it all of the following criteria are mal:

fa) U costs relate diecctly to A eontract of 6 arn anticipated contracd thal the entity can speciically identiy.

(b} the cosls generale or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satistying (or in continuing o
=atisty) performance obligations in the fulure; and

{c)  the costs are expected to be recovered

The capitalised contract costs ae amortised and chaged to profit or loss on a systematic bass that is
consistent with the ransfer to the customer of the posds or services o which the assel relates. Other
contrac] costs are expensed as incurred:

Right-of-return assets

A right-of -returm assel s recognised Tor e right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customens,
The assel s measured at the former canrying amount of the goods lo be refurned, less any expected cosls to
recovier the goods and any potential decreases in (he value of the relwned goods. The Group updsles the
measuremenl of the assel o any revsions to the expected level of relurns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returmed goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund Rability s recognised for the obligation to refund some o all of the consideration recened {or
receivable) from a customer and s messured at the amoum the Group ullimately expects it will have 1o
reburn b the customer. The Group updates ils estimates of relund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction prical al the end ol each reporting period.

Leases

The Group assesses al contract mceplion whether a8 contracl i, of contains, & kease A conbiac s of
contains, a kease if the confract conveys the right to conlrol the use of an identilied assel for a period of Hime
In exchange (or consideratbon

Group as a lesses

The Group apples a single recognilion and messurement approach for all leases, excepl for shori-term
leases, The Group recognises bease labilities to make lease payments and right-ol-use assels regresenting the
nght to use the undedying assels
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases {conlinued)

Grosp a5 a lessee (continued)

{a)  Right-ol-use assels
Right-of-uze ascets are recognised at the commencement date of the lesse (lhat & the date the
underlying @ssel i avadable for use). Righl-of-wse assels are measured a8l cosl, bess any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusied for any remeasurement of lease Rabiliies, The
cost of right-ol-use assets includes the amount of lease labiltios recognised, initial direct costs
meurred, amnd bease payments made atl or belore the commencement dale less any lease incenlives
recelved. Righl-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shofer of the lease fenms
and the estimated useiul lives of the assels as follows:

Leasehold land more than 1 year o 49 years
Buikdings mare than 1 year o 23 years
Motor vehickes more than 1 year fo 9 years

Plant, machmeny and equipment maore than 1 year o 14 years
Contiact lagms e than 1 year 1o 14 yesis

Il ownership of the leased asset ransbers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculbted using the estimaled useful He of the
assel

When the righl-of-use assels relates 1o inlerests in leasehold land held as propertees under
development, Ihey are subsequently measured al e kwer of cost and ned realsable walue in
accordance with the Group’s policy foe “Propedies under development”™.

(B Lease Salwines

Lease liabifities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease &l the present valee of lease
pevmients 1o be mode over the kease teame The ke payments incude lixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a ale, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value guaramess. The lease
payments akso nchide the exercise price of a puichase option rexsonably certain to be exeicised by the
Group and payments of penalbes for termination of a lease, ¥ the lease term reflects. the Group
exercising the option o terminate the kease The vanable kease paymaents that do nol depand on an
mdex or & rate are recognised as an expense in the period i which the event o condition that trigrers
the: payment occus.

In calculating the presenl value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental burowing rate at the
kease commencement dale because the interest rate imglicit in the lease = not lEﬂtth' determinable,
Arter e commencement date, the amount of lease liatdlities s increased o reflect the accretion of
mterest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the canying amaount of lease Rabilities
B remesured o e is o modification, & change in he lesse bem, @ change in lease payments (eg.,
a change to futwe lease payments resulting from a change in an index o rate) of a change in
essessment ol an oplion 10 purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease labilities are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Growp as a lesses {continued)

fel  Short-lerm feases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to #s sho-term leases of baikdings,
pland, machinesy and equipment and motor vehicles, (that s (hoese leases that have a lease lerm of 12
manths o less from the commencement dale and do nel contfain a purchase oplion). Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised a5 an expense on a straight-line basis over the bease term

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, |l classifies al lease inceplion (or when there & 3 ledse modification) each
ol s leases as elthes an operating lease of a imance lease,

Lesses in which the Group doss nol Iransfer substanbiafly all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership ol
an assel are classified as operating leases. When a contract containg bease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the confract lo smach component on a relative stand-alone sefling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on 8 simight-line base over (e lesse lerms and is recognised in
“(Hher income” in profit of loss. Initial direct costs incured in negoliating and arranging an opesating kease
are added 1o the camying amount of the leased assed and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
a4 rental come Contingent ienls aré recopnised 88 revenue i the penod in which hey aie ened.

Leases thal transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental lo ownership ol an underlying assel lo
the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for use in the production o supply of goods or
seraces, o for admimistrative purposes other than properties. under construction, a5 described below, ane
stated in the consolidated slalement of financial posiBion al cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
amnd subsequant accumulbaed impairment losses, iF any.

Freahold land is mt depreciated,

Depreciation s recognised so as to write ofl the cost ol itemns of property, plant and equipment other than
treehold land and properties under constrechon less thei resikdual valees over ther estimated useful lives,
uging the straight-line melhed, The estimated uselul lives, residual valies and depreciation method are
eviewed at the end of each reporting pediod, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on the
Tollowing basis:

Busdings 10 to 40 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 to 20 years

Construction i progress {or production, supply o administrative purposes are camied at cosi, less any
recoprised  mpairment less. Costs include professional fees and, lor qualilying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised m accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to the appropriate
calegorios of property, planl and equipment when compleled and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
hese assets commences when the assets are ready lon theli nlended use
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipneent (Confinuad)
An itemn of property, planl and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fubure economic
benefits are expecled o arse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or kss arising on the
derecognition of an itemn of property, plant and equipment determined as the difference Betwesn the sabes
proceeds and the canrying amount of the assel & recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properes under development are stated al the lower of cost and net realisabde value and comprse land
costs, construction costs, borrowing cosls, prolessional fees and olher costs directly attributable o such
properties incumed during the development period.

Propesties under development are classified as cument assels unless the consbuction period of the relevant
property development project s expected to complele beyond the nomal operaling cycle. On completion, the
properties are ranstened o completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are siated al the lower of cost and el realisable value. Cosl is
determined by an apportisnment of (ol land and construction costs attributable to the unsold properties, Met
realisable value is defermined by relerence bo lhe sales of proceeds of properies sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable seling expenses, @ by management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions

Borrowing costs

Baarowing cosls directly attributable to the acquisition, constiuction o production of qualibying assels, which
are assels thal necessarily take a substantial period of lime to get ready for thelr inlended wse or sale, ane
added 1o the cost of thoss assels until such time as the assats are substantially ready for their mtended wse
o Sale

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or ss in the period in which they are incuired.

Biological assels

Biological assels represent live hogs and poultry, which fall info fee calegaries: suckling hogs, nursery hogs,
finksher hogs, brolleis and beeeding stock (hogs and poultivk, They are messured on iniiad recopnition and at
the end of each reporing period ab ther tair vahoe less costs 1o sell A gain or loss ansing on iniial
recognition of bickogical assel al fair value less costs o sell and tiom a changa in lair value less costs lo sell
al a bidogical assel s incleded in profil or loss for the period m which & arses.

The agricultural produce (e cacass) harvested from the bickegical assets s measured at #s lair vabee less
costs to sell al the point of harvest Such measuremen! is the cost at lhal date when apghing 1AS 2
Inventosies upon initial recognition. A gain of loss arising from-agriculiural produce at the point of harvest at
fair walue less costs bo sell is inchuded in prolt o bess for the petiod inowhich it anses,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a besiness combination

Intangitle assets acquired in a business combinalion and recognised separately from goodwill are nitially
recognised at their fair value al the acquisition date (which i regarded as their cost)

subsequent to indwal recognition, nlangible assels acquited ina business combinalion with finfe uselol lives
are epodted af cosl less accumulated amortisation and any accumubled impanment losses, on he same
basis s intangible assels thal are acquied segarately. Allemnatively, nilbagible assels acquited in a business
combimation with indefinile wuseful bves are camied ol cost less accumulated impamment bsses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impaimment losses on tangitde and intamggible assels below)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets {confineed)
Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangeible assets walhi linite uselol Bues thal are acquited scparately are Gamied al cost bess sccumulated
amatisation and any accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation for intangible assets with finie usedul lives
is recogmised on @ sbaight-ling basis over thar estmated uselul Bves. The esltimated wselul life. and
amwnlisation method are reviewed sl the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective’ basis.

Internally-generated intangible assels — Research and development expendiiure
Expendifure an research activilies s recognised as an expense in the pariod in which it s incurned.

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from developmend activities (o from the development phase of
an internal propect) i recognised il, and only i, all of the following have been demonsirated:

. the technical feasibdity of completing the intangible astel so that it will be available lor use or sk
- the intention 1o complate and is ability and intention o use or sell the assel;
. howe the intangible asset will generate probabde luture economic benefits;

. e avaslabibly of adequate technical, Tinancial and olher resources to compdels the development and 1o
use of sell the intangible asset: and

. e abdity to measure relably the egpendilure atiributable to the intangibde assel dwing its development.

The amount Initially recognised for nternally-generated miangible assets is the sum of the cxpenditure
incurred from the date when the infangible asset first meels the recognition criteria fisted above. Where no
internably-generated mtangible assel can be wecognised, development expenditure s recognised in prodit or
loss b the period in which it is incumed.

Derecognition of intangihle assels

An inlangible asset s derecognised on disposal, or when no fulure econsmic benefits are expected Trom use
of disposal. Gains and besses ansing from derecognition of an intangible assel, messured as the didleréncs
between the met disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel, &e recognised in profit of loss
when lhe assal is derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories age sladed ol the kower of cosl of the deemed cost fof agriculture produce harvested from
biological assels and nel realisable value, Cost & calculated using the welghted-average method
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
ol goodwill above)

A the end of each reporling period, the Growp feviews the caiying amounts of 25 tangible and intangible
assels with finite useful lives o determine whether there is any indication that those assels have suffered an
mmpadrment boss, Il any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the sssel B oestimaled in order to
defermine the extent of the mmpairment boss, i any. When it & nol possible 1o estimste the reooverabhes
amount of an indiddual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGL o which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consislent basis ol allecation can be entiied, coporate assels me akso
allocated to vdividieal CGUs, o olhenwise they are allocated o the smallest group ol CGUs for ‘which a
reasonable and consistent allacation basis can ba identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives and intangibde assels not yel awilable for Ose are lested for
mpairmeant at least annually, and whenevar there s an indication that thoy may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and valee in use. In assessing valug in
v, e extimated fubure cash fows ae discounted o their present walue wsing a pre-fax dscount mate that
reflects current market assessments of the bme value of money and the rsks specilic 1o the asset fon which
the estmmates of fulure cash flows have nol been adpesbed.

I the recoverable amout of an assel (or a CGUY is estimated to be less than ils carmying amount, the
carrying amaount of the assel {or a CGUY s reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impaiment
Iloss, the impaimment boas is alocated fiost to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill (il applicable) and
then to the ofher assels on a pro-ala basis based on the canying amount of each assel in the unit. The
carrying amount of an assel is nol reduced below the highest of RBs lair value less costs of disposal (i
measurable), its value in use (i determinable) and zero, The amounl of the impairment loss that would
othierwise have been allocated 1o the assel is allgcaled pro rala o the other assets of the wunil An
imgairment loss is recognised immediately In profit o loss,

Where an impairment loss i subsequently reversed, the canying amount of the: asset {or CGU) s increased
to the revised estimale of s recovemble amount, so that the increased carnnying amount does - nol exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment bes been recognised for the assel (o
A CGUY in prior years, A reversal of an impainment loss s recognised immediately in profil o boss,

Financial instruments
Financial assels and financial Eabilities are recogrised when a group enlity becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the instrument.

Transaction cosls lhat aee ditecly aliributable to the acquisition o issue of financial assets and financis
latiies (other than Imancial assets or lnancial latilibes at tair valee thiough profit or less (CFYPLE) ae
added to or deducted Tfrom the fair value of the financial assels or financial Gabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs direclly attnibutable o the acquisibon of financal assels of linancisi
liabilties at FVPL are recognised immedately m profit of boss,

50 WHGRDUP LMITED A0 AL HEF

191/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

aar sndsd Deceimber 31 20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Financial instruments (conlinued)

Financial assels

Il fecogrition  and rReasirement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequenily measured 81 amorised cost, far value
through other comprehensive income {“FYOCE"), and FYPL.

The classification of financial assets al initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contrachaal cash
flow  chamclernstics amd the Group's business model for managing them. With the oxception of frade
receivables thal do not contain 8 significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of nol adjusting the effect of a significand financing component, the Group inilially
measures a financial asset at s fair vabue, plus in the case of a financial asset nob al fair walue: through
profit or loss, ransaction costs. Trade receivables that do nol contain a significant fmancing component of for
which the Group has applied the pactical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 i acoordance with he policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above,

In order for a financkl assel o be classidied and measured at amortised cost o Tai value theough other
comgaehensive mcome, it needs to give rise o cash llows that are solely payments ol principal and inferest
{"SPP1"} on Ihe prncipal amoent oulstanding. Financial assels with cash flows thal are not SPPI are
classilied and measiied ol i vabee thiough prolit o loss, irespective of the Lissmess mode,

The Group's business model for managng linancial assets relers to how 1T manages its financial assels in
order 1o generate cash flows. The business model detarmines whether cash flows will resull from collecting
contraciual cash flows, selling the financal assets, or both. Fmancial assets classified and measured . at
amoieed cost are held within a business model with the objective 1o hold financial assets in order 1o collect
confractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and messured al fair value thiough  other
comgrehensive income dre held within a business model with the olgective of both holding 1o colled
contraciual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the atorementioned business
models are classified and measured al fair value through profil or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales ol financial assels are recognised on the trade date, that is, the dale
thal the Group commils bo purchase o sell the assel. Regulan way purchases on sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within (he pencd gencrally established by regulation o
convention in the markelplace,

Suhsequent measurement
The subseguent measurement of Iinancial assels depends on thesr classilication as Tollows:

Eigncial assets gt smovtised cost (dabt nstruments)
The Group's financisd assels at amortised cost indudes bade, bills and olher recebabdes, pledgedirestncted
bank deposits and cash and bank balances are subsequently messured wsing the effeclive inberest method

amd are subdecd 10 impasment. Gains and losses ane récognised in prodil o Boss wiwen the assel is
derecognised, modified o mpaired.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (conhnued)
Financial assats {contmued)
Subzeguent measurament (eominied)
Financigl assals al FYPL
Financial assets at FYPL are camied in the stalement of fmancial positon at fair value with nel changes in
Tl value recognised in profit or loss,

This category includes derivative. and  unquoled  equity instruments which the Group had nol irmevocably
elected fo classily af FVOCL Dividends on equity invesiments classified as financial assets at FWPL are akso
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, 8 is probable
that the economic benefils associated with the dividend will flow 1o the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably,

impaitrnent of fnanciH aisels

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credil losses (“ECLs™) Tor all debl instruments nol held at
FYPL, ECLs are based on [he dilference between the confractual cash flows due in accordance with e
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects lo receive, discounted at an approximation ol the
orighnal effective interest rate. The expected cash Hows will include cash llows from the sale of collateral hedd
of other eredit enhancements that are bvtegral 1o the contrachial tems.

Gl appreach

ECLs are mecognised in two siages For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
i credat sk since mitial recognfion, ECLs are provided for credit losses that resull from defaull events that
are’ possible within the nest 12 months (a 12-month ECLY, For those credit expossmes for which there has
been a sgnificant increase in credil risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance s requited for credit losses
eapichind over e remaining life of the exposure, irespeclive of the timing of the defaull (a lifetime ECL).

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credil risk on a financial instiument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occocurring on the financial nstrument as al the repoding date with the risk of 8 defaull cccuming on the
linancal nstrument as ab the date of inilial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable nfonmation
that is available withoul undue cost of efferl, mcluding historical and foward-looking infoomation,

Financlal assets ab amortised cost are subject lo impasmment undes the genesal approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measmement of ECLs excepd for trade receivables which apgly the
sinipldied approach as detasled bebow,

Stape 1 — Financial instruments for which credil risk has. nol increased signilicantly  since  initial
recagmition and lor wihich the loss allowance & messued at an amount equal to 12-manth
ECLs

Slage 2 — Financial mstruments for which credit visk has mereased signaficantly. sinoe mitial recogmition

but that are not credit-impaged financial assets and for which the loss allowance i
measured al an amoun! equal to lifelime ECLs

Slage 3 — Financil assets that are credibimpaired al the reporting date {bul that are nol purchaszed o
oiiginated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance s measured al an amount
equal to lifctime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (conlineed)

Finamcial assets {continued)

Suibrsagiienlt measiverment [eontined)

Impairment, of fnancial assets (continued)

For ade receivables that do nol contain & signilicant imancing component o when the Group apphbes the
practical expedient of nol adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplilicd approach in calculating ECLs. Undes the simpdilied approach, the Group does nol iack changes m
credit risk, but nstead recognises a loss allowance based on liletime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matria that i based on #s histogical credit bss experiance, adjsted for forwarnd-
lookmg factors specilic to the deblors and the economic envronment

For trade receivables thal conlain a significan financing componenl, the Group chooses as ils accounting
policy 1o adopt the simphfeed apprcach in calculating ECLs with pokcies as described above.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity insiruments ssued by 8 group entity are classified as either financial liabslities of &s equity
in accordance with the. substance of the contractual amangements and the definitions. of a financial laksdlity
and an equity instarment.

Equity Insirumenis

An equity instrument s any conliact thal evidences a residual inferest in the assets of an enlily after
deducting all of A5 liabdlities. Equity mstruments issued by the Company ae recorded at the procecds
received, nel of direct issue costs

Financial iabiities at amorised cost
Financial liabdlities, including bormowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and clther payables, are subsequenthy
measured al amortised cosl, wing the elfective interést method.

Effective fnferest malhiod

The affective interedd melhod B a method of calculating the amoitised cost of a linancial @bty and o
allocaling interest expense. during ihe yeas. The eflective inlerest rate is the rate thal exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and poinis paid of recebved that lorm an mibegal parl of
the effective interest rate, [ransachion costs and other premivms o discounts) through the expected life of the
financial Bability, or, where appropriate, 8 shorter period to the nel canying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense ks recognised on an effective interest basis

Difsetting of financial instruments
Financial assels and financial labilties are olfsel and the net amount @S reported o the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a curently enforceable begal right o offsel the recognised amounts

amd there is an inlention 1o setlls on a8 nel basis, or to realise the assels and sele the labdities
simultameoushy,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinued)
Financial instruments (conlinued)
Derivative financial instruments
Denvalives are mitially recognised at fai valie at e date when denvative contiacts are entefed mito and are
subsequently remeasured lo their (air valie at the end of the repording peried, The resulting gain o loss s
recognised o profit o loss immedetely unless the derivative is designated and effective o= a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in prodit or loss depends on the nature of ihe hedge
relationshig,

Hedge accounting
The Group desiznales certain derivalives as hedging instruments for fair value hedges and cash Now hedges.

At Ihe inception of a hedging relationship, the Group documenis the relationship belween the hedging
mstrument and the hedped item, along with s sk management objectives and its strabegy Tor underaking
vanious hedge transactions, Furthermore, al the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whethes the hedging vstrument is' highly effective in offsetling changes in lair walues. or cash
flows of the hedged item atinibutable (o the hedpe sk

Fai vale hodees

Changes in the fain value of derivatives that are designated and quality as fair vabee hedpes are recopnised in
prodit o Boss immediaiely, together with any changes in the fam value of the hedged asset or liabisly that ae
atitibutable to the hedged sk The change i ihe fair value ol the hedging instrument anmd the change in the
hedged itemn attribulable to the hedped risk are recognised in profit of loss in the line item relating o the

heedhied item,

Hedge accounting = discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
imstrument cxpares of s sold, terminated, of exercised, or when it no knger qualifies (o hedge accounting.
The fair value adjustment to the camrying amount of the hedged dem arising from ihe hedged sk &
recognised to profit of loss from thal date.

Cash fiow hedges

The alfective portion of changes in the Bir walue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash ow
hedges ate recognised in other comprehensive mvcome and accumuialed in other reserve. The gain of koss
relating 1o the incliective portion s recognised immediately In profit o loss and s ncluded in the “Othes
gains and (lossesy™ Bng lbem.

Amounts proviously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in edquity (other reserve) are
reclassilied fo prodit o1 loss in the periods when the hedged Hemn affects profit o kss, in the same line of the
consolidated statement of profil o loss and other comprehensive income as the recognised hedged itemm

Hedge accounting = discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
istrument expares of 5 osold, terminaled, of exercieed, o when it no knger qualifies 1o hedage accounting.
Any gain of loss recognised moother comprehensive income and accumulaled in equity at that time remains
i equity and is recognised when the loecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
lorecast iransaction ks noo knger expected o occur, the gain or loss accomutated in equity s recognised
immediately in prolit or loss
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vaar eded Deoembei 31

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Financial instruments (conlinued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financesl assel only when the contiaclual nightls 1o the cash lows from Lhe assel
expire, of when il transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assel lo ancther entity, On derecognition of a linancal assat in it entirety, the difference belween the assel’s
canying amaunt and the sum of the consideration received and receable B recognised o profil or boss

The Group derecognises financed |akdities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are. discharged or
cancelled, o expire. The difference between the canying amount of the financial lability derecognised and
the comsideration paid and payable & recognisad in prof of loss

Provisions

Provisions are mecognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or consbivctive) as a result of & past
event, it s probable fhal the Group will be required to settbe that oblgation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
comsideration required 16 setthe the present obligation at the end aof the reposting peniod, taking ino account
the risks and wncertainties surrounding the obdigabion, When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimaled o settle the present obligation, its camying amound s the present value of those cash liows (where
the effect of the Ume waboe of money 5 matenial),

When somwe o all of the economic benelils required to settle a provision are expecied 1o be recovered lrom
a third party, a receivable i mecognised &5 an asset ol il is virlually certain thal reimbursement will be
recenved and the amount of (e receivable can be measuned reliably,

Share-based payment arrangemants

Awarded sharesshane options granled to employees

For grants of sharesfshare options that are conditional upon satistying. specified vesting conditions, the Lair
varlue of services received i deteimined by relerence to the faii walue of shares'share oplions granted al the
date of grant-and s expensed on a straight-line basiks over the vesting peviod, with a coresponding increase
in equity {other reservel For granks of shares/share oplions that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair valhwe of the awarded shares s recognised immediately i profit or boss,

Al the end of the ropoting peod, the Group revises ils estimates of the humber of share options that ame
expected lo wlimately vest, The mpact of the revision of the cddginal estimates, it any, ks recognised in prodil
o loss such thal the cumulative expense reflects the revised eslimate, with a comesponding adjustment 1o
olher rEsenve.

When share oplions are exercised, the amount previously recognised in other reserve will be bansfened o

shate preswum, When the share options are lorfeited afler the vesting date o are still ned exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in other reserve will be tansfermed to retained profits,

WHGROUPLMMTED 95

196/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak el Dacembar 3], 2068

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends
Final dividends ase recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting, Proposed final dividends are disclosed In the notes to the fimancial statements,

Interim dividends are simultaneously propesed and declaed, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association gram the diectors the authorly to declare inledm dividends, Consequently, inlenm
dividends are recognised immediately as a kability when they are propised and declared.

Taxation
Income tax expense repesents the som of the tax carrently payabbe and deferred tax

The tax currently payable i based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax”™
as reported inoprodit or kes because of income of cxpense that i txable o deductible in olher years and
Hems that are never lazable or deductibbe. The Group's lability 1or current tax i calculated using tax rates
thal have been anacled o substantively enacled by the end of the reporling pariod.

Dederred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabdities in
the consolidated linancial slatements and the coresponding tax base used in the compolation of laxable
profit. Defened tax liabdiies e genesally recogmised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assels
are gencrally recognised for all deduchible temporary diflorences that can be ulilised. Such delerred tax
assels and Hablltes are not recognised il the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {ofher
than in a bisiness combinationd of other assdls and labdities in a tansaction that affects neither the taxable
prolit nor the accounting profit

Defered tax habilities are recopnised (o taxable lempoary differences associated with investiments in
subsklianes, associabes and point ventures, excepd where the Group s abde to control the eversal of the
temporary  differance and if is probable thal the temposasy difference will not reverse in the foesesalle
future. Deferred b assels arising from deductible temporary differencss associabed with such investments
and mterests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sullicient taxable prolits
apainsl which 1o willise the benefs of the lemporary dilerences and they are expected lo reverse in the
foreseaable Tulure

The camying amount of deferred b assels is reviewed al ihe end of each repoting period and reduced 1o
the exten thal it s noe kger probable that suflicient eable profits will e available 1o allow all oF paat of the
assel o be recovered. Unrecognised delemed lay assels are re-assessed al cach reporting date and are
recognised to the extent thal it has become probable that future taable profits will allow the defented . s
assel 1o be recovered,

Dederred tax assets and labiliies are measured at the lax rates thal are expected 1o apply in the period in
which the lability is setiled o the assel is realised, based on tax iales {and tax Bws) thal havwe been
enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

The measurement of delerred tax Babiliies and assels reflects the lax cosequences thal would follow Trom

the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting perod, to recover of selthe the canmying
amount of its assels and labilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (conlinued)

Cumrent or defenied tax is recognised in profit or boss, excepl when it relates to items thal are recognised in
olhier comprehensive incoime of directly i equily, In which case the cument and deferad tax £ also
recognised in-other compretensive income of directly in equity respectivaby,

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group enfity, tansactions in currencies olfver than the
Tunctional curmency of that entity (Toreign currencies) are recorded al the rates of exchanges provailing on the
dates of the Wansactions. Al the end of the reporting period, monetary flems denominated i foreign
currencies are retransiated al the rates prevailing at that date. Nos-monstary dems That are measured in
ternis of historical cost in @ forekgn curmency are nod relranslated,

Exchange dillerences arsing on the seltlement of monelary tems, and on the relsanslation of monetary itens
are recognised in prolit of boss in the pericd In which They arise.

For (e purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the foresgn currencies denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group are translated info the presentation curency of the Group {USH) using
exchange rales peevailing al the end of each reporling period. Income and exponse lems ara ianskated al
the averape exchange rales for lhe year, Exchange diferences arsing, il any, are recognised in other
comgaehensive income and accumulated i equily in the transiation reserve (attributed 1o non-comrolling
inberest as approprislel,

In detesmining the exchange rale on mitial recognition of the related asset, expense or mcome on the
derecognition of a non-monetary assel or non-monetary liabslity relating fo an advance consideration, e date
of initial fransaction = the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary assel of non-
momelary labibly ansing from the advance consideration. Il thene are mulliple. payments of  neceipts - in
advance, the Group determines the transaction dale for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration,

On the disposal ol a foeelgn operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equily in respect of
thal operation sitribitabde (o the owners of the Company ae iectassified 1o proalil o loss

Government granis
Governmenl grants are recognised whete thede is reasonable sssurance thal the Groap will comply with the
conditions altaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in prodit o loss on & systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as cxpenses the relaled costs for which the gramls are intended lo compensale Specifically,
government grants whose primarny condition s that the Group should purchase, constiuct or aherwise acquine
non-cument assals are recognised as deferred révenus in the consoldated statement of financial posfton and
Iransterred o prolil of loss on & systématic and ralional basis over the uselul ives of the related assets.

Governmenl grants thal are receiable as compensalion {or expenses of lotses already incurred or lor the
purpose ol gving immediate financial support to the Group with no luture related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period i which they become receivable
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalenls
For the punrpose of the consolidated statement ol cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand degposits, and short tesm highly liquid investments that are readily converfible into known
amounts of cash, are subgect fo an insignificant tisk of changes in valise, and have a short maturity of
generally within thres months when acquired, bess bank overdralls which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part ol the Groap's cash managemsent

Fot the purpose of the consohidated slatement of financial position, cash and cash equivabenls comgeise cash
on hand and at banks, including leem deposils and assels similae in nadure fo cash, which are not restricted
as o use

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
For defined benefit retirement benedit plans, the cost of providing benefits: is determined using the projected
unlt credilt method, with actearial valuations being carmed out at the end of he reporiing period,

Defined benefil costs are categoised as lolkews:

- service cosl (indluding currend service cosl, pasl service cosl, as well as gains and bsses on cutailments
and satllements);

. el interest expense ol income: and
. remeasurement.

The Group presents the list two components of defined benefit costs in peofit of lss as employés benefit
eapense, Curlailmen! pains and losses are accounted for as past sesvice costs, Pasl service cosl s
recognisad in prolit or o83 in the peiod of a plan amefdmenl. Nel interesl s calculated by applyng e
discount rate at the beginning of the penod 1o the ned defined benelit ability o assel

Remeaswrement, comprising acluanal gans: and lesses, the effect of the changes o the assel ceiling (i
applicable) and the retum on plan assels {fexcluding interest), is rellecied Immediately in the consolidated
statermnent of financial position with a charge of credit recognised in other comprehensive mcome in the
period in which they occur. Remeasuremeni recognised in ofher comprehensive income B reflectad
immedistely in retained prodits and will nol be reclssified to profit o loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial posifion represents the
deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation & limited 1o
the present value of any economic benefits available in the foim of refunds and reductions in fulure
cantributions 1o the plans,

The employees of the Group in China and Hong Kong are members of stale-managed retirement. benefil
schrmes and members of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPFE") respectively, the obligations of the
Group wnder which are equivaleml o those arsing in a defined contnbution  retirement  benefit plan.
Contributions o state-managed retirement benefit schemes and MPF are recognised as an expense when
employees have remdered services enfiifing them to (e contribations.

Payments lo detined contnbulion relirement Benelit plans are recognised a5 an expense when smplyees
hawe rendered serdces entitling them Lo the contributions.,

A liability for a termination benefit s recognised al the earies of when the group entity can no bonger
willwdaw the offer of the lermination benelit and when it recognises any related restoocturing cosls
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Yaar snded Decsinber 31,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDBEMENTS AMD ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's linancial stafements: requires managenment to make pedgements, estimates and
assumgtions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and labilities, and Hheir
accompanying dieschsuies, and the disclosune ol contingent Rabilities, Uncerlainty aboul these assumplions
and estinates could resull in outcemes that could require a material adjustment 1o the canying amounts of
the assols o labilities atfected in the fuluie,

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumphions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncedainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a maleral adjustment to the canying amounts of
assats and liabélities within the next financial year, are described belew.

Fair value measurement of live hogs included in biological assets

The Group engaged an independent qualified valeer to perform the live hog valuations al the end ol each
reporting pericd, the fair values less costs o sell are determined based on the price of hogs in the actively
traded market, reduced by the bieeding costs required o raise the hogs to be slaughtered and the margins
that would be required by a radser and less costs to sell, with reference o the katest budgets approwsd by
management. This defermination involved the use of significant judgements and estimates. Il the actual
results dilfer 1o the orginal estimates made by management, such diferences from the odginal estimates will
impact the tr walue change ecognised in profil of loss. The canying amount of live hogs was USEL.028
million &5 at December 31, 2020 (2019 USEL 101 milion) (see nole 171

Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill s impaired requines an - estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs 1o
which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the valse in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. The valuein-use calculstion requires the management of the Group Io estimate the fulure cash
flows expected to arige from the CGUS and a suitable discount mte in order to calculate the present vl
Where the aclual future cash llows are less than expectad, a material impairment loss may anse,

The carrying amount of goodwil was LUSE2,008 milkon as af December 31, 20020 (2019: USH1955 milion),
Deladls of the recoverable amount calculation are desclosed in nole 18,

Intangible assels

In accounting for infangible assets, the management ol the Group considers the polential impairment based
on the recoverable amount. Intangible assets with findte uselul lives are reviewed for Impaitment when events
o circunmstances indecate the canying value may nod be recoverable; intangible assels with indefinite usalul
lves are reviewed for impaioment annually, wrespective of whether there is any indication that it may be
impaired. Factors thal would indicate potential impairment may inclisde, but are not limiled o, the signiticant
change In technodogy and operaling losses associated with the intangible assets.

Determining whether intangible sssats are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
CGUs 1o which intangible assets have been allocated. The secoverable amount of CGUS a1 the end of each
repoiting petiod s based on the hgher of the valeein-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The value-in-
use calculation requires the management of the Group 1o estimate the future cash flows expected o arise
fiom e CGUS and & sutable discount mbé in order o calculale the présent value. Where the aclusd fuliire
cash flows are less than expected, a matenal impaitment bss may anse.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation wncertainty (conlinued)
Intangible assels (continuwed)
The cairying amount of inkangible assets was USEL 762 million a3 al December 31, 2000 (2019: 15%1,712
million} (see nobe 15

Iiventaries

Inventories: are stated - at- the lower of cost or the deemed cost for agniculiure produce harvested: from
beologecal assels and nel realisable value, Met realisable value is Lhe estimated selligy price in e ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of production and selling expenses,

The mamagement of the Group periodically reviews invenbodies lor slow-moving inventories, obsolescence or
declines in marked value This review requires them o estimate the nel realisable value based upon
assumptions aboul Tulure demand and markel conditions. If the estimale of nil realisable wlue i belew The
cost ol inventories, (e Group will record a write-down of inventories lor ihe difference between cost and net
realisably value, which will resull in a comesponding increase in cost of sales. Il the net realisable value is
less than the canying amounl, write-down on inventores may be requared. The carmving amounl of
inventones was LS$2.641 million as al December 31, 2020 (2019 US$2.903 million) (see note 22},

Valuation of the obligation in respect of defined henefit plans

In determining the obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, the Group has engaged an acharial expert
to pertorm the acluanal waluation of plan assets and the present value of the delined benehl obligations, and
the key assumptions wsed incheding discount ates, sspected salay increases and modality mbes, The
discount mates assumplions  ae determined by relerence o wiclds on high-qualily corporate bonds and
povernment bonds yelds of approgriate duration and currency al the end ol the repoting period, The
eupecied retums on plan assels are determined on the historical refurms and assel allocations by considering
the Tufure markel and economic conditions. The apected e of saley increase 5 relerenced by the salary
scale projected by management and the morality rates are referenced by demographic market data

During the year ended December 31, 2020, remeaswrement bosses after lax effect amounting to: US$50
million were recognised directly in equity in the period in which they ocourmed (2019 LEB$143 million), The
Group's obdigation in respect of net pension liability 2 at December 31, 2020 amounted 1o USE575 million
(2019: LSE566 mallion) (see nole 33,

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

An anatysis of revenue is as lolkows:

2020

USS'million LIS $ million

Packaped meals 12,167 12,331
Park 12,296 11,015
Cithers 1126 757

5,589 24,103

Ower 99°% (2019 over 99%) of the Group's revenue was recognised at a podnt in fme
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5. REVENUE AND SEEMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Set out below /s the amount of revene recognised Tnom

US% million LIS% million

Amounis incleded in contract liabiities at the beginning
of the year 305 148

The renaming performance obligations (unsatistied of partially unsatisfied) as 8t December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019 regarding the sale of meat and related products, sale of properies and service Income
e axpeched 1o be recognised as revenuoe within one yean

Segment information

The Group delermines s operaling segments based on e reports reviewed by the execulive directors of the
Company, who are ako the chief operating decision-makers, that aie wsed to make sirategic decisions.
During the yean, the Group easdigned s repostable operating segments to be consistent with the Group's
strategic initatives and ils vertically integrated operations. Accordingly, the Group’s linancial resuls for the
yeal ended December 31, 2020 are reported in new reportable segments, which are also the operating
segments and are chssilied based on their locations including China, U5 and Europe and the nature: of
operations as (i) packaged meats, (i} pork, and (i) others. The Group®s limancial results for the year ended
December 21, 2019 are also egrouped 1o confarm with the new segiment presentation.

The defails of the Group's business activities are as follows:

{i} Packaped meals — represents production, wholesale and retadl sales of low tempeaure and
high temperature meal products,

(i Pork — répresents slaughtenng, wholesals and retail sales of tresh and frozen pork
and hog fatming.

{in}  Cthers rapresenls shughtenng and sales of poultry, sakes of anciliry products and

services such as provision of begistics services, manulachuring of flavouring
ingrredients and  nalural - casingss,  manuiaclure and sales of packaging
materlals, operating linance companies, property development companies,
a chain of refail food stores, sales of biological pharmaceutcal materials,
trading of meat relaled products, and corporale expenses imcureed by the
Group,

Each reportable segment derives its revense from the sales ol products and provision of senvices based on
the location of opesations. They are managed separsloly because cach - segment regquires differont production
and markeling stralegies

Segment resulls represent the profit carmed by each segment belore biological Tair value adjustments withoul
allecation of cther income not attribuled fo the respeclive: segments, offver gains and losses, finance costs

and share of profits of associies and joint ventures, This is the measure reported to the chiel operating
decision-makers: for the purpeses of resource allocation and assessment of segment peronmance

Intes-gegment revenue was chargaed al cosl plus mangn basis
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continuaead)
The Tollowing & an analysis o the Group's revenue and results by repofable segments;

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Packaged
meals Pork Others Tatal
US55 million WSS million U5 %' million WSS million
China
Gross scgment rovenue 4,037 1,075 1,024 12,136
Less: Inter-segment revenue - {1.002) (306} {1.308)
Revenoe 4.!_!3_? 5.'_!73 T8 IEI._EEB
Reportable segment profil 836 Zn 33 1,140
5.
Gross segumient revenoe 16D 8,581 n 15,778
Less; Inter-segment revenue (3 (3412) - {3,415
Revenue 71,157 5,188 37 12,363
Reportable segment profil (loss) 571 {33 (123} 415
Europe
Gross segment reveniss 1,019 1,534 452 3,005
LOSE: AR SRRITIBOL TRy RIS ; A 44500 Sl i
Revenue: ar3 1,054 371 £.308
Reportabbe segmens profit (loss) az 103 {21} 174
Total
Gross segment rovenuo 12216 17,190 1513 30,919
: | 5% |ll1:{l sepimiEnl Fevanee M-_H-! {4,&'3;!} IS‘-B?‘] {?,?3!:!}
fReverive:. 12187 12,206 1:128. 5,080
Reportabde segment prolit (loss) 1,499 o (111} 1,728
Met unallocated expenses (108}
Biological tair value adjustments {185)
Finamce costs (135)
Share of prodits of associabes E
Share of prodds of podnt ventures | 10 )
Prodit bedose Lax 1.315

102 WHGROUP LMITED

203/308



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (conlinued)
Segment information (continued)

For the year ended Ded

11,551 | odal

LIs$ I||||-:'-|.; LIS% |u|.=-r n K LIS% |u|=.=|--||

China

Gross segmenl révenue 3615 hGI3 F56 10 (s34
Less: Inter-segment revenue - {946) (342} (1,288)
Revemu 3615 A FET A14 B. 756
Reportable segment profit G673 28 35 o957
U5,

Gross segment evenue rel7 B.375 1 16,193
Less: Inter-segment revenue {3) (3,031} (3,034)
Re’!w!nu:’! .i"_!ﬂ-ll .::I_::|ﬁ1"l 1 | .{ !?5-<}
Reportable segment profil (loss) 847 2 (149) 932
Evrope

Gross segmen] ievenue 93 1,387 415 2,745
Lizss: I||h‘1_ SemEnt revenue {41} H-ﬂf! (73} fb:':-.n’f!
Revenue S0 R 2] 342 2,188
Reportabla segment profit G | 85 o 142
Todtal

Gross segment ravenua 12375 15,435 1172 8082
Less: Infer-segment revenue {44) {4,420 (415) {4,875
Revenue 12331 11,015 F5F 24103
Reportable segment profit (hoss) 1.574 500 (113 2031
Mel unaflocated incomse 42
Biological fair value adjusimenis 1046
Finance costs {144
Shewe of profits of associales 4
Share of profits of joint ventures 13
Profit before tax 2052

Mo segment assets and Rabilities are dischosed as they are nol regularly provided to the chief operating
Al ECis - makes,

= Less tham USED mison
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geopraphical information
Information about the Group's revenue presented above & based on the geographical locations of operation

Intormation abput the Group's non-cutrent assels is presented below based on the gesgraphical locations of
operation

2020 #0159

UsE'million 5% ||:||II:-'4|

Mof-cument assets

China 2,560 2347
LS. G102 G, 110
Ewrope 1,829 1 544

10,53 10, 300

6. OTHER INCOME

2020 2019

USS'million LIS millson

Govermment subsidy 26 8
BEank Witeiest inoorme 17 149
Income on sales of rew materials 10 10
e 21 !

T4 Ha
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

2020 2019

US S million LiSE million

Gain on non-gualified relmemeant plan assels 17 14
Fam value gain an linancesl assets at @i vahoe |!|||||,|gr|
profit or loss 28 24
{Lossh gan on dsposal ol propety, pBnl and equipment {7 1
Gain on contribution of assets lo a jont venlure — 42
Gamn on disposal of an associale Tr 15
Impairmant lods recognised mo respect of property,
plant and equipment 125) {18}
Impairmaend oss recognised inorespect of intangible assels {2) (8)
Imparment oss recognised n respect ol right-ol-ise assels {2} {53
MNel exchange gains (losses) 5 (9}
AN 0N ISLHanGE TELOVETY T 10
Others (69) {13
(47 53

8. FINANCE COSTS

2020 215

US$ miltion LIS% million

Amortisation of transaction cosls {5) {5}
IntereEst o senion unsecured nobes {761 {761
Interest on bank and ofher koans {37} {48)
Inflerest on lease Rabilies (200 {18)
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost ol qualifying assels 3 3

{135) {144

WHGROUPLMMTED 105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit before tax has Deen arrved at alter chagging (creditingk:

2020

US%' million

Audifor's remuneration

Audil serdces 4 A

Mon-audit senices 1 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 495 a2
Depreciation of rghl-ol-use assels 138 130
Amoitisation of intangible assets included in administrative

CRpEnSEs 8 9
Amortisaton of oher non-cuirent assets 2
White-down ol inventories included in cost of sales 240 53
Impasrment losses (reversal ol impaicment bosses) on rade

recenabdes, nel, ncluded e adminisiatiye expenses 13 {1}
Lease payments nol included in the measurament of lease

Ieaksilities 114 a7
Research and development expenses 148 134
Sl costs (excluding dinsclors’ remunderation) 3,883 1628

The cosl of sales represented the cost of inventores and sepdces. provided recognised in profit of loss during
bodh yeass
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) -

10. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors” and cleel execulive’s remuneration for the year, dischsed pursuant to the applicable Rules
Governing the Listing of Secusities on the Hong Kong Slock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) and the Hong
Kong Compamnics Oidmancs, 1S a5 lollows:

Refirement

beneti
; 2020
Kame of deeciol TR f & Tatal
IFSmiilien e Similion  USSmiilon miBn  USSmiilkn
} (Nate il

A} EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wi Wan Long = 1 = 5 = = !
Wir, 'Wan Honggan - 1 - - - —* 1
ML G Lijun = 1 = = = T I
W, Sullven Kenneth Mar: - - - - b - 3
Mr. Ma Xingjie = 1 == = = = I

m-abive were paid for Eheirsanvices e conneclion with the menagemeant of the stfars of the

B} MON-EMECUTIVE DIRECTOR

LEi "
. JED: ST

Mo ermotumen s was:paid i the non-mmecitie dinscior shimn 0 Wi senvce as director of $e Company or s subsidianes

C} INDEFEMDENT NOM-EXECUTIVE
DRECTORS

- - —-— i i - -

— — -— - -— — —

Il - -— —-— - _— - -
dependen] nen-srecutive direclors’ amaluments shiwn above were pakd for thesr senvices 35 direclors of the Company

WHGRIUPLMITED 107
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (confinieed)

chosaen o bapis raid Tor their sendces in conmection with (ke manacement of the a8aie of #h
IO ADOWE wers paid jor e ! = 1) | Wil (he managemend of Ing 358 i e

B} NOM-EXECUTIVE DRECTOR

Mr. Ui

Sutebof) - — - — - - -
mimediiments werd pasd 10 1he Sdn-exedulve diecior shivn abowe 107 hrd -sényics as descl 8 th any k Healaly
€] INDEPENDENT MON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
ib-hotal =~ = == = = = =
I | t |-l e i} ol B shown above wem pasd for their 58 at: iirech i e
Tetal fer
Dy

fobes
* I by e
dimect
it
Wt
15
L} Bl Solivan Kenneth Marc wakied salery of USE] milion oo the year ended December 31, 2000 Apart from this, ' no dasciod nor the
Chie! Exoculivd wakved sny emoluménis in respect of the yeam énded De 1,200 snd December 31, F0E0
[} M, Wan Le g 15 gl (e G Enscutirs for tha yeais andad Decembe 51, 2020 and December 31, 2000

Lesz than L3 milkon
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The tive highest paid individuals for the yeir ended December 31, 2020 ncluded fow directors of the
Company (20159 twol, details of whose emoluments are set out above, The emcluments of the remaining one
[200159: theee) non-direckor highest paid indniduals dunng the year were as Tollows

2020

USS milleod

Emgloyees
Basic salaries and allowances 1
Pérormance bomus a3 15
Share-based payments -_ -
Retirement benefil scheme contribulions ey =
A 18

The emoluments ol the rérmaining non-director highest paid mdivideals were within the following bands:

Hamber of employees

2020
HE$Z8, 500,001 to HES29, 000, 000 - 1
HEE3 1 500,001 to HE$32, 000, 000 1 -
HER45, 500,001 o HKSE0, (00, (00 == |
HES63, 500,001 to HE$6, 000, 000 — 1

During the yeatr, no emoluments were paid by the Group to amy ol the directors or the five highesl paid
individuals (including directars and employees) as an inducement 1o join o upon joining the Group of as
compensation for loss ol office (2019 Ml

'WH GROUP LMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11. TAXATION

LIS millson

China mcomde tax {229 (176G}

LS, inconwe lax (34} [56)

Other income taxes (28) (35}
Withsholding bax {35) (13}
Crafeared taxation 103 (77}

{223) {357}

Under the China law on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law™} and the Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate ol the Ching subsidianes s 25% except lor the following

{iy  According to the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemplicns regulation sel oul
i the Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the Slate Administration on Releasing the Primary
Processing Ranges o Agricullural Products Entitled to Prelerential Policies on Enterpnse Income Tax
(Trial Implementation) (Cal Shul [2008] No. 149) and the requirements of Aticle 86 o the
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the income from vancus China subsidianes of the Company
engaging in primary processing for agnicultural products is exempted from EIT

{m)  Pursuant to the related regulations in respect of e Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the moome
from vawious China subsidianes of the Company engaging in peojects of animal-husbandry and pouliry
feeding & entitled 1o cemplion iom EIT durning both years.,

() Pursuant to the relabed regulabions o respect of the Molice of Certain Tax Polickes for Implementation of
Explosation and Developroent of Western Region (Cai Shul [2012] No. 58) joinily fssued by the Ministry
of Fmance, the General Adminstation of Costoms and the Slate Administration of Tadalion, sarious
Chana subsicharies of the Company are enlitied 1o a prelesental income ax ale of 15% duning bolh
yeans,

(v} According to the Imiplementation Repulation of the EIT Law and the Circular of State Adminstration of
Taeation on [ssues Concerming Implementation of Prelerential Income Tax Enjoyed by Higheand-new-
tech Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2009] Moo 203), high-and-new-tech enterprises ate levied enterprice
moome fax al 15%. Vamnows China subsidiares of the Company are classified as high-and-new-tech
enterprises and are enlitled o enjoy a preferential income tax ate at 15% during both yeass

Aocording 1o Articles 3 and 27 ol the EIT Law and Adicle 21 o ils Implementation Rules, dividends
distribasted 1o foreign investors out of the profits generated by China subsidiaries are subject to EIT al 10% o
a reduced tax rate il a lax Weaty of armangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement, (he
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution o the qualifying Hong Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred
Ly [E@bilties on the undistibied profits earmed by the China subsidianies have been accrued at the tax rmate
of 5% for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,

The LLS, corporate tax rate & 21% for the years ended December 31, 2020 and Decemnber 31, 2019

The Growp's busmesses in Europe are subject o the lotal coporate income lages at @ ange of 16 o 159%
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11. TAXATION (continued)
Other overseas laxation s calculated at the mies prevaling in (e respectvg . unsdictions.

The taxation chage for both yeas i reconciled (o the prolit belore 1ax as follows:

2020
Us S 'million

Prafit before tax 1.315 2052
Tax al the applicable rates (Mole) {311} {23.7) {404) {24.13
Tax effect of share of prolits of associbes

and joinl ventures a 02 A 0.1
Tax effect of income thal s nol taable in

delermining curren! year taxable prodil B 0.6 23 1.1
lax eflect of expenses hal arg no

deductibde in defermining current year

laabde profit {25) (2.00 (21} (1.00
Tax effect of tax losses nod recognised {2) {023 () (0.2
Litilisation ol lax bosses praviowsly nol

recognised == = .
Effect of tax exemplions and preferential

lax rates gramled to China subsidianies G0 4.6 82 4.0
Effect of tax exermplions and preferential

lax rates granmted to LLS. and Europe

subsidianies 25 1.8 £ 1.9
Withhokding tex on undisbibuted earmings

of subsadiaries {32 {2.4) [35) (1.7}
Recogniion of defened lax ansing lrom

lax bosses previously nol recognised 3 0.2 4 0.4
Cregrprowision in prior years 25 1.9 G 0.3
Tax effect of lax losses recognised on

intra-group transactions T8 ah 1.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate

for the pear {223) {17.0) (367) {17.4)

212/308
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. DIVIDENDS

2020 013

WSS million LIS %l lson

Dividend recognised as distribadion during the year:
2019 tmal dovidend of HE26.5 cenis per share

[2018: HKIS cenis) 504 282

U0 anterim divdend of HES cenls per sharne
{2019: HES cents) 95 93
599 375

The final dividend of HK12.5 cents per share in respect of the year ended December 31, 2020 has been
proposed by the direclors and ks subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general meeling.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of lthe basic and diluted eamings per share attributable lo owners ol the Company is based
on ha Iollowing data

200 WIS

USE' million LIS $ millkon

Eamnings
Prodid for the wear atftnibutabibe b0 cwness of the Company lor the

parpose of basic and diluted eamings per share 824 1,865

million llon

Number of shares
Wesphited average number of ordinary shares lof the pluipose of

basi: eamings per share 14.733.55 14,702.71
Eect of dibative potential ordinary shades: share oplions 55,22 58.51
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of

diluted earnings pér share 14.788.77 1479122

112 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plani,
michine ry

sl Comviruction
Biiildifgs equipineal i pregiest

9 i 31 131 [
o 3 ag = i 18
1 FAF 138 4,260 MG 8,007
il 5 ] F 120 5 230
I | ) 0 479 510
brekdlaries | I = = - 3 = 3
4 180 20 282 (598) -
s = {7 {21} (67} (1 (106
Al Décemmber 31, 200X 551 0 1 4,748 33 b5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Freehaold
land

Estldings

Mular
Tehicled

Plant,

machinery

and
el p e

Constiuciian
I paogiedd

EDINETOOOO
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Depecimion and impaimen:

11 il8 §a42
— 8 12 = 18
a) ] 3 (50
= T il 1801 = 261
— 26 2 Bl = B3
- 123 10 ] = 495
-2 7 1 17 = 25
*2 (6} 23 135} = LI
A el L - e s il - St
Carying values:
A December 31, 2040 352 23 72 2,560 133 251
&5 Docembes 31 2019 ; o [ AEE 145 5 A

Certain of the Group's buildings of US3E56 milkon as at December 31,

20200 (2015 LSR5 million) are
erected on land held in China whibe the et are erecled on lreehold Bnd stuated in the US

and Europe

As al December 31, 20040, the application for oblaining the ownership certificates of buikdings in China with
an agpiegate camying value of approximately LISEIES milkon (2019 LISE1E7 mélllon) was sill in progness

Propaty, plant and equipment with & camng amount of approsimately USE25 million (2019 USEIE mallion)

hawve been fully impaired and recognised in geolit o loss lor the year ended December 31, 2020,

wis man LFSE] rallaa
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Properties under development expected o be completed:

2020 2019

UsSS million LSS million

Within nosmead operating cycle included under current assels 130 102

Propertics under development expected 1o be compeled within noomel operating cycle and recovered

2020 2019
US% million LIS% million
Within cne year 48 19
After cne yoar B2 g3
130 102
16. LEASES

{a) Right-of-use assets
The carying amounts of the Group's ngh-of-use assets and the mowemnents during he year are as
[odbonaes

Plast,
machinery
and MWoioi Contraci
Exildings. cigipmem wehicles larmy

na Fil | 28 52 145 646

= 20 1 — - il

] ] 43 14 a o] 150

(38 %) {13 {331 47 E ]

(13 {1} in =" m (22

3 1 in 1 il 0

pradil or ke iz} = = = = {2

| Detember 3], 2 108 206 28 52 142 084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. LEASES (conlinued)
{h) Lease liabilities

The camying amount of lease liabiities and the movements during the year are as folkews;

2020

UESS million
As al lanuary 1 465 J86
Mew keases 129 150
Interest expemses 20 18
Acquisition of subssdianies (Mole 34 — 3
Payments 1521 {116)
Teamanabed {22} —

Remeasurement 30
Currency realignment e) {6)
Az at December 31 4T A65

Andhysed Tof reporling pumposes as

Current liabilities 103 108
Moan-current abilfes ara 387
476 A65

The maturity anakyses of lease liatalities & disclosed in note 37 1o the linancial statements,

As disclosed in node 2.3 fo the financial statements, the Gioup has early adopted the amendment to
IFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient lo all elgible renl concessions gramted by the lessors for
leases ol certain property, plant and equipment during the year,

WHGROUP LBITED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =

16. LEASES (continued)
{c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in retation to leases ane s follows:

2020

W5S million

Interest on bease liabilities 20 13
Durpreciation charge of right-ol-use assels 139 130
Expenses relating to shorl-benm leases and olher leases with

remaining lease terms ended on or before December 31,

2019 a1 i
Variable kease payments nol included in the messurement of

lease liabiities 23
Gain on sale and leaseback transactions =21 frel
Impairment of right-of-use assets 2

215 240

{d) Extension and termination oplions
The Group has beases with remaining lease terms ranging from more than 1 year Io 33 years. The
leases containing extension and termination oplions are managed bacally and vary in terms. The Group
has included exdension o lenmanation options in the measurement of The lease oblgations when /t is
reasonably ceran lo exercise the oplions.

{e) Variable lease payments
The Group has leases containing variable lease payment terms nol depending on an index or ale for
hog ramsing lacilitics, buildings, molor vehscles, machinery and equipment. Management & esponsibbe
fon nepolisthng the lease terms and each tefm may vany deépending on the underdying assel and
repoitable sepmenl. Variable lease payments lerms are based on a mulliple of factos including the
overall usage of the underlying assel, mambenance and repar Services, pogerly bxes and insurance

The Group cxpects the oversll financel impact Tor Tulure yesus to be consistent with the vanable lease
payments that were incwred during 2020,

{fy Sales and leaseback transactions
Om August 27, 2019, he Group sold a cold stwage facility located in Maryland, the LLS, for L5381
million, net ol ansaction costs. In Seplember 2019, the Group execuled a 2090 lease agreement, n
which the buyer agreed lo lease the cold stoage facility back 1o the Group, In addition to the 20-year
lenmy, the lease contains two 10-yoar renewal pariods that would begin at the sobe discrelion of the
Group with no penally lor a [ailure 1o renew the leasa.

In addificn, in 2020 and 2019, the Group sold 4 and 23 farms lor an aggregate price of US$E million
and U534 million. respectively. while retaining ownershig of the undetlying land. Subsequent o each

sale, the Group leased the farms back lor a non-cancellable term of approximately 15 years with
renewal Gplons

& Lmsm man UEEL milion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. LEASES (conlinued)
{g) The total cash outilow lor leases and fulure cash outilows relating to leases Bt have not yet commenced
are disclosed in nodes 35 and 37, espectively, 1o the financial statements

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
The biclogical assels of the Group are live hogs and poultry at various stages of development, including
suckling hogs, nurseny hogs and flinishing hogs and Broders which are classlied as curienl assets. Biological
assels also nclude breeding stock {hogs and poultry), which are wsed to peoduce fulure live hogs and
taoiksrs, Bie classitied as non-current assels of the Group, The quanilics of hve hogs, broilers and breeding
stock owned by the Group al the end ol each reporling period are as follvws

Head million

Live hogs
- suckling 2 2
— MUrSEry 2 2
— finishing . L 8
12 12
SI0CH IN0RY) s e
13 13
Broilers L] 7]
Breedmg stock (pouliery) —
2 )

Hogz

In general, once a sow B inseminated, it will gestate tor 8 period of 114 days, New born hogs ane classified
as “suckling”, The sucklig hogs will sty with thieln molher for theee o four wecks at which lime they will be
weaned, Once the suckling hogs are weaned, at approximately 1 to 8 kilograms, they are ransterred Lo the
“nurseny”

The nursery facilities are designed to meat the needs of newly weaned pigs. They are fed wilh a seres o
specially loomulated diets to meet their changng nutriional needs, The pigs will stay in the nussery for
approximately & weeks where they will grow o approdmately 7 1o 45 kilograms and then be tianstered to
the “fimishing™ farm

Finishing hogs typically - stay i this phase for 13 to 19 weeks. Durng that time, they will grow to
apgroximately 23 fo 132 kilograms and be considesed as a live hog with markel value Once ihe hog

reaches the ideal weighl, they are baded onlo specially desined trucks foe transport 1o the processing
Tacility,

Less than | million heads
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) — —

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (conlinued)
Poultry
In general, once a pullel lays eges, the eggs will be sent to the halchery and it will take approximately 21
days 1o be hatched The hatched chicks ame then Sent bo the brobe fanm,

The chicks are fed with a series of specially formulated diets o meat thedr nutrition needs, The chicks will
stay in Uhe bioler faim bol approximeately 38 to 42 days where they will grow to appaosimately 2.1 kilograms
amd then be comskdered a5 a broiler with market value

Once the broiler reaches the market weight, they are haded onlo specially designed trucks for fransport lo
the: processng Tacility.

The Group is exposed o a numbes of risks related to its biclogical assets. The Group is exposed to the
Tollowing operaling risks:

fi}  Regulatory and environmental risks
The Group 15 subject to laws and regulations in the: locabion in which it operates breeding of hogs and
poultry, The Group has eslablished environmental policees and procedures aiming at complying with
local environmental and olher laws. Managemenl performs regulis reviews 1o identily enviionmental
risks and to ensure that the systems in place are adequate to moanage these risks

iy Climale, disegse and oer palural fisks
The Group's biclogical assels. are exposed o the risk of damage from chimalic changes, dsesses and

olher natwral forces. The Group has adensive processes in place aiming al moniforing and mitigating
hose reks, inclding regular inspections, disease controls and insurance,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (conlinued)
Carrying value of the Group’s hiological assets

Livk e

Bieeding dleah Shapd BemilEin Beepiding nlsek [peattey) Tutsl

il [ b [ v I 1m0 ul Fiivii]

[1=5 74P 1SS il i U5 mallian n USE mifiem U millian

Caryng valus o lanueny | 1o ek e} 4% ] -] I F 1344 (fo
; D i i i ¥ L 1 [t 13
TR1E T L 13 W L= i ] B
EFl 1 T 157 1 Kl L1 A Fe ]
(T80} 346 {03 a3 {157 LRE L L] 155 (7 a2
. TR Y IR S NS O/
TN vl o
wm bt 3] 1,033 3 | L]} 3 1,182 i

Analysed (of reporting purposes as:

2020 2019
LIS mlleon

UsS'million

Current 1,047 1,107
Mon-curment 135 13#
1,182 1,244

Fair value measurement — Level 3

LIS millon

USS'million

Biological assels

Live hogs 1,028 1,11
Breading stock {hogs) 132 135
Broilers 18 6
Bresding stock {paullyd Lk 2

1,182 1,244
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (contmued)
The fair values of breeding stock (hogs and pouliry) are determined based on the average of (ke historical
sellimg price of hog and poullry of similar breed and genelic menl bess costs lo sell (Level 3). The estimated
fair valwe will significanily increase when there & a slight increase in the average historical sefling price, and
vich versa

The tar values of live hogs and brofbess are mamly determined based on the price of hogs and broders in the
aclively traded muaekel, subdracting the brecding costs required lo rase the live hogs and brodlers 1o be
slaughtered and the margims that would be required by a raiser and less costs fo sell {Lewvel 3), The
estimaled T2 value will increase when there is an increase in the madeed price of hogs and broilers or
decrease in [he breeding cost requited bo raise the bve hogs and beoilers, and vice vessa

Changes in fair value less costs 1o sell ol biological assels include changes in the fai value of the hogs and
poullny &t the end of both years. The Group's biological assets were valued by the independent qualified
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limiled (“JLL") situated al 7/F, One Taikoo
Place, 970 King's Road, Hong Kong

Sel forth below are the key assumplions and inputs adepled in the valuation process of biclogical assets

China
Breeding stock (hogs)
Per head markel price' 4,444 1,901

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™ 886 139

Fmishing hogs
Per head markel price’” 2,928 3,332

Per head weekly average breeding costs required fo raise o
finishing hogs'! 118 &85

Breeding stock {poultry}

Per head markel prica'? 25 25
Broilers

Pt hwssed - rrsrkel price! 16 19

Per head averape breeding costs required to raese 1o broiless™ 20 18

WHERMPLMTED 12
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (confinusd)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (conlinued)

EDINETOOOO
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U5,
Breedmg stock — Sow (hogs)
Pesi head ivaikel price™

Broedng stock — Boar (hogs)
Per head matket price™

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™?

Finshing hogs
Per head manket price™
Per head weekly average breading costs réquired 1o raise to
fimishing hogs™

118

43

125

46

32

143 153
3.2 5.7

e
|
1 virlah
F Coste of ucking hog fil R TR
g Rogs
3 thi IRCONL QOB IRCUR e BRg
inishing
DGR (ARG (8
Cpmry dequlred
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. GOODWILL

2020

USS million

Cost:
A January 1 1,955 1847
Acuisition of subsidiares (Nole 34) 31 111
Currency realignment 22 (3
Al Decamber 31 2008 1,955

Accumulated impaiment ksses
Al January 1 and December 3] — —

Carrying value
Al Decamber 31 2,008 1,955

Impairment testing on goodwill

Based on the Group's business units, goodwill has been allocated for impalment testing purpose to the
Tollowing CGLS:

. Poak

- Packaged meats

The camrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGUs is a5 follows:

USS million LISE million

Allocaled o
Posk — Chna 51 48
Packaped meats — China 147 137
Potk — L5 40 31
Packaped meats LS 1,536 1.510
Pork and packaped meats — Europe 234 et

2,008 1.955

An impairment review of these CGUS s underlaken annually of when avents or citcumstances indicale that
he: carmyeng amatints of CiGLIE ey ol b pecoverable. The recoverable amodnts of hese CGLE have bean
determined by the value in use method wsing cash flow projections pedomed by the management o both
years ended December 31, 2020 and Decembar 31, 2019,

WHGROUP LMMTED 123
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. GOODWILL (conlinued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)
For the purpese of impairment testing, the Group prepartes cash llow projection and the recoverable amounts
ol these CGLS are caleulsied by usmg pre-lax cash flow projeclions based on a 3-yearD-year Tinancu
budget approved by management and extrapolalion of cash flows beyond the 3-yearB-year budgel period

Ky assumplions used in the cash llow projections of pork in Chinalthe US covening a 3-yeanS-year budgel
period and extrapolated cash lows beyond the budget period are as Tollows:

Revenue growth rate (Note 1) (691151 (23866 20 20-126
Loagz-tesim growth rate {Mabe i) 2 i 2 2
Chscound rate (Mote W) 10 11 B !

Hey assumptions wsed in the cash flow projections of packaged meals in China'the LS cowding a
J-yeanBeyear budpel period and adrapolated cash lows beyond the budgel pericd are as Tollows:

2020

Revenue growth rate {MNobe i) 1.3=17.4 F.2-14.1 21 T 1-4.7
Long-termn growth rate {Mote i} 2 2 2 2
Discount rate (Mote #i) 10 11 G !

Py assumplions wsed in the cash llow projecton of pork and packaged meals in Europe covenng a5y
budgel period and edmpolated cash flows beyond the budget period are as follows

Revenue growth rate {Nale 1) a5 A0-74
Long-term growth rate {Note i} 4 3
Discownt rate {MNote i) 7 8
W management de e Frowsh iale dve 8 Sae i3 L e prencs 25 perion ar
e THETT
e bong-berme giowd 1l w - N 2 T ] T - 55 | W .
(T AL iR i TR I sk Apaked ba T B Tk b A% wbel) ipdlaet { nE L Hhe
5L
WHGROUP LMITED -~
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. GOODWILL ([conlinued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (conlinued)
Mo impainment loss is recognised at the end of both years based on the impaimment assessment performed
The management believes thal any reasonably potsible change m any of these assumpbions would nol caise
the aggregate canying amount of the CGLIS to excead the agpiegate recoverable amount of the CGLs,

19. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

Sanuaiy § i, B 5 i 55 40 [ 1, i
mency. rasligrm eng -1 —_ = —t — == o
Bon of subsidunies (Hiots 30 = = = R = = e
A December 51, 2020 1,66 k) 1 n 40 L 109
Ametiaminn wnd g iment:
Al Jangwy | o I Al
Curéncy resiigrmend . = 3
Amertsation provided for Be year 1 8 2 i ]
B - - 8
A1 Decamiber 31, 2000 and
X -] = 1 kLl 12 1 o
Curenty reslgrment = . - it - - -
ARFLANR v Lo 2 — - 4 2 -t -]
v perm A g # el i - - - - - 1
A Decemiler 3], 2020 13 — 1 0 14 1 L1}
Cairpag valem:
A1 Decomber 31, 2020 16T ] — 48 Ful ! -
Al DecomBer 3], 2010 -1 L] —- | = - x

Patents, customer relations, confract farm relatons and rights and permits are amontised over theis estimated
uselul lives of & o 25 years,

Trademarks and distribution network acquired i the business combinations are identified and recognised as
intangibde assels with indefmite: useful lives and camied al historical cost without amorisation for the Tollosing
EES DS

- they are capabde of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost;

here 15 no fesceabds lime o the pened over which the assel s eopected o penerate nel cash Tows,
based on an analysis of all ©f the relevant factons.

" Lexs tram LSS miion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (conlinued)
Impairment testing on intangible assets

Based on the Group's business unifs, trademaks and distribution nebwork have been allocated for
mgairmenl tesling purpose 1o the following CGLS:

. Pork

- Packaged meats

T carrying amsunt of radermarks and. distriboton network were allocated 1o GG a5 lollows

2020

UEE'million LiEF miillion

Allocated to
Pork China 51 47
Packaged meats — China o2 282
Pork — LLS: 234 234
Packaged meats — LLS ga1 SH3
Pork and packaged meatse — Europe 114 112

1,682 1,658

An impairment review of these CGUs is underlaken annually of when evenls of circunstances ndicate that
the canying amounts of CGUs may nod be recoverable, The recoverable amounts of these CGLs have been
determined by the value In use method using cash flow projections by management for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019

For the purpose of impairment testing. the Group prepares cash flow projections based on a 3-yeanh-year
linandcial budpels approved by I'I'lill'l.i!j._:l'!ll'l,“l'l| and extrapolation of cash lows tﬂ"'y'q:-mj the S-yean'D e hlll,|_E:l,![
peniod

ey assumplions usaed in the cash llow progections of Irademsanks and distribution network of porkl Coveqnng a
3-yeanb-year budgel period and extrapolated cash flows beyond the budget period are a5 follows:

Revenue growth rate {Mole i) (6.81-15.1 (3 Bi-46.6 20 Z20-126
Long-lenm growth rata (Mobe i} 2 2 2 2
[scoumnt rate {Mobe @) 13 14 G 7

126 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (confinued)
Impairment testing on intangible assets {conlinued)
Key assumglions used in the cash flow projections of trademarks and distibulion network of packaged meats
covering & Dyeanbeyear budgel period and exdrpalated cash low beyond the budgel penod are as Lollows:

China

Revwenue growlh mate (Mola i) 1.3-174 §.2-14.1 21 21-4.7
Long-term growth rate (Robe: i) 2 2 2 2
Discount mbe (Note i) 13 14 ] !

Koy assumptions used in the cash flow projeclion of ademadks and distibulen network of pork and
packaged meats i other locations owiside of China and LS covering a S-year badget period and
extiapolated cash [k beyond the budgel penod are as lolkws:

Rewtmue growlh mate (Nole () ] 3074
Long-term growth rate (Mobe i) 4 3
Dascount rate {(Mate ik 7 8

ot

% over 3 S-yearfS-year budgsd penod with relenence 16 the past parfmancs and

The long:term growih re: uind does nol excesd the long-team growih rase for e meat production husisess in which § operates

The Group heas recopnised an mmgairment boss of US$2 million in respect of trademarks for the year ended
Decemiser 31, 2020 (2019 USEE million) based on the impairment assessment perdfonmed, The management
believes thal any reasonably possible change in any of these assumplions would nod cause the aggregale
camying amount of the ademarks and disinbution netwolk (o exceed the agpregate recoverable amount of
these assels.

WHGROUPLMMTED 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2020 2019

USS'million Us§million

Share ol net assaks 47 42

Al the Group's associales aee nol considered a5 individually  matersl as al [ecember 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, The aggregate amounts of its share of these associates are set out o the consolidated

financial skatements.
Aggrepate information of associales that are nol individually material is sel oul below

2020 2019

USF million LIS § millson

The Gioup's share of prolits and lodal comprebensig income
for the year 4 A

Diwidends received during the year 2 -

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2020 2019

UsE' million LISl lson

Share ol nel asseats 307 305

Al the Group's joinl ventures are nol considered as individually matenial as al Decembsr 31, 2020 and
December 3], 2019, The dppregate amounts of s sharg of thesg joinl venlures e el out in the
consofidated financial stalemeants

Appregate infformation of poinl ventures that are not individually matertal is set ol below

2020 019

USS'million LSS million

The Group’s shane of profits and lotal comprahensive incoms
for this year 12 11

Dividends received during the year

128 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

22. INVENTORIES

2020 2019

USS million LiSE million

Raw materiss 1.018 S04
Work I progress 103 = F
Finished goods 1,520 1 W

2,641 2901

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

UsS million LSS million

Trade receabies a3l (o]
Imipairmment {24) {11}
207 1,038

Bills receivable B L]
215 1047

The general credit tlerm allowed by the Group o Bt customers is within 30 days i China operations whike
the credil lerms vary depending on the sales chanmel and customers for the U5, and other counres’
OpErations The following s an aging HI'I.ii|:"‘iI.‘u of the trade and bills recervables net ol loss allowance
presented based on the dates o delivery of goods which approsimated the respective dates on which
TEVENUE WaS FECOENISed

2020 2019

USE million LSE million

Current 1o 30 days a0z B
11 1o S0 days 112 167
91 to 180 days 1 |

Orver 180 days —

215 1,047

Belore accepling any new  customers, the Group wses past experlence to assess the potential customess’
credil quality and defines credit Bimits Ioe the cwstomers, Limits attributed 1o cusbomers ane  revewed
regatarky

'WH GROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES {confinued)
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivabies, e Group monitoes the change in the credil quality
ol the rade receivables since the credit was granted and up fo the reporling date. The ditectors of the
Company consadered that the concentration of credit risk & hmited doee 10 e customer bade baing lage and
umretated.

Mo intenedd is charged on teade recebvables. Loss allowances are made based on the estimated recovenalle
amounts from the sales of poods by reference lo pasi defaull egperience and objective evidences of
mmpatrment determined by the difference between the canrying amount and the present value of the eslimate

future cash llows discounted at the onginal effective interest mte.

A gl December 31, 2020, ade receivables of US$567 million (December 31, 20059 US$E51 million) were
pledged as security lor certain credit laciliies of fhe Group (Note 40},

Movement in loss allowance o imgairment of trade recelvables:

2020

UES'miklion

A lanuary 1 {11d (1]

{lmpairment loss) reversal of Impaimment losses, el {13 1

Currency realgnment —_— i

Al Decembaer 31 (24} {11}
Imipairment

An impairment analysis soperdommed al each eporting dale using 8 prosssion malne o measwe expected
credit losses, The provision ates are based on days past doee for groupings of varows customer segments
wilh similar loss patterns {ic, by peographical région, product lype, customer type and ralig, and coverage
by lettess of credit o olhed lornms of credil insurance). The catculation reflects the probability-wesghted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supporable Iinfoemation that is avaslable at the
reporiing date aboul pasl elends, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions. Genorally,
trade receivables are wiitten off If past due for more than one year and are nol subpect o enforcement
activiy

Lasz than USR] milbon

130 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Impairment {conlinued)

Set oul bebw s the information aboul the credil risk exposwre on the Group's trade receivables using a

provrsin mgkn:

December 31, 2020

Current to

a0 days
past due

Expected loss rate 0.51%
Gross carmying amount

(LSS o) a1
Loss allvwance provision

(LES$ million) 5

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

89.52%

1

11

EDINETOOOO
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More than
180 days
past due

91.48% 253%
a a3
a 24

December 31, 2019

Cugrent e

da

l-_;4,|_u_:|_;|{'d lerss panle 1. 00 0.25% A 1.06%
Gaoss carmying amoumn
{LESE million) 1,045 E = 1,043
Loss allowance provisin
(LESE ‘million) 11 ~ 11
= Hrae LISSE
'WH GROUF LMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

2020 2019

US$millinn Us§million

Prepayments 61 84
Debt investments al amorlsed cost a8
Loans receivables 60 86
Depasds paid 1o suppliers 130 o0
Deposits placed with financial instiubions — 53
Recervables (rom linancial mstitutions L1 14
Derivative financial mstruments (Note 26) 1} 4
Value-added By recoverabile 101 118
Others 53 74
569 i
Analysed for reporting purposes as
Cumrént assets 512 o0
Mon-current assets 57 Rl
569 i

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 A9

USE million LSS wlleon

Financial assels ad fair valee through prafit or loss
Linlisted investmenis

Fimancial products a8z a7
Equily mvestments 10 1k
852 457

Analysed o reporting purposes as

Current assels 882 dd7
Mon-current assets 10 I
B2 457

WH GROUP LBUTED ©
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT DR LOSS (conlinued)
The myvestiments cassiied as current al December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are mainly wealth
management products issued by banks in China, They were mandatorily classilied as financial assets at tair
value theough pralil or kss as Their contsactual cash flows are nod solely payments of principal and mterest
Thie above non-current equity investments were measured at FVPL as the Group has not elecied o recognise
the lair value gain of loss through olher comprehensive incommae

26, DERIVATIVE FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS
Derivatives under hedge accounting

Liabililies
USS'million

Falr value hedges

Grain conliacts == (] 1 —*
Livestock contracts — 2 :
Cash flew hedges
Foreign cunency forward contracts = 4 1 2
Gram conlracts a5 — . a0
Livestock condracts - 5 18 G
100 17 & 30

Fair value hedges
Thi Ifimup entered mio demvative instruments (primarily forward contracts) 1o minimase ils exposire ho kal

walue changes of its commitments o buy grains and livestock. The directors of the Comgany consider thal
these devalive Bstioments  ae Itu:hllf el fecine hl}:dﬁlrlﬂ welruments, BMapr  ferms ol the denvative
instruments are set out below

® ek troe UISED mison
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)
Fair value hedges (conlinued)
Al December 31, 2020

Chaage in lair value
esed [or meatming

Hatiomal wolume: hedge ineflecivesess
Derivalive insbiameats Wi m Marimims ae The yes
USE million
(o
5,000 2805,000  Bmbeh Up lo lamuary 2022
= 77000 Tem Up to Jaauary 2021
225,000 6,030,000  Bmbeh Up 1o March 2022
44640000  121,360000  Peunds Up to Ochaber 2021 2

Al December 31, 2010

The hedge nefteciivensss can arise Inom:

Ll -;;h';|r|{;1,-.‘, s e fofecasted amounls of casl hows ol |||,:|_IH|;:|_I e and hedging instiaments

L] dillerenceés 0 the Umnmg ol cash llows of the lorecasted lransachions and the lw:d;_:;urr; strumenls

The commodities contracls as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are recorded in

'l’lq-‘;x:gnu;:n[a_ other recoivables and olher asscls” and “Accroed expenses and other ”.c!"’.-lhk:!." I e
consofidated statenvent of financial position.

I3 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Cash flow hedges

Al December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group entered into desivative instruments, such as
lulures, “vaps, oplion contracts and loreign exchange forward conbracls designated as highly eleéctive
hedging instruments in order b0 manage the Group's exposure to the vatability in expected Tufure cash flows
attribulable to commodity price sk associated with the forecasted sabe of live hogs, pork, and the foecasted
purchase of com and soybean meal as well as forelgn currency risk associaled with fluctuating  foreign
currency rafes, The lerms of the desivative instroments have been negotiated o match the terns of the
respective designated hedged itenms. The mape berms of these conbracts ane as lollows:

Al December 31, 2020

Kational velume
Hinmus Mzimm Maturiy
B million

s hogs 13260000 2326050000  Foamh Up to Decemher 3001 515

(rains {24
— Com B4 144,044 118,857,128 Bunbels Up lo Decomber 202
SR me 520,500 969,000 Tem Uple December 2021

USSA000000  USSER53DSAY  Welom comencies  Up lo December 2001 i

WHGROUPLMMTED 135
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Cash flow hedges {conlinued)
Al December 31, 2018

o el

Pt cuimendy Jormgid conis

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:
. changes to the forecasted amounts of cash fows of hedged items and hedping instruments
- dilferences in the iming of cash lows of the lorecasted ransachons and the lu:~;,1_|';|r||.; pistruments

The impact of e hedped Rems on e consolided Imancial satements ang as lollows

Total hedging AmOLE
gain {loss} reclassified from Change in fakr
recognised in ofher Hedge Defeqred net  walve uved for
other comprehensive ineflectiveness gain {loss) messuring hedge

comprehensive  imcome to profit recopnised in  inchaded in other  ineffectiveness
income o kis profit or loss redane For the yoas

T

483 584 28 (75} 1]
(18} (155} (5} 111 (24}
As at December 31, 2018
Hgnly probable forecast lean

WHGROUP LBITED -
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlirued)
Cash flow hedges (conlinued)
The commodities contrmacts, Interesl rale contracts and loreign cwrency forward confracts as al December
A1, 20020 and December 31, 2019 are recorded in "Prepayments, other recenables and other assels™ and
“Aocued expenses and other payables” in the consolidated statement of linancial position

The hedge meflectiveness Tor foredast bean hog and grain ansactions are recognised in “Revenus” anmd
“Cost of sales” in the consoldated statemvent of poofit of loss and other comprehensive income, espectively

Derivatives nol under hedge accounting

2020

A ] Liabilities fssels | iabdities
US% million USE 'million I LISE million

Grain contracts 3 14 5 L]
Livestock conbracts e = 1 1
Enedgy contracts 3 10 2 11
Foreign cunency forward contracts = —. 2 =

B 24 8 21

Major terms of such dervalives are as follows:

Mulsenal volume

Derivative msirmments Migimum Maximum Malurity

355,000 3010000 Bmhels Up 1a July 2022
= %000 Tons Up o Ochaber 2021
10,664,000 486,950,903  Peands Up 1o Gebaber 20121
754,809 21455000  Bevhels Up 1o December 2022
: 5,000 2765000  Ewhels Up 1o Mewember 2021
Live-caltle = 4800000  Peunds Up 1o April 2021
Natural gas §,530,000 14050000 Buitish thermal ueits  Up lo December 2021
[hersaf 18,060,000 12130000  Gallom Up lo December 2021
Wind enemy 1300615 3300615 Megawall-hoer Up 1o Sepbembes 2032

Foreign curmncy forward oonlrack USHA05.667  USHE2ATS302  Various correscies Up 1o huly 2021

'WH GROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26,

21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting (conlinued)
Major terms of such derivatives are as Tollows:

Al December 31, 2009

Lommodiles consracs

Winz2ag BiS, 000 1,550,000 Buchels
Sybean meal 1400 45,500 Tong

Legn hogs 10, S o0 a2 a0 Prosnids
Com 2, 7028 Bushels
Siybege 30,000 B s
Live catlle — 160,000 Posamids
Matural ges 10,760, 000 17,000,000  Brdeh
UAns

Wind epengy = 3,300,615 Wegawalt-hour Up bo September 232

| 17,135,000 JII6R000 Gallons Up ta December 2021

areign cirenty forward confracls USEZ 510541 USS2E0 679,130 Vanoos cirencies Up to Apnd 2020

Deivative Tinancial assels and liabifties of US$L million, US$ETS million, USES milllon and US3ET million
(2019: USEL million, USE73 milkion, USHEE million and US$27 mlion) are recorded as non-curient assets,
curent assets, nodecunent labilites and current Liabadities, respectively,

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES

At December 31, 2020, bank balances camy interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.13% (2015
0.01% 1o 450%) per annum. The pledped and restricied bank deposits carry ficed inferest rates from 0001%
b 4. 13% (2019 0.01% to 3.91%) per annam.

Al December 31, 2020, pledged bank deposils represented deposits of LES83 million (2015 US$13 mellion}
pledged o banks for securing banking and Erading facilities such as letters of credit and bank loans granted
to the Group, and US$3 million (2019 US$E2 million) pledped for secunng a loan rom a thind party, These
pledged bank depesits will be released upon the setllement of relewant borrowings of the release of the
relevant facilities.

At Decemiber 31, 20020, bank balance of USE2 million (20019 USE] méllion) = phedged for worker's
compensation insuranda clims in the LS.

A December 31, 2030, a subsidiany of the Group which is engaged in linancial services, was govermed by
the Law to place US3A9 million (2019: LS$29 million) of & statrlory deposit in the People’s Bank of China.
LIS35 million (A019: less than USE] million} was placed af designated bank account by a subskdiary of the
Group which is engaged in property development as guarantes deposits,

WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. TRADE PAYABLES
Thie AveIage credl perod on purchase of j::l'm-ds. 15 about 30 days i China operations and the creédit berms
vary depending on the vendor for the ULS, and other counfries of operations. The Group has linancial risk
manegement policies i place Lo ensune Uhat all payables are paid within the coedil Hmedramse

The follwing is an analysis of trade payables based on the nvoice date:

2020 A5

UES mlison LS4 million

W ikhin 20 ﬂ:::r.& B I
31 to 90 days 19 26
91 1o 180 days 1 2
SN S O = el 1

a13 1074

Included in trade payables of USES millken (2015 NE) were amounts due Io associates (nobe 42(01
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 A1

WSS 'million LIS il lson

Accreed stalf cosls 732 Pl
Depaosits recenved a0 = |
Gales rebates payables 281 191
Payabiles in respect of acquisition ol property, plant and

equipment b pind]
Acorued insurance 195 135
Inlerest paymble 27 29
Balance of conlingent consikderation in respect of acquisition ol

subsidiaries 1 18]
LGrowers payvabiles 45 43
Pension liability {Mote 33} 3 18
funodints due 1o associstes (Mote 42(b1 — 15
Dervative fimancial instruments {Mote 26) 16 35
fccreed prolessional expenses 24 23
Accreed rent and uliisties 3z 28
Dividend payables 14 18
Contract [@bilfies (Nole) 520 W05
Other accrued expenses a2 233
Other payables a8 126

2,427 1,875

Aralysed Lo reporting puIposes as:

Cument liabdlities 2,138 1,686

Mon-current labilities 281 185

2427 1,875

recatad 81 the and of | o 10 B0 WO g ol 1o 1, 2005, conirect Eulfs

amcinied & LSEIE1 mulisn
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

30. BORROWINGS

2020 3] D

USS million LiSE million

Seniol unsecured notes:

2.650% senior unsecured nobes due October 2021 310 b )
3.350% semior unsecured notes duee Febwuary 2022 7 398
4.250% senior unsecured potes due February 2027 596 595
5, 200% senior unsecured notes due April 2009 a5 395
3.000% semior unsecured nobes due Oclober 2030 490 a
2,088 1,787
Commercial papers (Mole i) = 125
Bank loans (MNote i
Secured i1 38
Unsecured 524 1.139

Loans from third parties {(Mote ik

Secured 1 1
LUnsecurnsd 2 2
Tolal bomrowings olher than bank overdm@ils 2,536 3032
Bank overdradls (Nabe ivd s
Thse |,mrrim1|'|§_‘_:, olhes Thidn bank ovwerdralls are r:-:p]:,-:ﬂ:ln-: a4
folbkews (Mote )
Within one yes 196 505
One o two years 326 421
Two bo five years o )
Adter five years 1.483 993
2,536 3.0m2
Lesis: Armoaents doe within one year shown under cunent labilties (T0E6) (D50
Amounis due afber one yea 1.840 2,187
Total borrowings olher than bank overdmalls:
AT fixed rates 2,509 2,385
Al floating mles ar Jof
2,636 2002
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

0. BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysis ol bormowings (other than bank overdrafis) by currency:

Dencaranated in US$ 2,098 22713
Drenominated in RMB 488 RE2
Dencamanated in PLN 4 144
Denominated in RON a2 A1
Drenoaninated in HES — 50
Denoaranated in EUIR 2 2
Denominated in GBP 1 —
2,636 3,087
Hoties
! My 2018, thie Gromg st ulle s ¢ T e .
e the proc B fund opesating cash requirame cial paper agreemsnl, e Group pays o mby

g The erabeliss of the Bl papan

ol msusnce. The lssuance of comm has the effecd of reducing

ol Imbestsl Buebed OR, AMong 5k,
iy vary, Bl oy nol exceed ¥9T days f e da
tgual to the pincpal g

fy ol Bve HSSUMECE 3nd markel

r The was no cotilanding

% 80 56008 (2010 225% ts SE0%)
BOR + 0.8% o

w1 &1 Toosd pnies rangng fram |

1'% pér annum at December 31, 2020 (2015 W

¥ Lioans lsgem (hind parmes canty interest At 3 foced ke ol Q9% ped gnnusn o December 31, 2020 (2009 09% per annum)
W Bank gvardiais of Decambar 31, 2020 catry iatseayl 5t 8 Sogting e ol 225 pir anne
W Tha armdanls dus dra hatsd on schadicied sepaymant dafes dal oul Im tha loan agresménts

The Group's boricwings conlmn alfinmative and negate covenants thal, among olher things, lmil oF festrcl
the Group's ability o creabe liens and encumbrances, incor debd, enter o liquidation, enter into change of
conlrol tsansactions of change the scope of the business, of dispose of of lransler assels, in each case,
subject o certain qualifications and exceptions, The Group has no material defaull in payment of the bank
bogrowings, nod did it breach any relevant finance covenants for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019 Delaiks of assels pledped 1o secwe such borowings are sat ool n nole 40 (o the
financial statements.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose of presentation in the consobdated stalement of linsance] posion, certam defemred B assets
and labilties have been offsel. The following = the analysis of the deferred tax balances for fmancial

IU[.V."tlrlﬂ FALIT P

2020 015

LSS millkan LISE million

Dederred oy assels B1 56
Deferred fax labiities [553) {60}
{482) {5

The following are the majer deferred tak assels/labilitees recognised by the Group, and the movements
thereon dwing the year;

Tax affect of deduclible temporary differences:

[ETAT ]

leng amd

abtihiald

[ Fim wilpe

feprecistiee Copialned chasiet [
gt # = pEgeny, W srigarch il arrimg b Sedectible
fsscisl  plasd and temi i Uspaid iofl dertiogmeend  biabepical  Beepuy
anrh o gt wyeeiwiey | r sebpy mpewdilen sty dleesce

ool o Ly = - k1] i [37] 30} = L i) ¥

= = = = = I - =8 i n
A Decarmier K1, 2020 - L) 10 1 L 1 L a2 Le) M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
lax effect of taxable emporaty delferences

Fair value Falr walus

changes changes
Atcelaiated  Undish ibiitad afiing Mo ailzemg hom Othed tanable
Eaix eamimgs of busmess biolegical TEmporary

deprecistion  subsidiarles  combinatien FEEH diterences Total

At December 31, 2000, the Group had unused tax losses of USHE263 million (2019 USE263 mallion)
avaitable for oflsetting against (ulure profits of which a deferred B assel had been recogmsed in respect ol
LIS3200 million {2019: US$207 millicn) of such losses. No defamed tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such bsses of US363 mdlion (2019 US$S6 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit stream
There are no unrecognised tax losses at December 31, 2020 that may be camied forward indefinitely and
such losses will expire on or before 2040 {20015 Nil)

* Léss Mian LSS mild
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) -

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The unrecognised tax losses will expie on of Before 2040 a5 Tollows:

2020 2019

USS million LISE million

By end of
A = 7
2021 1 3
20022 15 12
2023 3 i
after 24 a4 g

63 Bl

Al the end of the repoiting petlod, the agpregate amount of Bempoany dilferences  associated with
undistributed eamings of subsidimies (o1 which deferred lax lab@ities have not been recognised was
LS$3 468 million (2019 LS33 201 millionk. Mo liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position o control the timing of the reversal of the lempomary differences and the
Group has determined thal ths portion of profits demved from these opemting subsiduices wil be retained by
these subsidiaries and will not be distributed in the foresesabde (ulure. Therafore, # i probable that such
differences will not reverse in the ioeseeable future

32. DEFERRED REVEMUE

2020 2019

USE million LSS million

Gowernment grant A4t 10

The delested revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 mepresents
government granl received in refalion lo the construction of property, planl and equipment of the Group, As
the relafed assels are under constrection, the grant received rom the government will be released o profit o
loss as olher income over the wselul ives ol the related amounts after the construction is compdelod
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

sl ssdpd Dwcambar

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMEMT BEMNEFITS
Defined benefit plans
The group entites. which operate in the US operate funded defined benefit scheme for all their qualified
employess. Pension benefits provided by he Gioup are currenlly organised pamanly through delined banelit
pension plans which cover virlually all the LS. employees and certain emplyess in Ewope of the Group.
Salaied emploeyeces are provided wilh benaefits based on years of service and average salary bevels. Hourly
amployees are provided with- benefits of siated amounds for each year of serice

The delined benclt plan is adminestered by a separate fund thal is legally sepawated from the enlity. The
board of the penskn fund is composed of an equal number of representatives. from both employess,
emphyess and (former) employees. The boawd of the pension fund is required by law and by ils adicles of
association to act in ihe inlerest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme e aclive
emphiyees, inactive employees, retirees and employars. The board of the pension fund is responsible Tor the
eestment policy with regard o the assets of the Tund.

Under the plan, the employess are entithed 1o retiremen benefils varying between 40% and 45% of finad
sabary on altsinment of & relirement age of 65 Mo olher postretrerment benelits are provided to 1hese
emplopens,

Thee plan i e LS, exposes the Group to aclieansal risks such as investmend risk, mvterest rate risk, lonpevily
risk, salary nisk and price risk are as folkews:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined bencil plan Rability = calculsled using a discount asle detesmined by
reference to high qualily corporate bond yields; il the return on plan assel is below his mate, |t will create a
plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in equily securities, debd instruments and
real estates. Duee to the bomg-term mature of e plan labibity, the board of the pension fund consebers it s
appropriste that a reasonable portion ol the plan assels should be invested in equity securities and in real
estates o leverage the relurn generaled by the fund.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the interest rate of fied moome products will increase the plan liabality, hosevern, ths will be
partially offsed by an increase in the retum on the plan's debt investments;

Longevity risk

The peesent value of the defined bene plan liability is calculaled by reference lo the best estimale of the
maortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the lile cxpectancy of
the plan parficipants will increase the pan's lability.

Salary risk
The present value of the delined benefit plan liabidity is calculated by reference lo the fulure salaries of plan
partcipants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan paickpants will merease the plan's. RabilEty.

Price risk
An increase n e ket price of equity investments will increase the plan assels

146 WHGROUP LIMITED 0000 AL HEF
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Defined benefit plans {conlinued)

Price risk {continued)

The mesl recent acluaral valuations of plan assels and the present walue of the delined benalil obligabion
were camied out at the end of the repoting period by Mercer (US), Inc., The present value of the defined
bencfit obligation, and the related curent service cost and past service cosl, weore measured wsig the
Progected Unit Credit Method.

The princepsl assumptions used for the purposes of the acleanal valuations were a5 Tollows:

Yaluation al December 31,

2020 2019
Descount mbe 2.80% 3.50%
Expected rate of salary increase 4% 4%

The: actumial vluation showed that the market value of plan wssels was LS$2 123 million as ot December
31, 2020 (2019 USELETZ milllon)

Armounts recognsed in profit or loss in respect of these defined benelit plans ane a5 Tollows:

2020 015
LISE million

USS million

oOoOooodn

Current: service cost &5 2]
Ml interest capeise 17 18
Tokal 102 a7

Remeasuremant of the net defined benedit liabdlity incleded in other comgarehensive income (egpense) is as

Tedkrays:

2020 2019

Raluim on plan assels (excluding amounts incheded monel interest

LIS% million

USS million

expEnse) 154 141
Actuaral dses assing from change in linancial assumphions (275) {333)
(121} {192
Deferted taation (Note 31) ] 49
Terkawl (90) {143

248/308
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Defined benefit plans (conlinged)
The amount included in the consolidated statement ol financial position arising from the Group’s obdigation in
respect of s deflined benelil plans is as lollows:

2020 2019

U5 millian USSrimillion

Present valee of funded defmed benalil obligations 2,698 2378
Fair value of plan assets (2,123) {1.812)

Funded status and ned Rability arising from defined benefit

obligation 575 HbeiG
Other relivemen! benelils, net | 10 10
585 hi6

Included in

Cumrent liabélities (Moke 23) < 18
Mon-current Eabsilities 562 LhE
585 576

Movements in the present walse of the defined benefil obdigation in the cument year were as follows

2020 2019

WSS million LS mallion

Defined benelit obligation at Janeary 1 2,374 2,071
Curren senee cosl as Lhie )
Inlerest cost 80 S0
Benelits paid {1200 (185}
Remeasuremant losses:

Actuarial bosses arsing from change in financial assumptions 275 333
Defined benelit oblgation at December 31 2,694 231B
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (confinued)
Defined benefit plans {(conlinued)

Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current year were as folbows:

2020

USS million
Fam vahwe of plan assets al January 1 1.812 1,625
InRerest oo 63 T2
Contributions Trom the employers 214 1559
Benelits. paid {120 {185)

Remeasurement gains
Return on plan assels (excluding amounts ncluded in net
Interest expensel 154 141

Fam valwe of plan assets al Decamber 31 2,123 1,812

The tair values of the plan assels as al the énd o the reporting pegiod for ach categony ane a5 bollows

Fair value of plan assels
at Decembar 31,

2020
UES millvon

Cash and cash equinvalents ny 14
Ecquity securities 1.062 Bl6
Dl securilies 45 87
Allemaltive invesiments 10 78
Limited parinerships 211 1759
Tokal fair valua 2,045 1852
Unsettied lransactions, nel 78 (80
Total plan assels 2,123 1,812

The fair values ol the above equity and debd instruments are determined based on quoled market prices in
aclive markets whereas the e values of alemative mvesiments and limited parinerships e nol based on
quoted markel prices in aclive markels, As at December 31, 2020, USER35 million, US35599 mdlion and
US3211 million of plan assels (2019 USEPST million, US$956 milion and LUISEL7S millien) are clssified as
Level 1, Level 2 amnd Level 3, respechively.

The actual refurn on plan assels was B.07% (2019 5.55%) over 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMEMT BEMNEFITS (cordinued)
Defined benefit plans (conlined)
Significant actuarial assumplions (o the determination of the delined obligation are discount mate, expected
sabary incresse and maitalily. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on ieasonably
possible changes of the respective assumplions occumming at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assurmplions constant

I the discoum rafe is 50 basis points higher {lower), the defined benelit obligation would decrease (ncrease)
by LS$221 million (2019; decrease (increase) by USF1E3 malion)

The seasiivily analysis presented above may nol be representative of the achusl change i the delined . benefit
obdigation as it ks unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in solbtion of one ancther a5 some of
the assumptions may be comelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benafit obligation
has been calculaled usmg the Projected Ulndt Credit Mathod at the end ol the reporting period, which is the
same a5 Wl applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liabslity recognised in the consoldated
staternent of financial position

Pension plan assets may be invested n cash and cash equivalents, equily securities, debt securities and
altemative assels (incheding altermative investments, limiled partnerships and mswance confracts). The
investment policy fos the pension plans is lo balance rsk and return throtugh a divessified postiolks of high-
quality equity and fixed income securilies. Equily largets o the pension plans ate as indicaled i the
following table. Maturity for fimed income securities s managed such that sufficient lipudity exsts to meat
neaclenm benefit payment obligations. The plans retain oulside  mvestment - advisors o manage plan
ivestments within paramebers established by the plan tnstees.

The following fable presents the fair value of the qualiied pension plan assets by major assel cabegory as at
the end of the reporting penod. The allocation ol the pension plan assels s based on the largel ange
presented in the lollowing lakske:

Al December 31, 2020

USS'million  Targel range

fisset calegories
Cash and cash equivalents, met of

unsetlied ransactions 195 0-4% b2 O-4%
Equity securilies 1,062 30-50% Gl6 30-50%
Dbt securilies 5 J5-95% 877 A0-55%
Allemalive assals k| S-20% 2537 5-20%:
Tatal 2123 1,812

The Group expects to make a contribution of LS$97 milkon to the defimed benefit plan dunng the mec
financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

sk 3. 3

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Defined benefit plans (conlinued}
The following are descriptions of the valuation methodologies and key inpuls used 1o measure pansion plan
assels récorded ol Bair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equbalents nclinde highly hguid mvestiments with oigminal matuities o thiee months o less. Duee to
their shor-termy nature, the carying amount of these nstruments approximates the estimated - fair valuwe
Actively aded money markel funds are measured at their nel assel values, which approximeates (o fair valee,
and classified as Level 1. The falr values ol certain money markel funds for which quoled prices are
availabbe but aded bess Irequently have been classilied as Lovel 2.

Equily securilies

When available, the far vabees o equily securilies are based on quoled poices inaclive markels and
classified as Leved 1. Level 1 financial instruments include highly hgued instruments with qudted prices, such
as equities and mulual funds traded in active mearkots.

If quoled prices are not awallable, fair values are obdained from pricing services. broker quotes of  other
model-based valuation lechniques wilh cbservable inputs and classified as Leval 20 The nature of these squity
securties include securities for which quoted prices ane available but laded less frequently, securities whose
fair valwe has been derived using a model where inputs to the model are directly obserabde in the markel,
of can be derived principally from of comoborated by obsenable market data and securilies thal are valued
using other financial bstruments, the parameters of which can be directly observed. Level 2 equity. securities
inchede preferred stock and commingled Tunds that are not actively traded

Debl securities

The fair values ol debt secunties are oblained from pocing senices; broker quotes or ofher model based
valuation techniques with observable inputs and classifed as Level 1 or Level 2, The nature of these detd
securiies includes instruments for which quoled pnces are aailable bul traded bess frequently, nstrumants
whose fair value has been dedved using a model where inputs to the model are direclly obsenable in the
market, or can be dedved principally from of conoboated by observable markel data and secunties thal are
valued wsing other fmancial instroments, the parameters of which can ba direclly observed. Lavel 1 debd
securties include corporate debd securities. and government debl securities. Level 2 debl securities include
comemEngled funds, assel-backed securiies and emerging magket securities

Altemative investmants

The law values of alternative investments are obtained from pricg services, brokes quotes o other model-
based valuation techniques with observable inpuls and classilied as Level 2. The nature of these alternative
investments  includes  instrumends T which quoted guices are available but traded less  frequently,
instruments- whose: fair value has been derived using 3 model where inputs (o the: model are directly
observable in the market, o can be derived pincipatly from of comoborated by observable market data and
securties thal are wvalued wsing olber flinancial mstruments, e paramelers of which can be directly
observed. Level 2 alternative investments include diversified investment funds.
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33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMEMT BEMNEFITS (conlinued)
Defined benefit plans (conlined)
Limited partnerships
The valuation of Boubed parineship investments requines the use of significant unobsenable inputs due 1o e
absence of quoted market prices, inhesen! lack of liquidity and long term nature of such sssels and is
classilicd a5 Level 3. These invesimenls are inilally valued al cost with ‘quarlerly vakeations  pedonmed
ulifising avaiable markel data bo delermine the faie value of these mvestments. Sech markel data consisls
primarily of the observalions of Wading moltiples. of public companies considered  comparable to e
mvestments, with adjustiments tor investment-specilic ssues, the ok of quidity and other ke,

Defined contribution plans

The Group's qualitymg emgloyees in Hong Kong participate i the MPF scheme in Hong Kong, The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in fund under the condrol o trustee, Under the
MPF scheme in Hong Kong. the employer and ils employees are each requared 1o make contribulions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant moome, subject o a cap o monthly  relevant income of
HES30.000, Contributions 1o the schemea ane vested immediately

The employees of the Group's China subsidianes are members of the state-managed retirement benclits
scheme: opeiated by the China government. The subsidiares are required to conliibule a cerain perceniage
of theii peyroll lo e ietirement benelils scheme o fund he benelits. The only obligation of the Group wilh
respect o the retiremeant benefils scheme s 1o make the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group has delined contnibution plans (401K} plans) covering substantially all U5 employess. The
Group's conlribifions 1o the: plans are pnmanly based on each conlnbution and cannot exceed the mesEmiem
aliowable for tax purposes,

The amount charged to proil of kss of approsmeately US306 million dunng the year ended Decembser 31,
2020 (2019 USE96 million) represents conlributions padd of payabde to the plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Acquisition of Edelmann Provision Company Inc.
On October 30, 2020, the Group acquired lrom an Independent third party the enline equily inberest in
Edelmann Provision Company Inc. ("Edelmann Provision™). The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy lo increase prolitability e branded packaged meals and sbtrengthen their leading posilion in the
pachkaged meats market in the LS

The faar walees of the identiliable assels and Rabilies of Edelmann Provision as al the date of acquesibion
were as lollows:

Fair value
recogmised on

acqui n

UES million
Proparty, plant and equipment 3
Intangibde assels iz
[ wenlones ]
Trade and bills receivables 7
Prepayments, olhér recenables and olher assets 2
Cash- and bank balances 3
Teade payables {2}
Acoryed expenses and other panabdes (]
Other liakdlities {3
Total identiliable net assels o fain walue 43
Goodwill 3
Satisihad by cash T4

The Groap incurred transaction cosls of less than WISE1 méllion for (e acquisition. These transaction costs
have been expensed and are included m other expenses in profit or boss
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (confinued)
For the year ended December 31, 2020 {continued )
Acquisilion of Edelmann Provision Company Inc. (continued)
An anadysis ol e cash Nows in respect of the acquisiion of the above subsidiey & as Tollows:

Cash consideration {74}
_ Cash and bank balances acquired 3

Met outllow ol cash and cash equivadents included in cash Thows wsed in investing

activities {711}
Transaction costs paid during the year inclisded in cash flows Trom operating
aclivities !
{71}

Since the acquisition, Edelmann Provision contributed LIS$15 milion to the Group's revenue and US$2
millicn 1o the: consolidated profil before tax for the year ended Decembes 31, 2020,

The revenue and profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 would remain matesially
unchanged ff the acquisition of Edelmann Provision had taken place at the beginning of the year,

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Step acquisition of Pini Polonia sp. z oo

On May 28, 2019, the Group satislied all conditions precedent under the share purchase agreement lor the
aoquisition of 66.5% equity interest of Pini Polonia sp. 2 oo, ("Pini Polonia™y, Along with the 335% equity
inferest scquired on July 28 2017, Pini Polonia became a whollv-owned subsidimy of the Group. The results
ol Pini Polonia are consolidated into the Group's financial statements commencing from the acquisiiion date
(e, May 28, 2019

The Group accoedingly remeasured the lair value of ils pee-existing inkerest in Pini Polonda at the dafe of

acquisition and recognised the resulling loss of kess than US$1 million on the remeasurement of the Group's
pre-exsling interest in Pini Polonia to the acquisition date fair value

Liss tan USE] millon
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2018 {(continued)
Step acquisition of Pini Polomia sp. z p.0. (contmued)
Destals of e carrying valee and lair waboee of the Group's pre-exesling iterest in Pine Polonia al the date of
acquisition are summansed as follows

Share al net assels =
Less: Fair value of pre-existng interest {84}

Loss on remeasurament

The fai walues of the identifiable assols and liabilities of Pinl Polonia as at the date of acquisition were as
Tolbows:

Fair valuge

s on
=ion
LISE million

Property, plant and equipment 102
Inventories 9
Tradet and bills receiables 2
Prepayiments, olived receiables amd othed as<els -
Cash and bank balances 1
Other non-current assels 44
Trade payables {6&)
focived expenses and other payables {2)
Deferred o labaities {14)
Bowrowings and other loans {13
Leasa labidities (3)
Othet labdlities ]
Total identifiable net assels ol fair wilue &2
Gaocharill 114

196

Salisfeed by

Cash 112
Fair value of pre-exsting nterest a4
156

= Le SR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (conlirued)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 {conlinued )
Step acquisition of Pini Polonia sp. z o.o. {continued)
The Group incuried ansascion codts of USE2 million for the soquisbion. These ansaction costs have béen
expensed and are included in other expenses in profit o loss for the yea ended Decemnber 31, 2019

An analysis of e cash Nows in respect of the acquisiton of the above subsidiey & as follows:

Cash consederation (112
Cash and bank balances acquired 1

Met-outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash Tlows wsed i investing

activities (111}

Transaction cosls paid during the year incheded in cash llows: lrom opérating
Activities (2)
(113}

Since the completion of the acquisition, Pinl Poloni confributed USE1EF mallon to the Group's revenue and
U536 million koss to the consolidated prafit before tax for the year ended December 21, 2019

Had the acquisition of Pinl Polonia taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue and the
consolidated profit - before tax of the Group would have been US$24 307 milion and USE2.048 million,
Tespcinely

During the: year ended December 31, 2000, purclase -accountng adjusiment. with an increase of US33
millicn 1o pocdwill was made by the Group upon finalisation of the purchase price allocation of the
aoquisition of Pini Polonia, The directoss of the Company consider the adjustment is insignificant 1o the
consolidated slatement ol linancial posion, and as such, did nat refrospectively apply U adpestment o
resiate the balances as al December 31, 2019,

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{a) Major non-cash transactions
Crering thet year, the Growp had non-cash addibons to rght-of-use assets and lerse. labililes of [Hic i
méllion and UIS$129 million, respectively (2019 US$190 million and LISE180 million).

On Decenber 30, 2019, the Group contributed cerain biogas opeations 1o its joind venlme, Align RNG,
LLC {“Algn"). The bansaction resulled in a gain of US$42 million, which represented the difference

between the fair value of the equity intesests received from Align and the net book value of the biogas
operations  contributed

IS5 WHGROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
{b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Bomowings and
Lease liahilities other loans

LSS 'mellion LISE million

Al January 1, 2019 10 X6 3078
Changes fromn financing cash Mows (4640 {116} 3
Mew leases — 180k =
Interest expense - 18
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) 3 L3
Davichend s declared 472

S RaReE ) TotaCreen st 15} et

Al December 31, 2019 and

January 1, 200 18 455 3,082
Changes from linancing cash Nows (845) {132) {514}
Niw leases = 129 =
Interast expansg = 20 —
Interast paid — (200 —
Termination e (22) T
Remeasurament == 30 =
Dividends declared 837 =¥ e
Cumency realignment 4 B 58
At December 31, 2020 14 476 2,636

{c) Total cash {inflow) outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases incheded in the staterment of cash llows B as follows:

2020

USE miflion LIS$ il lsoni

Within operaling activilies 134 B7
Within investing activities 13 {243
Within financing aclivities 132 116
279 175

an LUSHL milkon
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

36. SHARE CAPITAL

o 3 il ko

Ordinary shares of US$0.0001 each:

Funthvorised:
Al January 1, 2019 December 31, 2019, January 1, 2020, and
December 31, 2020 50, (0100 5

lssued and Tully pasd:

A lanuary 1, 2019 1467548 1
Fasue of shares on exercise ol share optons (Molbe) 45,2/ o
At December 31, 2019 and January 1, 200 14, 72075 1
ssae of shares on exercise of share options (MNobe) 2946 =
A December 31, 2020 14, 74521 1
P
Thak ATl OfiCHOTE oRstoaed dure g 1hd yaliE Mg Undar 1hi ped 1PCH Shaes Copracty B0

AR P Bhared SSUed Qunhg M yaar ReT QIR eSS wish The (Ren Seslng shanm @

37. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AMD FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group manages s capital 1o ensure thal entities in the Group will be able o conlinue as a going
cancarn whike meaximising the refurmn o owners through the optimisation of the debl and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remsaans unchanged duning the years

The capital structare of the Group consisis of nel debt, which includes the bonowings disclosed in node 30,
ned of cash and cash equivalents and tolal equity, &s at December 31, 2020, the Gioup's net debd to equity
ratio was 9.9% (019 265.9%)

Less than LESR] millon
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Categories of financial instruments
Finamcial asseis
Az gt December 31, 2020

Fim: |

assels Financial

fair value assels al

through prafil amartised
st Toaltal
Assel calegories WSS million US55 million
Unisted aqualy mwesiments i0 — 10
Unfisted financial products aaz — 882
Dertvative financl assels &0 = 80
Mher non-cuneni assels 161 - 161
Trade, bills and other 1eceivables and other assels 20 1,081 1111
Pledgediestricted bank deposits - G2 g2
Cash and bank balances - 1,598 1.589
Tkl 1,153 2,752 3,905

As al December 31, 2019

Unlisted equity investrments (1] 10
Uniisted financial products 447 447
Degivative linancel assels Fdl iq
her non-cunent assels 145 145
Trade, bilks and olher recenables and olher assels I 1,202 1217
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits 45 45
Cash and bank balances - a2 552
Total w91 1,79 2 490
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

2020

WSS million LS % rllpon

Al amortised cosls:

Triade and other payables 1,099 1,327
Lease liabdities ATE i)
Bodrowings {lixed and floating rates) 2,635 3,092
Bank overdralts 46 —

4,257 4 BB

Al fair value through profit or bods:
[Degvative financial liabdlities 16 35

Financial risk management ohjectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include pledped bank deposils, cash and bank balances, financial
assels al FVPL, dervabive linancial instruments, Bade, bills and other recermbbes, other non-current assels,
trade and other payables, lease liabdlities, obligation under finance leases, bomowings and bank overdrafis,
Dedaiks of the flinancial inshuments ae disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financil instruments include menket risk (currency nsk and inlerest rabe nisk), credit risk and liquidily nisk
The policies on how to mitigale these risks are set oul below. The management of the Group rmanages and
monilors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are implemeénted in a timely and effective
IVEnNmeT

Markel risk
Tihe L':r-.’:-up'.‘.. activities expeose pl:ul!:;'lily 1o the financial risks ol |ilﬂ|‘|HL‘:$ Ml Imelgn CLITENCY r.-’:k,-.’:lr..‘m_[.;lj fates

and interest rales

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks o0 the manner in which it manages and
s LUnes e risk

160 WHGROUP LMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Foreign currency risk management

Cerlain . group  entities  have certain {foreign currency  sales, purchases, ¢ash and bank balances amd
boirowings densmmnated in USS, EUR, HES, RMBE and JPY, which axpose the Group o leieipn curency sk
al these individual group entities bevel, In osder o mitigate the foreign currency risks, foreign commrency
loreand contracts are eolered info by the Group for cerlam maler@l lofgign currency transactions. The ornitical
lepmes of these Woreign cumency lorsard contracts ane similar 1o those ol the hedged payments and receipds
denominaled in foredgn currencies. These forelgn curtency lotward contiacls ate designaled as hedging
instruments and hedge accounting is applied as the conliacts are considered highly effective hedging fems
The CAITYIng Amounts o the ﬂlllu;:-'f. lowegan cunrency denominated monetary asselts and rrmlldﬂl? liakslities
al the end ol the reporting period are as lollows:

2020 MG

USS million LIS$ million

fssels
Lss
Cash and bank balances 15 36
Trade, bills and other receivabbes 2 19
ELR
Cash and bank balances 1 3
Trade, bills and other recevablbes n 12
RME
Trade, bills and other receivables 8 101
JPY
Trade, bills and other receivables. a (=1
Liabslities
Lsg
Trade and other payables 18 9
Borowings 1 |
ELIR
Trade and other payables 20 26
Borrawings 2 2
HES
Borrowings — 50
RMB
Trade and other payables = 15
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Foreign currency risk management (conbinued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Giop is msinky exposed to the effect of USE against the functional currencies of e iespective groip
entities, except for HEY as it is pegmed to the USE

The following tabde detaals e Gioup's sensitivity to a 5% (2019 5%) inciease and deécrease in US$ against
funclional currencies of the respective group entities which represent managemenl’s assessment of the
reasonebly  possible change In foresgn exchange mtes. The sensitivily anabsis includes only oulbstanding
foreign cuntency denominated monetary itens and adjusts their ransdation to the functional curencies of the
respective group enlilies at the year et lor a 5% (2019 5%) change in foeign currency rales. A posilive
{negative) number below  indicates an increase {(decreasel in post-lax profit where LIS strengthens 5%
(2009:; 5%) against the relevant curmency.

LUSE Empact — &

In management’s opinien, the sensitivity analysis s uniepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange sk as
the year end exposure does nob rellect the exposure during the respective year,

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair valee interest rale sisk relates primanly to i#s fmancial asselts at FYPL and  fived-mate
bogrowings (see noles 25 and 30 respectively for details). The Group cumently does nol enter into. any
derivative conlracks to hedge #s exposure bo changes in fain values of financial assets at FVPL, fixed-rate
borrowings and lnance leases. Howeves, the management of the Group will consider hodging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's cash low inleresl rale nsk relales primanly o tloating rates bank bafances, bomowings and bank
overdrafls {see notes 27 and 30 respeclively for details), The Group's exposures 1o interest rates on financial
liakyil@ies are detailed in the ligquidity rsk management seclion of This nolo,

Sensilivily analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure o inferest rales lor non-deriative
Instruments atl the end of the reporling pened. For NMoating rates borrowings, bank overdrafts and bank
balances, the analysis is prepared sssuming the amount of asset and liability cubstanding al the end of e
repegting peniod was outstanding for the whole year, A 25 basis points increase of decrease s used for
sensilivily analysis which regeesents management's assessmoent of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates

Lesa than USE] milkon

162 WHGROUP LMITED

263/308



37.

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Interest rate risk management [conlinued)

Sensitivity amalysis (continued)

I intedest mates decreased by 25 basis posnts and all otbier varabls wese held constant, the potential offect
on post-tax profit is as follows:

LSS million US43 million

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profi 3 -

Thizre would be an equal and opposile impact on the post-lax profl where e inferest mbes increased by 25
basks points and all other variables were held constant

Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk & primarily attributable to s trade, bills and other receiables, bank badances and
pledged bank deposits. At the end of the repoting peried, the Group's masimem exposure fo credd risk
which will cause a linanckal loss 1o the Group due to the fadure to discharge an obligation by the
colnterparties and arsing from the camang amount of the respective rscognised financial assefs stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

In crder to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a leam responsible for the
delermination of credit Nmits, credit approvals and other monitornng procedures too ensure That Tollow-up
action is taken o recover overdue debls. In addition, the Group reviess the recovwrable amount of each
individual debt al the end ol each repoting pened o ensure thal adequate mpainment losses ae made lor
irmecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group oosiders that the Group's credit isk is
significantly reduced

The Groug has no significan concentiation of credit nsk on trade, bills and other receivables, with exposure
spicad over a large number of counlérparties and cusbonmers,

Informalion about credd sk exposure on the Grousp's Irade recebables using e provisson  melne s
disclosed m node 23 Lo the consolidated fimancial statements. As al December 31, 20640 and December 31,
2019, the b=z allowance provision Tor pledgedirestricted bank deposils, cash and bank balances, hbills
receivable and Tinancial assels incloded in prepayments, other recenables and olher assels was nol maderial

The ECLs for financial assets incheded in prepayments, othér recenables and other assels are based on
assumplions. about the probability of default and the expected loss rates, The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecling inputs to the ECLS calculations, based on the Group's historical loss
recind, current condifions as well as Torwand-looking information.

Lesk tham USR] millsem
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Credit risk management (conlinued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tabdes below shows the cedit quality and the maximum exposure o credit nsk based on the Group's
credil imlil‘:g.r_ which = mainly based on past die information enless oibar Inloomation: S available without
undibe cosl of ellof, and year-end slaging classification a5 al Decembar 31 The amounts presented ane
gross cadndng amounts for financeal assets and the exposure 0 credit fisk for the Tinancial guaranios
confracts.

As gt Decamber 31, 2020

12-manth

ECLs Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
approach
U5 million

Tatal
5% million

Slage 3
USS million

Slage 2
US55 'million

Slage 1
US55 million

Trade and lls receivables ] - — |07 ns
Firsarecas] assets included in
prepayments, other
recelvables and otfer assols 176 - — == 176
Pledged deposits B2 = — — 62
Cash and bank batances 1,589 - — et 1,588
1,845 = — 807 2,152

Az at December 31, 2009

12-maonth

ECLs Lidetime ECLs

LISE milllon

LIS mil

Trade and blls receivables S 1,038 1,047
Financial assels ncluded in
prepayments, other
receivables and other assels 155 155
Fledged deposits 45 A5
Cash and bank balances 5h2 hh2
/6l 1,038 1,759
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Liquidity risk management
The ullimste responsibility for liquidity sk management rests with  managemenl, which has baalt an
appropriate liquiddy sk managemsent ramework (or the management of the companes comprsing the
Group's sho, medium and long-term funding and Equidity managemenl requirements. The Group manages
liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and bormowing Baciliies, by comtinuously monitoing Tonecasl
and actual cash fews and matching the matueity profibes of financial assets and Kabilities

s atl December 31, 2020, the Group has avaalabbe unutilsed banking facillies of approamalely USES, 032
milfecan (2015 LISE2 874 million),

The tollowing table details the Group's remaining confractual maturity for its non-derivative inancial lEbilities
The tatde lus been dedwn op based on the undiscounted cash llows of linancial Eabilities based on the
eatliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
o

In addiion, the lollowing table alse delails the Group's analysis of ils derivalive linanci instruments that
setibe on a nel basis, based on ther fair valoe recorded in Eabilies as at the end of the repoming perod.

On demand
and 1 year More than
or less 1 to-2 years 2 to 5 years S years Tatal

LSS million  US$E'million  USEmillicon - USE million  USE million

Al December 31, 2020

Trade pavabics 913 e —. = 813
faher payables 121 85 = ES 186
Lease [mbdities 120 147 85 224 586
Bank overdrafts 46 -_ _— —_— 46

Borrowings {fived and lloaling
atesh 876 4 205 1,849 3,131
2,078 613 300 1,873 4,882

Degivative linamcel
liakilities, nel 7 a — = 168

Al December 31, 2015

Tradis payabdes 1074 1074
Other payabdes 1494 50 — — 53
Lease lablities 124 145 -2 210 bag

Hl:slﬂ:l'.i-lllﬂ\ {Fxes amd llmtirlg
1atesy 967 507 855 1,188 3.517
2,355 711 835 1,388 5403

Drrgivative finarecial
liabrlibiess, mel 27 8 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Fair value measurement
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts ol curren! financial assels and financial
liatyillees recorded al amortsed cosl in the consolidated financial stalements appaoximeate Lo ther Tar values
thee to the short term maturities of these instruments

The fair values ol noh-current inancal assets and financial [Eilities have been calculated by discounting the
expeecied fulure cash flows using mtes comently avaitable tor instruments with simikar terms, credit risk and
remaining malurities and mansgement has assessed That the ir vales of non-current financial assels and
financial Eabilities approdimate to thels carrying amounts. The Group’s own non-performance sk lor non-
current  financiad liabilities as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 was assessed 1o be
|m|l.;n:1:|;3u.r

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The follewing fable provides an analysis of financial instruments thal are measured subsequent to inifisd
recognition al fair value, grouped into Lewels 1 1o 3 based on the degree fo which the fG&ir value is
obgerable.

. Lovel 1 fair value measurements are those derived rom quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets of habilities,

Ll Level 2 talr wvalue measurements are those demved from inpats other than quobed preces mduded within
Level 1 that are observable for the assel or Hability, efther directly (e as prices) or indirectly (ie

derived (rom pricask.

. Level 3 Lair walue measwements are lhose derived from valistion techniques that inchede inpats Tfor the
astel on liability that are nol based on observable markel data {unoebsersable inguats),

2020

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Tatal
USS million WSS million 5% million WS million

Financial assets at tair value through

ol o boss - 10 882 {:3: ]
Drerivative Tinancial assels it ] 2 106
Other non-cugrent assaks 47 84 a0 161

Financisl assels mcloded n
prepayments, other receivables

and olher - assets == 20 = 20
143 122 814 1,178
Dervative fimancial lishilies 28 2 10 A1
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)
Fair value measurements recogmised in the consolidated statement of financial position (conlinued)

Financial assefs al lain valee through

profit or loss re 10 a4 aaf
Derivative financial assels il | 17 2 Gy
Other non-current assels 31 B8 il 145

Fenancial assels included in
prepayments, olher receivables

and other assels - 15 = 15
102 130 a5 JO7
Drerivative financeal labilities 18 26 ! Bl

Financial assets al FVPL incleded {a) wnlisted invesiments i equity securities whose fair values ane
determined by income approach based on discountad cesh ow analvses on he expected mberest rales (Level
2), and (b) unbisted financial products whose fair values are detesmined based on significant unobsenvable
inpats (Level 33 including expected rale of telurmn of 1L.5% to 4.1% {December 31, 2019 3.7% o 4.1%)

The fam walues of denvative Tinancial assetsfabilties are detenmined by quoled prices in aclive markets
{Level 1} o0 using the income approach based on discounted cash flow analysis on the expected inlerest
rates {Level 2}, as appropriate.

Other non-cument assets include muteal funds and nstitutional funds which are wlued based on s quoted
prices in active makets (Level 1) or dedived trom the net assel value per share of the imvestment (Level 3),
as appropriale, and mswrance contracts which are valued at thelr cash surrender valuse using the daily asset
unit value which is based on fhe quoted marketl price of the underlymg sccunties. and classified wihan
Level 2

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 lair value measurements during the year, and no
transiers into or oul of Leved 3 fair value measurements duoring the years ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019

Sensitivity analysis

The fair value of linancial assets and fmancial liabdlities that are chesied as Level 3 15 delermined using
valuation techniques  including Monte Carle simulation, In delermmaning the lalr walue, specific valuation
lechniques are used with reference o inpals such as RMEB risk-free interest mte, LIBOR and other specific

inpal relesant 1o those particular linsnctal assels and linanceal Labdities,

Changing uncbserable inputs used i Level 3 valuation to reasonable alternative sssumiptions would nol have
signiicant impact 10 the Groups ol on oss
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (confinued)
Movements in fair value measurement within Level 3
The movements In fai valee meéasurements within Leved 3 duarnng e years are as follows:

Financial assets at Derivative
fair walue through financial Other mon-current

profit or loss imstruments assels

LISE million LIS milliod LIS $ million

At January 1, 2019 317 (3 22
Tolal gain {logs) recognised inprofil or kes

included in other gams and {losses) 2 [2) A
Total loss recognised noother comprehensive

inzoeme : {—*)
Purchases A0
Disposals (810}
Currency realgnment 4 = o
At December 31, 20019 and January 1, 2020 447 {5 26
Talal gain recognised i profit o loss included

in othes gains and (losses) 28 i) E
Purchases 2,048 — g
Disqoesals {1,605) (1 =
Currency realgrment 52 fos ==
Al Decembrer 31, 2020 BE2 8y 30

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group's assels and labdities are measored at fBar valee o inancial eporting parposes.

In estimating the far value of an assel or a lability, the Group uses markel-obsardable data o the exdent it s
available, Where Level | inputs are not available, the Group emgages third parly qualiied valuers 1o perform
the valuation. The managemant of the Company works closely with the qualdied external valuers 1o establish
the apgropriate valuation kechniques and inputs 1o the model

' Lész than =3 melion
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements
The desclosune el oul in lhe lables below incledes financial assels and financial [@kdiles thal:

. are offsel in the Group's consolidaled siatement of financial pesition; or

. are subject o an endorceabls master netting: amangement o similar agreement that covers similar fiancial
instruments, irmespective of whether they ame ollsel in the Group's consolidaled statement of lnancial
pasifion

The (rougs |.uru:n1|3.l s a k‘gpﬂly enforceatde nghl 1o sel ol the dernalive financed insiruments and the
Group inends fo seftle these balances on a nel basis

#s at December 31, 2020

Geeas amouniy of Mt smpunls of
Relmied smsondy sel sel off in ihe

stement of linancipl
prateiEn

-

Dizai smsuiy ol

recagrved linascal Cavh collateral

Farti
UE millien

Met smounls of
hnancial Satalitiey A
preasnlnd in the
consolidsed
waraent of Gk galigerl
fmangiad peyhen faangial pearhgn o
UsSmillien

d ilshemint of s

paetizn

Disvatns ] fim 1 6 - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements (conlinued)
As al December 31, 2019

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
{a) 2010 Share Award Plan

The Company's share award plan (the “2010 Share Award Plan”} was adopted parsuant fo a resolufion
n writing of all shareholders ol the Company dated November 26, 2010 {the “Resolutions”), As a result
of the completion of the reciganisation sleps as descnbed and approved in the Resolulions on
December 26, 2013, 631 580,000 shares of the Company {the “Incentive Shares"), representing 6% of
the then issued shares of the Company were bansterred from Shine D Hobding Limibed, ono of the
eharaholders ol the fil'lmrmﬂ'.-_ 1o Chang Yun Holdmgs Linted [‘f:lu-:mH o} fod Ehes  Seneor
management of the Company and 85 subsidiaries and mvested enlities pursuant 1o the 2010 Share
Fowrand Plan, The Resolidions also apgroved the 4,‘:|'|_|.:,i,ij_qn|1'u:.|1| ol Tocorl Sereoes Limited ||:.' L {H i_illrrlpemy
to provide trustee services for the 2010 Share Award Plan and Teeroy Limited has been designated by
Tricor Services Limited o act as trustee for the 2010 Share Award Plan (lhe “Trustee”), The voling
rights in espect of the Incentive Shares held by Chang Yun will be exercised in accordance with tha
direction to be given by Herole Fone, one of the shareholders ol the Company,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)  m—

taur ended Decembar 31

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
{a) 2010 Share Award Plan (continued)

If, at the date of termination of the 2010 Share Award Plan, Chang Yun holds any Incentive Shares
which have nod becn set aade pursiant o B beims of the 2000 Share Mard Plan in favour of aiy
selected employes of e Company o retains any unutilised: fumds, the Trustee shall handle at the
discicton ol the board of direcloss of the Company according to the then applicable lbws  and
regulations. Upon lermination of the 20010 Share Award Plap, all the Incentive Shares and other
distributicns. provisionally awarded o a selected employes 10 ihe extent nol already vested pursuant o
the tepms ol the 20100 Share Award Plan, shall become vested on such solected employea and - any
Incentive Shares which are not vested in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Award Plan or
are fofeited in accordance with the terms thereundar, shall be handled al the discretion of the board
of directers of the Company according to the then apphcable laws and regulations. Chang Yun was
hereby megarded B85 a special purpose entity of the Company and consofidated to the Group
accordingly.

The 2010 Share Award Plan was amended pursuant to a resolution in writing of all directors dated
Febguary 9, 2012 and the sssesament peiiod lof vesting the Incenlive Shades was el o be 2012 1o
2014, All shares under the 2010 Share Award Plan have been transferred to selected employees. during
the year ended December 31, 2009, The 2010 Share Award Plan wes lerminsted on December 23,
2015 upon defermination by the board of directors.

[Dhttasils of the 2010 Share Award Plan are as Tollows:

Mumber of shares 631, 580,000
{subject to the lock-up padod of 5 years and voting right shall be
retained by Heroic Jone, the immediate holding company of the
Coamgeany, thereafler)

Granl dabe December 26, 2012

Vesting condition Pesformance larget for each year from 2012 to 2014

The management ol the Company considers thatl the vesting condition on performance targel is
achioved and all Incentive Shares was tansferred from the Trustee. The estimated fair vaee of the
Imcentive Shares as al grant date amounting to USE128 milkon had been recognised in profil or loss
during the vesling period. 11 was determined by market approach,

{b) 2013 Share Award Plan

The Company had adopted anotier: share award pkan {the “2013 Share Award Plan”) pursuant to a
wiilten resclution of all the Company’s sharcholders in Octeber 2013, representing 3.0% of the then
issued shares of the Company at the time of issuance pursuant o the 2013 Share Award Plan held by
High Zenith Limited {(“High Zenith™) for the recogniion and reward 1o the contibution of oertdn
employees and the growth and development of the Group, The resclution also approved the Trustee by
the Company to provide trustes services for the 2013 Share Award Plan. The voling rights in respect of
the shares hebd by High Zenith will be exercised in accordance with the direction fo be given by Herole
Fone.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

anl esdpd Docembar 51, 200

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (conlinued)
(b} 2013 Share Award Plan {continued)

If, al the date of termination of the 2013 Shate Award Plan, High Zenith holds any shares which have
ol bt sel aside pursuant o the lenms ol the 2013 Share Award Pln in favour of @y selected
emplyess of the Company of retains any unutilised funds, the Trustes shall handle at the discretion of
the board of directors ol the Compainy according to the then applicable lows and regulations. Upon
ferminatben of the 2013 Share Award Plan, all the shares and other distibuthons provisionally swarded
1o a sedected emplives o the extent nol already vested pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Award
Plan, shall become yvested on such selected employes and any shares which are not vesled in
accordance with the lerms of the 2013 Share Award Plan o are lorfelted In accordance with the lenms
thereunder, shall ba handled at the discetion of the board of directors of the Company according to
the: then applicable laws and regulations. High Zenith was hereby regarded a5 a special parpose enlity
o the Group accordingly.

On Oclobes 23, 2013, 350,877,333 newly issued shares of US$0.0001 each were allofted to High
Jenith pursuant to the 2013 Share Award Plan as sel ol above

M. Wan Long was granted 350 877,333 shares {the “Awarded Shates"} under the 2013 Share Award
Plan on Aprdl 28, 2017, subject lo the terms and conditions sel oul in the relevant award nobice and
under e rules of the 2013 Share Award Plan (the “Awand™)

The management of the Company considers thal the vesting condition on the attainment of financial
target for 2017 has been achieved. The estimated fair value of the Awarded Shares as al the grant
date amounting to USE27E million was recognised in poofit or boss for the year ended December 31,
2007, AN shares under the 2013 Share Award Plan have been transferred to Mr, Wan Long during the
vear ended December 31, 2019, The 2013 Share Award Plan was terminated on June 28, 2019 upon
dilermination by the board of direclos,

The Tair value of W Awarded Shares was detesmined by the markel approach by Jonds Lang LaSalle
Corpodate Appraisal and Advisory Limited at the grant date.

(e} Pre-IPO share option scheme
The pre-IPC share oplion scheme was adopted pursuant 1o a written resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company on January 21, 2014 as amended on Apnl 4, 2014, the purpose of which
B o incenlivise and reward eligible participants ol the scheme, incheding directors and employees of
the: Company o ils subsidiaries by reason of their contribution or pofential contribution to the Company
andioa any of its subsideamies,

In July 2014, the number of shares in respect of which oplions had been granled under the pre-lPO
share opion scheme was 584,795 555, with an exercise price of HE$6. 20 per share, representing o
mawe than 5% of the (hen sued share capital of the Company upon completion of the listing on the
Stock Exclmnge. Mo consideration was paid by the grantees for the grant of the pre-IPO share oplions.

The fair value of the pre-lPO share oglions granted using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
HE$1, 883 million (equivalent 1o approximately USEX43 mallion), which was measured by an
mdependent qualified valuer, Jones Lang La%alle Corpotate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
{c) Fre-1PO share option scheme (cConlinued)
The key inpuls info the model were as Tollows

Shage price HE36 66
Exercise price HE$6. 20
Oplion it 10 yeaas
Expected volatility A%
Risk-lree rale 206%

The expected volabibly was determined by using the historical volatilty of the selected companabbe
companies in the same industry,

The Iolowing latds discloses delails of the Group's. catstandng shane 1:|||h|1||'j urnder the pre-lPO shane
option schems and their movements during the year

o0 T
P T by B0, 2004 SIEAMEEN SLINEIAT A MTEAE . RENENN LEIOTE D AA8 S8 P AT R FE TR
Frev=atig at B
! OF P AR, NG d3T TAF 54T

In respect of the share oplions edxercised dueing the year, the average share price at the dates of
exercise was HERS.06 (2019: HES7 600

For the yvear ended December 31, 2020, no share-based payment expense was recopnised (2019
LIS3E milken) in relation to the pre-IPO share oplion schemss

39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the repoling period:

2020 2019

UsSS million LSS million

Contracted, bul nod groyided Tor;

!:."ltrihjl comdiibatesds b A poanl venduine 165 165
Acquisiion of properly, plant and equipment 305 &6
Paogaerties umder development = 14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2020

USS'million

Pledged bank balances L] 16

A5 al December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, ceain of the Group's poncipal LS. subsidianes are
jointly and severally liable for, as primary obfigors, the obligations under certain banking facilities

Smalhiiekd Recehables Funding, LLC a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has a secwnitisation taality that
matures in Movember 2021, As part of the armangement, cefain iade receivables are sold to a wholly-owned
‘Bankiuptey remole” specal purpoese vehicks ("SPV7). The SPY pledges the receivables as seourily for foans
and betters of credit. The SPV s included in the consolidated staternents of fmancial posftion of the Group,
However, the rade recerables owned by the SPY are separate and destinct rom the ol assels and are nol
avallable 1o olher creditors ol Smithliekd 1 Soathiek] was to become insolvent, As a8l Decemnber 31, 2000, the
SPY held US$567 milkon (2019: US$eS1 méllion) of bade recevables and had outstanding borrowings of
USHI07 million (2015 US3E3 million} on the securnilisation tacility, Mo fingncial or other support to this SPY
was prosided by the Group as al December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Group is subject lo wanioss lBws and regulations administered by jursdictional governmend entities. The
Group had nolices and inquiries Trom regolstony aullwrities and others assefing from tme fo ime that the
Group B not in complance wilth the respective bws and regulabons. In some instances, Migation ensues and
edividusads ey indtiate ligation against the Group.

North Carolina Nuisance Litigation

The litigation stem from requests for pre-ltigation. mediations of farm nuisance disputes filed in early July
2013 in ‘Wake County, Motth Carolina. In Aogusi, Seplember and Oclober 2014, 25 complants were filed in
the Linited Slates Destrict Court for the Bastern Distesct of Morth Carolina by 515 individual plaintiffs against
the Group's wholly owned subsidiary, Murphy-Brown LLC {*Murphy-Brown™), alleging causes of action for
nuisance and retated claims. Subsequent 1o this initial [ling, cedtain plaintiffs joined the complaints and in
response Murphy Brown has fded s answers and affimative defense, all the complints wee amended
parseant to the Cout’s order and some plaintilfs dismissed thel claims duning the process of discovery

By December 2017, there were 26 cumently pending complaints which induded clams on behall of 511
plaintifls and relate o approximately 14 company-osned and 75 conbact fanms. Al 26 complaints include
causes ol acton for lemporary nusance and negligence and seek recovery of an unspecified amount o
compensalony, speckl and puntlive damages. An order was issued by the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Morth Carolina setting a date for the first trial, Apnl 2, 2018, and establshing the probocol
for all subsequent triats. These irials relted to 5 of the 26 complaints and were hedd during 2018 and
2015,

In Movember 2020, the Fourth Cacuit published 5 opinion with reference 1o the Fourlh Circuit's opinkon and,
parsteant o a setilement agreement, the Group seftled the litigation and made the final payment of the
setthement in the liest quester of 2021, All amounts were Tully acoeed at the end of the eporiing peniod.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Thie Groep's policy To Lﬁtul_llhhll'l_g accnds and disclsures o 1’1:-|'|||n¥_|;:1'|l labdities 15 sel ol i onode 3 1o
the financial statements. The Group established a reserve for the estimated expenses to defend against (hese
and similr polentiaf clainms, which was subsequently re-evaluated

Expenses and ofher labilities associated with these claims will ot affect the Group's profits or bosses in
Tdure periods unbess the provision proves bo be insallicenl or excessive, However, legal expenses incurmed in
the Group's defense of these claims and any payments made o plaintifts: through undfasoable verdicts o
olhtrwise will negalively impact its cash flows and its liquidity position, The directors of the Compamy will
conlinue to evaluale and adjust the provision 8s necessary upon changes in facts and circusmstances

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{a} The Group had the following significant transactions with associatesfoint venlures during the years

2020 AT

U5E million LS il B

Sales of goods 1o associales 16 6
Sales of goods 1o joml ventures 13 15
Purchase of goods and senvices from associales 223 40
Purchase of goods Trom joinl ventures 28 20

{b) Baknces with associatesfoint venfures at the end of the reporting period

2020 MG

USS million LIS% million

Included in:

Trade and bills receivalbles 1

Prepayments, other receivables and other assels 4 18

Trade payables g s

Acorued expenses and olber payabbes g 15
d repayates On GeTe] 5%

eralRed arad othed &
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remuneration of key management personnel, representing emoluments of direchors of the Company
and senor management of the Group pidipayable doring D peniod ender revew is el oul below:

Year ended December 31,

2020 2019

UES million LISl lon

Directors’ fees — S
Basic salmies and allowances 7 9
Pesformance bonuses 5 26
Termination Benefits 2 —

Redirament benedil schemme condribulioes == -
Share-based payments = i
Tatal compensation padd lo key management personne 14 39
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2020 ]9

US S million LiSE million

HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in unbsted subsidianes 5,138 5,145

CURRENT ASSETS

Aursotenls duee Trom subsideanies 84 127

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 1 =

Cash and bank balances I == 2
B5 122

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts duee to subsidiaries 318 237
Cither payabihes 2 2
32 339

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES | (236) (210).
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,903 4935
NET ASSETS 4,903 4,935

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital (Nole 36) 1 1
Share premium 3,011 290937
Transiation reserve BG1 Gl
Other reserve =21 231
Retained prolits 1,608 1 G50
TOTAL EQUITY 4,903 4935

= Le LISRY m
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movements in the Company's reserves

Share Shara  Translation

capital premium FESETYE

EDINETOOOO
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Retained
profits

oOoOooodn

Total

i Ll 71 3
C miey 31 and
AUy 1 1 .08z &1 231 1,880 4,935
= — - - 544 548
vider = — — — [508) (398}
s of s WO eaercise of
sl — il = (1ay - 18
— m — (10 1) (32)
A T 1 F011 Bl 221 1,000 4,903
ih ¥ fa A share Eranied whikh f 1o be sxeicize ant w hee b sam hara
- 1als # s BrAnRSRrIed b Al ke o
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44. NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUEBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table: below shows the details of oo w'l'mll:,ri:rﬂ'nﬂl subsdianes of the Growp et have. materal non

conlrolling mierests at the end of the reporting period

Countiy ol

of gmmership
and pincipsl  aterenty pad w
place of held by

Name of subsidimy bunseas olling irberesis

Chena XA

Ficdit 3ty ibutsble bo
(1]
2020

LS mi Mo

245

a54

Aeemmulated

BAD

Sumimaised lnancud inleimaton in esped o Shaanghie Development thal has ralensd non-controling
interests is sel out below. The summarised financial information below  tepresents the amounts before

INETagroup climinatioms

As al December 31,

US§ million

LIS$ million

Mon-ciarent assels 1,950
Current assets 3406
Current liatslities 11.536)
Hon-current Nabilities {117}
Ecpuity attributable to owness of Shuaoghol Deveboprmien {3,650)
Mon-controlling interests of Shuanghui Development's subsidiaries 53
Mon-controdling miterests of Shuanghoi Developament ai

]

1,774
2,342
(1,619)

(a6)
(2,365)

26
G659

755
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44. NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Year ended December 31,

2030
UsE'million

LSS million

Revenue 10,652 8,053
Tolal expenses (8,729) {7.879)
Prodit Tor the year 823 El4
Other comprehensive income = =
Total comprehensive incoms for the year 923 El4
Prodit attributable to owners of the Company 677 Had
Prodit attribulable to the non-controdling mterests o

Shuanghul Development's subsidiaries 2 5
Prodit attributable to the non-controdling mterests of

Shuanghul Development 244 215

923 E14

Dividends paid to non-controfling interests ol Shuanghii

Devalopment's subsidianies 17 18
Met cash inflow from operatimg activibies 1,280 B3l
Met cash oulllow Trom investing activities. {533) {198}
Meal cash oaftibow Trom linancig aclivites {34} (337
Mat- cash inflow 122 95
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

45. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)
Cther reserve: mcluded the @ir valee of the share options, remeasorement defucll of the defined  benedil
pension plans and faw valee surplus in cash flow hedge attributable to the Group,

2020

USS million

Other comprehensive income (expanse) inchides
lems that will nol be reclassihied subsequently 1o prolt of loss

Remeasurement on detined benelil pension plans {121 {1960
Income 1ax relating to defined benefil pension plans i A5
(a0 (143}

Items that may be reclassilied subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences ansing on transbation of foreign operations Nz {51}
Fain value change in cash llow hadge 42 9
Income tax relaling to cash tlow hedge {11) {14)

3 {36}
Other comprehensive income (expense), net of ncome tax 53 {179
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of [he GCompany's principal subsidiaees o December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2019 are a5
followes;

Hmms o lnilinng

i e AL WP NS 571 TSy

T0.3% TEATN wemant hoteng, vt

rarutacte 3
packEpng materaly ond ma
rsducts

Stk L] Tl 0% D0 raviment hoksng, ersock
Tock Ry anng

aed iy & mail

o the SEwerhen Siock Exchangs and cesmbaced g8 -3 Emibed Eabily comgany

ediary I8 e
The abowe table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, primcipally affected the results lor the yew or loomed a substEnlial potion of the corsoidated not
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

To the shareholders of WH Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the
“ Company” ) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “ Group” )
set out on pages 63 to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of 1ts consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(* IFRSs” ) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

(* HKSAs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“ HKICPA” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA®s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “ Code” ),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor-s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
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of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets

The carrying value of the Group®s live
hogs included in biological assets
amounted to US$1,028 million,
representing 5.5% of the Group®s total
assets as at 31 December 2020. The
carrying value of live hogs was
measured at fair value less costs to
sell, which was determined based on
the price of hogs in the actively
traded market, reduced by the breeding
costs required to raise the hogs to be
slaughtered, the estimated margins
that would be required by a raiser,
and costs to sell with reference to
the latest budgets approved by the
management. The Group engaged an
independent qualified valuer to
perform the live hog valuations. We
identified the fair value measurement
of live hogs as a key audit matter
because of the significant degree of
judgement involved in the valuations
to determine the fair value less costs
to sell of live hogs.

Disclosures of determination of the
fair value less costs to sell and the
key assumptions involved are included
in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing
the fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets included:

O understanding how the management
determined the fair value
measurement of live hogs included in
biological assets, including the
involvement of the independent
valuer;

O evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent
valuer;

O reviewing the valuation model
prepared by the independent valuer
in determining the fair value less
costs to sell of live hogs;

O comparing the market price of live
hogs used as inputs for the
valuations with available market
data; and

O evaluating the estimates of breeding
costs required to raise the live
hogs and estimated margins that
would be required by a raiser and
costs to sell against the historical
performance and budgets approved by
the management.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor®s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

O

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention iIn our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
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express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor™s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor®s
report is Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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(Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen)

CITIC 22F
2021 30
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